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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
"STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be
attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks
of investing in such companies and should make the decision
to invest only after due and careful consideration. The
greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean
that it is a market more suited to professional and other
sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Ziyuanyuan
Holdings Group Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
GEM of the Stock Exchange (the "GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to
the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and
not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
R

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Ziyuanyuan
Holdings Group Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present
the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group is principally
engaged in provision of medical equipment finance leasing services
and maternal and child postpartum care industry services in the
PRC.

PROSPECTS

In the current market environment of the PRC, SMEs face
challenges on the path of development due to high operational
and financing costs. In recent years, the People’s Bank of China
enhanced its policy support to major fields including SMEs and
fragile aspects of domestic economy and devoted greater effort
in procuring financial institutions to provide proactive support to
the financing of SMEs, all of which gave supportive measures to
the finance leasing industry. The scale and number of SMEs in the
PRC are gigantic and yet the finance leasing market got off to a
late start. Along with the development of the financing lease and
increasing demand in the financing market, the penetration of
finance lease has been deepening constantly, paving the way of a
promising outlook of the finance leasing market in the PRC.

Looking forward, the Group is still reasonably optimistic to sustain
the core business given all the economic uncertainties with the
outbreak of Covid-19. The Group will continue to seek for the best
possible opportunities to grow the Group’s business by leveraging
current client base. After the pandemic, the healthcare industry
will be a new economic breakthrough with significant value-added
potentials. The Group initiated pre-emptive deployment of medical
equipment leasing, medical equipment trading and related fields in
order to capture pioneer opportunities and support the industrial
upgrade of the medical and related industry.
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The PRC government has gradually relaxed the one-child policy in
recent years. In October 2015, the PRC announced the universal
two-children policy to boost the country’s stagnating population
growth. As a result, the birth rate in the PRC had risen sharply.
Between 2017 and 2018, the total number of second-child births
was more than 16 million, accounting for 50% of the total birth
population. According to a public research report in relation to
postpartum care industry market demand and investment planning,
the market size of postpartum care centres in the PRC has been
increasing since 2010 and is estimated to reach approximately
RMB29 billion by 2024, showing a positive prospect for the
industry. Together with the increase in gross domestic product per
capita in tier 1 and tier 2 cities in the PRC, the Group is expected
to benefit from the robust outlook of the postpartum care centres.
The maternal and child healthcare related services have a rigid
demand and the overall market will continue to grow rapidly.

The Covid-19 epidemic had severely impacted the global economy,
and in particular, the first quarter of 2020 for the PRC. Besides
groceries and daily necessities, medical and healthcare products
and services, the postpartum care services industry could also
maintain its normal operations during such difficult times, which
reflect the rigid demand of the postpartum care services in the
PRC market. Given that the expected date of delivery of the
newborn is fixed, parents are required to make pre-arrangements
for postpartum care services. In light of the sudden outbreak of
the global pandemic, it was found that many parents prefer to use
postpartum care centres instead of hiring post-natal care worker
(B% B) /maternity matron (B12), as health conditions of the latter
is less guaranteed. Further, the healthcare of postpartum care
centres has a complete range of nursing expertise and functions,
which is incomparable to hiring a housekeeping helper to take care
of household chores.

At present, the concentration of the maternal and child postpartum
care industry is extremely low, which is a common phenomenon for
an industry in its early stage of development. Due to the increasing
wealth of the Chinese that is followed by increasing demand
for better health and lifestyle, together with the favourable
government policies in place, the next ten years is believed to be
the golden decade for the development of the postpartum care
service industry.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
R

The Group believes maternal and child postpartum care industry
services will be a good entry point to the healthcare industry. The
Group will continue to explore potential opportunities to diversify
our business and if appropriate, explore selective acquisition and
partnership in order to strengthen the Group’s revenue base
and maximize both the return to the shareholders and the value
of the Group. The Group has established Shenzhen Meijiaer
Health Management Co., Ltd.* (FIIFEEREEEEAIR
‘A@])in 2020, which focuses on the provision of maternal and
child postpartum care industry services in the PRC. Currently,
the Group will focus on developing its postpartum care business
in the Southern China and Central China regions, and through
acquisitions and opening of landmark flagship postpartum care
centres, to increase its market share. The Group aims to provide
one-stop services for mothers and infants through upstream and
downstream linkage, ranging from postpartum cares centres and
training schools for maternity matron and nursery teachers,to
maternal and infant e-commerce for the sales of maternal
and infant products. The Group is committed to establishing a
comprehensive maternal and infant one-stop-shop.

Currently, the Group will focus on developing its maternal and
child postpartum care industry services in the Southern China and
Central China regions, and through acquisitions and opening of
landmark flagship postpartum care centres, to increase its market
share. In tier 1 cities, the high-end postpartum care centres
is gradually becoming saturated, and is facing intense market
competition. Therefore, the Group has shifted its target to mid-end
brands in tier 1 cities, focusing on middle-class consumers.
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In tier 2 cities, the postpartum care service industry is highly
fragmented, as the market for high-end postpartum care centres
has not saturated yet, there are plenty of opportunities for industry
integration. The Group plans to acquire high-end postpartum care
centres, as well as set up self-operated flagship postpartum care
centres to increase its market share in tier 2 cities, and offer quality
and affordable postpartum care services to the general Chinese
population.

The Group plans to enhance its competitive edge by exploring
opportunities with local hospitals to provide pregnant women with
convenient appointment booking and treatment channels, and to
resolve the difficulty for pregnant women to make a reservation in
large hospitals, in addition to services provided by the postpartum
care centres, creating a one-stop-shop platform for its customers.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express sincere appreciation
to the support and trust of our Shareholders, banks, customers and
business partners. | would also like to express heartfelt gratitude to
the effort and contribution of our staff members. In appreciation
of the support and loyalty of the Shareholders, the Board is pleased
to recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK2.5 cents per
share of the Company for the financial year 2020.

Zhang Junshen
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 March 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEw RO

BUSINESS REVIEW

Finance leasing services

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has been
focusing on provision of finance leasing services to SMEs
customers in the medical equipment industry in various provinces,
municipalities, and autonomous regions in the PRC, where the
Group has established connections with industry players and gained
operational expertise. The finance lease offered by the Group
comprises direct finance leasing and sale-leaseback. The Group
provided services to approximately 1,000 SMEs customers across 30
provinces, municipalities and autonomous regions in the PRC as at
31 December 2020.

Since the outbreak of Covid-19 at the beginning of 2020, the
Group has taken a proactive approach and adopted various anti-
epidemic measures to protect the safety and health of employees
as top priority. At the same time, the mandatory extension of
holidays in the PRC and the quarantine measures taken by multiple
provinces and cities had hindered the operations of the Group
and our customers temporarily. The Group was taking proactive
measures and making active responses in an effort to minimise the
impact caused by the epidemic. The medical equipment industry is
an industry that has benefited from the pandemic. During the year,
the Group adjusted its target industries to focus on the medical
equipment industry. As at 31 December 2020, the epidemic
situation in China has gradually stabilized and the Group’s business
has gradually returned to pre-epidemic levels.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Maternal and child postpartum care industry services
Postpartum confinement (8¢ B)is a traditional Chinese custom,
which allows women to rest fully after giving birth, and to recover
through diet. It is said that it is the best time for women to improve
their physical well-being. Hence, centres for the provision of
postpartum care services (B FH.(\) had emerged.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group acquired
a high-end postpartum care center and established a landmark
flagship postpartum care center to provide postpartum care services
in Wuhan, the PRC, consisting of four major areas of (i) health
care for postpartum mothers and newborn babies; (ii) dietary and
nutrition for postpartum mothers; (iii) recovery and beauty for
postpartum mothers; and (iv) intellectual development for newborn
babies.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Revenue consists of (i) finance leasing income and interest
income from loan receivables in finance leasing services; and
(ii) postpartum care services income since August 2020. For the
year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s revenue decreased
by approximately RMB9.6 million or approximately 14.1% to
approximately RMB58.5 million (2019: RMB68.1 million). The
decrease in revenue for the year ended 31 December was mainly
attributable to the outbreak of Covid-19 at the beginning of 2020,
resulting in the mandatory extension of holidays in the PRC and
the quarantine measures taken by multiple provinces and cities
had hindered the operations of the Group and our customers
temporarily, which offsetting the new postpartum care services
income of RMB2.2 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEw RO

Staff cost

Staff costs include primarily Directors’ remuneration, employee
salaries, allowances and other staff benefits as well as employee
retirement benefits scheme contributions. Staff costs increased
from RMB13.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
approximately RMB14.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2020. The increase was mainly attributable to (i) the increase
in head count and staff salaries for existing staff; and (ii) the
additional staff costs incurred by new postpartum care services
business, which offsetting a deduction in contribution of social
insurance funds granted by the PRC government.

Impairment losses under expected credit loss (“ECL") model,
net of reversal

The Group is not required to provide general provisions as
commercial banks and other financial institutions which the
China Banking Regulatory Commission regulates. The provisioning
policies are based on the applicable accounting standards. The
management assesses the measurement of ECL in relation to
finance lease receivable and loan receivables. In determining the
impairment of finance lease receivable and loan receivables, the
management considers shared credit risk characteristics including
industry types, historical past due information and lessees’
creditworthiness for grouping, and assesses credit losses based on
internal credit rating and on a forward looking basis with the use
of appropriate models and assumptions relate to the economic
inputs and the future macroeconomic conditions.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, an additional
impairment loss of approximately RMB3.5 million (2019: RMB2.9
million) was recognised. The increase in impairment losses
allowance due to the impact of the outbreak of Covid-19 in 2020,
which caused the increase in the customers’ past due ratio.

ZIYUANYUAN HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

BT
BETINATBUEEEHM BEHRE 2
MR HME TR LUk ESRKEF 5 E
R BEIREFABHBEE_ZT-—AF+_A
=+ —HEFENARKEI3SEETIERER
ERZFST_RB=+t—HLFEHNY
ARB14 6B 8T EREMEZRANG)
ETABKRIBEEEINEIHEEM 5 K(ii)
MNBFIRFBEFBMEEZETAA > Hif
85 TR B BUR % T 4 & REE MR IR 2 £ 1 0B
o

FEHAEAEXL (TFREREX) ERIETZ
R EE1E (0pREED)
AEBBENAHFETEESEEEZEY
FrBEEmMmERT MEMS R ERIEMR
—REET BREGSBRLREBEERS
AR E-BEEGAERMEMAERKIE
REWERZEHRERBRZFE-NETE
FERERNRIEREREITRER 18

EBatoEZBEZERARARSR 117
FHvETARENREABAGEE LA
HEETR R EEERTERAE SRR
EERKSEBASBE AR EZERSHERE
2 BETHEEBEC

BE_ZT_ZFT_A=-t+—HILEFE>
aﬁE%J&EEﬂE%‘JAE%B.SE%E (_
—hE I ARB29HET) < RERENIE
m7sER =T T FIRECovid- 192 BT

& HEmE R BRREM-



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses include primarily travelling expenses,
sales and marketing expenses, legal and professional fees,
depreciation of right-of-use assets and other expenses. Other
operating expenses increased from approximately RMB13.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB21.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2020. The increase was
mainly due to (i) the increase in depreciation of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets, resulting from hiring a
new head office in Shenzhen, the PRC during the year in order
to develop the new business and accommodate the increase in
number of staff; (ii) the increase in legal and professional fee
mainly due to the acquisition of subsidiaries; and (iii) the expenses
incurred by new postpartum care services business.

Finance costs

Finance costs consist of (i) imputed interest expense on interest-
free deposits from finance lease customers; (ii) interest on bank
borrowing; and (iii) interests on lease liabilities. Finance costs
decreased from approximately RMB13.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB8.3 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020. The decrease was mainly
due to imputed interest expense on interest-free deposits from
finance lease customers decreased from approximately RMBS8.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately
RMB2.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 as a result
in the reduction in the amount of deposits from finance lease
customers, which offsetting (i) the interest on bank borrowing
increased from approximately RMB4.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 to approximately RMB4.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020; and (ii) the interests on lease liabilities
increased from approximately RMBO.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 to approximately RMB0.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Taxation
The PRC enterprise income tax rate applicable to the Group’s
subsidiaries is 25%.

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group's
profit and total comprehensive income attributable to owners of
the Company was approximately RMB13.0 million and RMB16.9
million, respectively. The decrease of profit and total comprehensive
income attributable to owners of the Company in the current
period was mainly attributable to (i) the outbreak of Covid-19
at the beginning of 2020, resulting in the mandatory extension
of holidays in the PRC and the quarantine measures taken by
multiple provinces and cities had hindered the operations of the
Group and our customers temporarily, which led the decrease in
revenue; (i) the increase in the customers’ past due ratio, which
led the increase in provision for impairment losses under ECL model
in accordance with HKFRS 9; (iii) the increase in depreciation of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets; and (iv)
the increase in legal and professional fee due to the acquisition
of subsidiaries, which offsetting the decrease in finance costs and
income tax expenses.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
FUNDING

As at 31 December 2020, the cash and cash equivalents were
approximately RMB84.8 million (2019: approximately RMB22.3
million). The working capital (current assets less current liabilities)
and total equity of the Group were approximately RMB179.9
million (2019: approximately RMB172.6 million) and approximately
RMB303.3 million (2019: approximately RMB300.3 million),
respectively.

ZIYUANYUAN HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

iE
BRARAEENBARNFETEME
REA25%

TATHEE AELERNET
BHE_Z-_ZHERZIZE—NAE+ZA
=+—HLEFEE AEENA AT HE AR
Hafk2EBALRLIED R ARE13.0
BETAARBEI6IBET - ARAEEA
R EMEE2EmWATAABLER LD
FTEFRONK ZZZZF ¥ Covid-1915 2 »
ZILF 2 FERFERFRH B2 EEMD
R iREN R R B E i S ENAERE K
BREHARNEERHE BEWR TN
DnERPAEREEFH NEAEERES
B BERFIR  REEHERBELRER
BN REBEEE (IWME -BERRE
MEAEEENTEL N ; RivIEEHRE R
Bl AR EEEREN EEERERE
I PRGBS R L

RBEE -WHERREE

A ZEZEF+ZHA=+—8" iﬁ%&iﬁ
STEBEYANANRIEISHEE T (2T —
FIHOARK235E8T) cAERE Lﬁ%
(RBBEERRDER) REEDDIABHN
AR179988 T (CE—IAEF  OARE
172.6B87T) R ARM3I033HET (ZF
—NE  HARBE30035ET) °



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s bank borrowings with
maturity within one year amounted to approximately RMB99.7
million (2019: RMB56.2 million).

As at 31 December 2020, the gearing ratio was approximately
24.7% (2019:
divided by total equity plus bank borrowings.

15.8%), which is calculated as bank borrowings
Such increase
was mainly due to an increase in bank borrowings for business
expansion.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Shares were successfully listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange on 9 July 2018. There has been no change in the capital
structure of the Group since then. The share capital of the Group
only comprises ordinary Shares.

As at 31 December 2020, the Company's issued share capital was
HK$40,000,000 and the number of its issued ordinary Shares was
400,000,000.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group's income and expenditure during the year ended
31 December 2020 were principally denominated in RMB, and
most of the assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2020 were
denominated in RMB. The Group did not experience any material
impact or difficulties in liquidity on its operations resulting from
the fluctuation in exchange rate, and no hedging transaction or
forward contract arrangement was made by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had capital commitments
of RMB27.0 million (2019: RMB4.0 million) in respect of the
acquisition of office equipment and leasehold improvement and
acquisition of subsidiaries.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020,the Group’s finance lease receivable and
loan receivables with an aggregate carrying values of approximately
RMB25.1 million (2019: Nil) were pledged to a bank in the PRC to
secure a bank borrowing of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

On 22 July 2020, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party to acquire 51% equity
interest in Wuhan Desheng Meimei Health Management Co., Ltd.
(“Desheng Meimei”), a company incorporated in the PRC with
the consideration of RMB3,400,000. Desheng Meimei is engaged
in the provision of postpartum care services in the PRC. The
acquisition was completed in August 2020.

Under the sales and purchase agreement, Desheng Meimei would
have to achieve yearly financial performance targets starting from
acquisition date to 31 December 2023, which are profit after tax
of RMB1,500,000, RMB1,200,000 and RMB1,300,000 for period
from the acquisition date to 31 December 2021, year ending 31
December 2022 and year ending 31 December 2023 respectively.

On 27 November 2020, the Group entered into the equity transfer
agreement with independent third parties to purchase the entire
equity interest in Guangzhou Sheng Cheng Dunnan Enterprise
Limited (“Sheng Cheng”), a limited liability
company incorporated in the PRC, with the consideration of

Management Co.,

RMB31 million. Sheng Cheng and its subsidiaries are engaged in
the provision of postpartum care services in the PRC. The equity
was transferred in February 2021. Details of the acquisition are
set out in the Company’s announcement and circular dated 27

November 2020 and 23 December 2020 respectively.

On 4 December 2020, the Group entered into the equity transfer
agreement with independent third parties to purchase 54% of
equity share of Wuhan Jiaenbei Health Management Co. Ltd.
(“Jiaenbei”), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC
with consideration of RMB3.24 million. Jiaenbei is engaged in
provision of postpartum care service in the PRC. The equity was
transferred in January 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Save as the above, the Group did not have other significant
investment, material acquisition nor disposal of subsidiaries and
affiliated companies during the year ended 31 December 2020.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have
other future plans for material investments or capital assets.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (2019: Nil).

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 102 employees (2019: 56
employees) with total staff cost of approximately RMB15.8 million
incurred for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: RMB15.1
million). The employees retirement benefit expense incurred during
the year ended 31 December 2020 was approximately RMBO.1
million (2019: RMBO0.8 million). As required by the applicable laws
and regulations, the Group participates in various employee social
security plans for our employees that are administered by local
government. The Group’s remuneration policy rewards employees
and Directors based on individual performance, demonstrated
capabilities, involvement, market comparable information and the
performance of the Group. The Group improves the professional
skills and management level of its employees through internal and
external training. To ensure that the Group attracts and retains
competent staff, remuneration packages are reviewed on a regular
basis. Performance bonuses are offered to qualified employees
based on individual and the Group's performance. The Group did
not experience any material labour disputes during the year ended
31 December 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES EXFBEEHBRERERZLI

WITH ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS

Ly

The following is a comparison of the Group’s business objectives as UMTABRERMBAEECE£HERHA
set out in the Prospectus with the Group’s actual business progress AEFE LTHBPEEE S-S+

for the period from the Listing Date up to 31 December 2020: B=+—HEBZEREFHERILKR

Business objectives as set out Actual business progress for the period from the

in the Prospectus Listing Date up to 31 December 2020
BLHHEEE_S_FF+-_HA=+—HHMEZ

BREEMBZEHER BEREBER

Further strengthen our market position and -
expand our business in our target industries
in the PRC
— 25 AN5R TP BY 7 35 3 (07 3t 458 78 3R AP
EHREBERITERNER —

The Group has injected capital of RMB40.4 million in aggregate
from the proceeds of Share Offer (defined below) to the
existing finance leasing business in the PRC printing and
logistics industries

AEBEBRMHEE (EERTX) ZPERIEMR TR EENRI K
MRITENREMEEEXEHIEGHARK4W04EETT

The Group had set up a northern PRC operation center in
Beijing, an eastern PRC operation center in Hangzhou, a
western PRC operation center in Chengdu and a central PRC
operation center in Wuhan
AEEBTEILRFIULABICEEE PO FRFTINER L B R 5
BEAL NAEHRIIPEAEERESEROURNEER LA
REEEFR O

The Group has recruited several talented and professional
personnel to handle the expansion of business

AEBEEBETATEZEEZABURGESLER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business objectives as set out
in the Prospectus

BREEFA#EZEZHER

EEEw RO

Actual business progress for the period from the
Listing Date up to 31 December 2020
BLHHEEE_S_FF+_-_HA=+—HHHEZ
BREBER

Further strengthen our risk management
capabilities and enhance our OA system
E—H MR R E IR RIEA A

HIOAR 4R

Explore our new target industries for strategic
development in the PRC
EHRERRMBERITRETREERE

OA System was upgraded to closely monitor our customers’
business operations and financial performance
OARMEIEAUBYIBERER ZEBEERUBRIER

The Group has provided training to the staff to enhance the
knowledge in risk management
REBE B R B TIRMIEINLOYE 58 & b & 12 A3

The Group provided finance leasing services to over 900
customers in the new medical device industry

FAEECHBREMBREMTERTFIREREREES

The Group has provided training to employees in relation to
the new medical device industry and the knowledge in risk
management relevant to this industry
FEFEERBIRESATBEREMTENZI U REZIT
F AR E e B A
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

The Shares were listed on GEM on 9 July 2018 (the “Share
Offer”). The actual net proceeds from the Share Offer, after
deducting commissions and expenses borne by the Company in
connection with the Share Offer, were approximately HK$45.6
million (the “Actual Net Proceeds”), which were lower than the
estimated figure as stated in the Prospectus. Thus, the Company
applied the Actual Net Proceeds on the same implementation
plans as disclosed under the section read “Future Plans and Use
of Proceeds” in the Prospectus but with monetary adjustments to
each implementation plans on a pro-rata basis. The table below
sets out the adjusted allocation and the actual usage of the Actual
Net Proceeds up to 31 December 2020.

EHFRIRIERAR
BRHNRZFE—-N\FLBNBEGM L (M5
MBEE) RNZENBRMENIEFE
(BT ARMBRMDFEERENAER
f32) M7m45.6 A8 BT ((BRASMIER
B LREREREMEMGHT AL
AABRBRASREFEBANBRER
MR B RFIISRIER R — PR EER
BB MatE > BIRLEPIRER BT3P
hEBE e TRBVNEE_Z_ZTHF+_A
Z+—HERMAEREZENEHAEDR
BAKREERBRE-

Unused
balance
of the Actual

Unused
balance
of the Actual

Adjusted Actual Net Proceeds Used during Net Proceeds
allocation of usage of as at year ended as at
the Actual the Actual 1 January 31 December 31 December
Net Proceeds Net Proceeds 2020 2020 2020
e 23 #HE RIBZRE
—A—H k- k-3 +-B=+-H
BRAERE BERAERE ERFMERE +-B=+-H BRAME
BB BB BEZ LEE REFRBEZ
Use of proceed Fr§RERR TREARAR L3 KB BLER BARE KB BER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TERT TET TET TET
Developing the Group's existing & EAREBETEENR K
finance lease business in the YIRITER
PRC printing and logistics RAMEREEH
industries 40,402 40,402 - - -
Expanding the Group's business £ BB A EEE
in these two industries in FiRmETENER
China 3,146 2,087 1,059 1,059 -
Exploring the new target AREEREREER
industries for the Group's RAMENERTE
finance leasing business 1,003 660 343 343 -
General working capital —REEES 1,049 1,049 - - -
45,600 44,198 1,402 1,402 -

For the year ended 31 December 2020, an additional Actual Net
Proceeds of approximately RMB1.4 million (2019: RMB2.0 million)
were used. As at 31 December 2020, all the Actual Net Proceeds
had been fully utilized in accordance with the aforementioned
manner.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Junshen (“Mr. Zhang”) aged 34, was appointed
as a Director on 28 October 2016 and was redesignated as
Executive Director on 13 January 2017. He is also the chairman
of the Board, the chief executive officer, the chairman of the
nomination committee, the compliance officer and the director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He is responsible for
strategic planning, operation planning and overall management
of the Group. Mr. Zhang is vice president of Shenzhen Federation
of Young Entrepreneurs*, a committee member of the Eighth
Committee of Shenzhen Federation of Youth* and a member of the
People's Congress Legal Work Committee of Futian District, and
he was elected in 2015 as a deputy to the Sixth Municipal People’s
Congress of Shenzhen*. Mr. Zhang has approximately ten years of
experience in general corporate management and approximately
five years of experience in finance leasing industry. Mr. Zhang is the
elder brother of Mr. Zhang Junwei.

Mr. Zhang graduated from the University of Texas at Arlington
in the United States with an executive master of business
administration degree in December 2014.

Mr. Zhang Junwei, aged 33, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director on 13 January 2017 and was redesignated as our Executive
Director on 9 November 2018. He is also a member of the
remuneration committee and the director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. He is responsible for the overall business operation,
business development and overall management of the Group.
Mr. Zhang Junwei has approximately ten years of experience in
general corporate management and investments. Mr. Zhang Junwei
conducts review on the risk management policies and measures
and oversees the relevant implementation conducted by different
departments. Mr. Zhang Junwei is the younger brother of Mr.
Zhang.

Mr. Zhang Junwei obtained a diploma in industrial and operations
management from Republic Polytechnic in Singapore in May 2011.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERCHREEBREHRS

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lyu Di (“Mr. Lyu”), aged 34, was appointed as our Non-
executive Director on 15 August 2019. He is also a member of
our audit committee. He is responsible for the project investments
and capital market operations of our Group. Mr. Lyu has over
seven years of experience in investments and capital market.
From December 2014 to May 2019, Mr. Lyu worked at Shenzhen
Qianhai Black Swan Asset Management Company Limited with
his last position as fund manager. He worked at Huatai Jinkong
Investment Consulting (Shenzhen) Co Ltd* from October 2013 to
November 2014 with his last position as an analyst and he was also
a representative in Type 4 (advising on securities) regulated activity
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFO") at Huatai Financial Holdings (Hong Kong)
Limited from March 2014 to November 2014.

Mr. Lyu graduated from Deakin University with a Bachelor of
Commerce degree, majoring in finance in October 2010. He further
obtained a Master of Commerce degree majoring in finance and
banking from the University of Sydney in October 2012.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Chan Chi Fung Leo (“Mr. Chan”), aged 42, was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director on 12 June 2018. He
is also the chairman of the audit committee and a member of the
nomination committee and remuneration committee. Mr. Chan
is responsible for providing independent advice to our Board. Mr.
Chan has over 15 years of experience in finance and accounting
industry. He also has extensive knowledge and expertise on capital
markets transactions (such as initial public offerings, and merger
and acquisitions). Since October 2017, Mr. Chan has been the
responsible officer and managing director of Red Solar Capital
Limited, a company providing advisory services on corporate
finance. From May 2016 to October 2017, Mr. Chan was the
managing director of LY Capital Limited. Since August 2017, Mr.
Chan has been an independent non-executive director of Sisram
Medical Ltd, the shares of which is listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1696). Since October 2020, Mr. Chan
has also been an independent non-executive director of Jinke Smart
Services Group Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 9666).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan obtained his bachelor’s degree in business administration
from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in Hong
Kong in November 2001. Mr. Chan has been a member of HKICPA
since October 2005.

Mr. Chow Siu Hang (“Mr. Chow"), aged 44, was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director on 12 June 2018. Mr.
Chow is responsible for providing independent advice to our Board.
Mr. Chow has more than 20 years of experience in finance and
accounting industry. He also has extensive knowledge and expertise
on capital market transactions including initial public offerings,
financial advisory, and merger and acquisitions. All his experience
in the corporate finance market and investment banking enables
him to support the Group’s operations through providing advice
on funding solutions and their intended applications, and to
assist the Group in formulating our overall business strategies and
development plan. Since May 2020, Mr. Chow has been the CEO
and Head of Investment Banking at Eddid Capital Limited. From
April 2018 to April 2020, Mr. Chow was the managing director
of Essence Corporate Finance (Hong Kong) Limited. Mr. Chow
also worked at Celestial Capital Limited and his last position was
managing director and head of investment banking group. Since
October 2019, Mr. Chow has been an independent non-executive
director of Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd., the shares of which is
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1922).

Mr. Chow has been a fellow member of HKICPA and the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Chow obtained
his bachelor’s degree in accountancy from the City University of
Hong Kong in November 1998.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERCHREEBREHRS

Mr. Zhang Yong, aged 35, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 1 June 2020. He is also the chairman
of the remuneration committee, a member of each of the Audit
Committee and the nomination committee. Mr. Zhang Yong is
responsible for providing independent advice to the Board. Mr.
Zhang Yong has over five years of experience in investments and
capital market management. Since March 2020, Mr. Zhang served
as a president of Shenzhen Futian District Economic Promotion
Association. From March 2017 to March 2020, Mr. Zhang Yong
worked for China Merchants Shekou Industrial Zone Holding Co.,
Ltd, a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock
code: 001979) and his last position held was as research director.
From March 2016 to March 2017, Mr. Zhang Yong was the
manager of the planning division and served as the secretary to the
chief executive within the communications and finance business
department of Ping An Bank. From March 2014 to March 2016,
Mr. Zhang Yong worked at Shenzhen Futian District Economic
Promotion Bureau* (ZE3JIT5 %8 H & &K R # /) and his last position
held was as section chief.

Mr. Zhang Yong obtained a bachelor degree in management
majoring in accounting, from Southwest University in the PRC
in 2009; and a doctorate degree in economics, majoring in
regional economics, from Southwestern University of Finance and
Economics in 2014.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Li Xiangying (“Ms. Li”), aged 44, is the joint chief financial
officer of the Group. Ms. Li joined the Group in September
2014 and worked as the chief financial officer of Ziyuanyuan
(Shenzhen) International Finance Leasing Company Limited (“ZYY
Finance Leasing”). She is responsible for overseeing the financial
management, internal audit, cost control, budgeting and other
finance-related matters of the Group.

Ms. Li has over 20 years of experience in the finance and
accounting industry. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Li worked as
the chief financial officer of Shenzhen Suhao from September 2013
to August 2014. From August 1994 to August 2013, Ms. Li worked
at Shenzhen Pengcheng Accountant* and her last position was a
project manager.

Ms. Li obtained a diploma in electronic data processing accounting
from Hengyang Finance and Industry Polytechnic Institute in the

PRC in June 2011.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wong Kwok San (“Mr. Wong”), aged 39, is the joint chief
financial officer and joint company secretary of the Group. Mr.
Wong joined the Group in September 2018 and is primarily
responsible for overseeing financial reporting, investor relations,
statutory compliance and corporate governance of the Group. Mr.
Wong has over 15 years of experience in auditing and accounting
fields. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wong served as the financial
controller of a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange from October 2014 to July 2018. From October 2007 to
April 2014, Mr. Wong worked for Grant Thornton (later known as
JBPB & Company) and then transferred to BDO Limited with his last
position as manager.

Mr. Wong is currently a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) of
the HKICPA and obtained a bachelor of business administration
degree in accounting from Lingnan University in November 2003.
He also completed a programme in EMBA and obtained a master’s
degree in Business Administration from The Chinese University of
Hong Kong in November 2020.

Mr. Mou Peng (“Mr. Mou”), aged 40, is the deputy general
manager and risk director of the Group. He joined the Group in
May 2014 as the deputy general manager and head of the risk
management department of ZYY Finance Leasing. He is responsible
for overseeing customer due diligence and credit assessment,
supervising post-drawdown performance, and formulating risk
management policies and rules of the Group.

Mr. Mou has over nine years of working experience in risk
management. From April 2013 to January 2014, Mr. Mou was the
project director at Shenzhen Zhongxing Supply Chain Management
Limited*. From March 2012 to January 2013, Mr. Mou served as
manager of the integrated management department at Eternal Asia
Supply Chain Management Ltd*, a company listed on Shanghai
Stock Exchange (stock code: 002183). In January 2008, Mr. Mou
started to work at Shenzhen Branch of the Postal Savings Bank of
China Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1658) (the “"PSBOC SZ Branch”). In November 2009, he was
promoted to the deputy head of the credit and loan department of
the Xinan Division of the PSBOC SZ Branch, and later left PSBOC SZ
Branch in February 2012.

Mr. Mou obtained a bachelor of business administration degree
from Wuhan University in the PRC in June 2004.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERCHREEBREHRS

Mr. Du Dejun (“Mr. Du”), aged 35, is the deputy general
manager and the business development director of the Group.
He joined the Group in 10 August 2014 as project assistant of
ZYY Finance Leasing. He is responsible for assisting the Group’s
business development manager in the supervision of our business
development department.

Mr. Du has approximately eight years of experience in sales and
marketing and business development. From December 2013
to June 2014, he worked as an assistant consultant at Qianhai
Equity Exchange (Shenzhen) Company Limited, a regional equity
market operator and an equity and debt financing platform for
SMEs. From December 2012 to May 2013, he worked at Shenzhen
Lingjin Culture Communication Co. Ltd.* (“Lingjin"”) as a business
manager of its sales team. From April 2012 to November 2012,
Mr. Du worked at Shenzhen Linghang Financial Management
Consultancy Co. Ltd*, an associated company of Lingjin. From
January 2010 to March 2012, Mr. Du worked as a client manager
at Shenzhen Yazi Advertising Co. Ltd*.

Mr. Du graduated from East China University of Technology, the
PRC with a bachelor’s degree in software engineering in July 2009.
He also completed the advanced training course for specialised
talents* in finance at the School of Economics, Peking University,
the PRC in July 2017.

*  For identification purpose only
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board hereby presents this Corporate Governance Report in the
Company’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company acknowledges the important roles of its Board
in providing effective leadership and direction to the Group's
business, and ensuring transparency and accountability of the
Company’s operations. The Board sets appropriate policies and
implements corporate governance practices appropriate to the
conduct and growth of the Group’s business.

The Company has applied the principles and code provisions as
set out in Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the “CG Code”) as contained in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules. For the year ended 31 December 2020 (the
“Reporting Period”), the Company adopted and complied with,
where applicable, the CG Code to ensure that the Group’s business
activities and decision making processes are regulated in a proper
and prudent manner.

In the opinion of the Board, other than the deviation from code
provision A.2.1, the Company complied with the provisions of the
CG Code as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules during
the Reporting Period. Key corporate governance principles and
practices of the Company are summarised below.

A. THE BOARD

A.1 Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility
for promoting the success of the Company by providing
effective leadership and direction to its business,
and ensuring transparency and accountability of its
operations. The Board reserves its decisions for all major
matters of the Company, including the approval and
monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies and
budgets, internal control systems, risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that
may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
change of Directors, ad hoc projects and other
significant financial and operational matters. The Board
has the full support of the management to discharge its
responsibilities.
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EXELARS

The day to day management, administration and
operation of the Company are delegated to executive
Directors and the senior management. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to
any significant transactions entered into by the above
mentioned officers. All Directors have full and timely
access to all relevant information of the Company,
with a view to ensure that Board procedures and all
applicable rules and regulations in Cayman Islands and
Hong Kong are followed. Each Director is normally able
to seek independent advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company'’s expense, upon making request to the
Board.

In addition, the Board has also delegated various
responsibilities to the board committees of the
Company. Further details of the board committees of
the Company are set out below in this report.

The Board is also responsible for, among others,
performing the corporate governance duties as set out
in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code, which
include:

- to develop and review the Group's policies and
practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations;

- to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and
senior management;

- review and monitor the Group's policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

- to develop, review and monitor the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable
to the Directors and employees; and
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

- to review the Group’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the corporate governance
report.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability
insurance coverage for all the Directors, including
company securities, employment practices, regulatory
crisis event, investigation, litigation, tax liabilities and
public relation, etc., which is to be reviewed by the
Board on a regular basis.

The Board has delegated day-to-day operation
responsibility to the management of the Company
under the supervision of the executive Directors and
various Board committees. The delegated functions and
responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entering into by the foregoing
officers and senior management.

Board Composition

The Board comprised the following Directors during the
year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of
this annual report:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zhang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhang Junwei

Non-executive Director
Mr. Lyu

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan

Mr. Chow

Mr. Zhang Yong (appointed on 1 June 2020)

Mr. Li Zhensheng (“Mr. Li")
(resigned on 1 June 2020)

A.2
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The nomination committee of the Company (the
“"Nomination Committee” or “"NC”) ensures the
composition of the Board constitutes a balance of
skills, experiences, qualifications and diversity of
perspective appropriate to the requirements of the
business and development of the Company. The
current Board composition of two executive Directors,
one non-executive Director and three independent
non executive Directors (the “INEDs”) can effectively
exercise independent judgment. The list of all Directors
(by category) is set out under the section headed
“Corporate Information” in this annual report and is
also disclosed in all corporate communications issued
by the Company pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules
from time to time. The INEDs are expressly identified in
all corporate communications of the Company. Except
Mr. Zhang Junwei is the brother of Mr. Zhang, there
is no relationship (including financial, business, family
or other material or relevant relationships) between
the Board members, and in particular, between the
Chairman and the Chief Executive.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board
has at all times met the requirements of the GEM Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
INEDs with at least one of them possessing appropriate
professional qualifications and accounting and related
financial management expertise as required under the
GEM Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The participation of INEDs in the Board brings a diverse
range of expertise, skills and independent judgment on
issues relating to the Group's strategies, performance,
conflicts of interests and management process to ensure
that the interests of all Shareholders of the Company
have been duly considered. Each of the INED has
confirmed in writing his independence to the Company
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and the
Board considers that all the INEDs are independent.

There is a balance of skills and experience for the
Board, which is appropriate for the requirements
of the business of the Company. The Directors’
biographical information is set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors” of this annual report.

Save as elsewhere disclosed in this annual report, the
Board members has no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with each other.

The list of current Directors (by category) is also
disclosed in this annual report and all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the
GEM Listing Rules from time to time. The Company also
maintains on its website (www.ziyygroup.com) and on
the GEM's website (www.hkgem.com) an updated list of
current Directors (by category) identifying their roles and
functions.
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A.3 Chairman and Chief Executive

The Company had complied with the code provisions in
the CG Code.

Mr. Zhang is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
and is responsible for major decision-making and
implementation of business strategies of the Group. The
Chairman also takes the lead to ensure that the Board
works effectively and acts in the best interest of the
Company by encouraging the Directors to make active
contributions to Board's affairs and promoting a culture
of openness and debate.

Code Deviation

In accordance with the code provision A.2.1 of the
CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The Board is of the view that
although Mr. Zhang is the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, this structure will not impair
the balance of power and authority between the Board
and the management of the Company. The balance
of power and authority is ensured by the operations
of the Board, which comprises experienced and high
caliber individuals and meets regularly to discuss
issues affecting operations of the Company. The Board
believes that this structure is conducive to strong and
consistent leadership, enabling the Group to make
and implement decisions promptly and efficiently. The
Board has full confidence in Mr. Zhang and believes that
his appointment to the posts of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer is beneficial to the business prospects
of the Company.
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A.4 Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for an initial term
of three (3) years unless terminated by either party by
giving at least three (3) month’s written notice to the
other. The non-executive Director and each of the INEDs
has respectively entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for an initial term of three (3) years
unless terminated by either party by giving at least three
(3) month’s written notice to the other.

Pursuant to the Article 112 of the Articles of
Association, all the Directors appointed by the Board
to fill casual vacancy shall hold office only until the
next following general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election at such
meeting, therefore, all current Directors will retire at
the conclusion of 2021 AGM and be eligible to offer
themselves for re-election at the 2021 AGM. The Board
and the Nomination Committee of the Company has
recommended the re-election of all the retiring Directors
standing for re-election at the 2021 AGM.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-
election and removal of Directors are laid down in the
Articles of Association. The Company has established a
Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee and
its primary functions are to make recommendations to
the Board regarding candidates to fill vacancies on the
Board and policies/practices on corporate governance
of the Group. Details of the Nomination and Corporate
Governance Committee and its work performed are set
out in the “Board Committees” section below.
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A.5

Induction and Continuous Professional
Development for Directors

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5 of CG Code, all
Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills as to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant.

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on the first occasion
of his appointment, so as to ensure that he has
appropriate understanding of the Group structure,
Board and Board Committees meetings procedures,
business, management and operations of the Company,
etc. and that he is fully aware of his responsibilities
and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements in the Cayman Islands
and Hong Kong. During the year, all the Directors
participated in the induction program regarding
directors’ responsibilities and obligations under the GEM
Listing Rules conducted by the Company’s legal adviser,
which covered, among other topics, the CG Code, GEM
Listing Rules and directors’ continuing obligations.

All Directors are continually updated with legal and
regulatory developments, and the business and
market changes to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities.

ZIYUANYUAN HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

A5 EENABBRAFEEREE

RFEEERTTRIFEE
AbSIF EREFESHUKER
FUER UERKREHEMB R
R UMBFREEENBERLT
HEFSFHERERM-

BLMEZENEFHEEERE
REEREZEE - EXARASH
0 5% B9 A BB R ¥R > LUBRE (R IR ¥ s
EENRBE - EFTEREFES
EEEEF - EARIMNEH B
BEREESEBEEER TRMRF
B2 HBHNGEM MR AN
RRASEEREBHEBEERTE
THEEREH -FAR 2RE
E2HEBR AT ERBEBRME
BRESENGEMLEHRAETH
BEEAREBHOABBRGE N
AHE HPEE CEEAT
A GEMEH R REFFE
sffe

ERESFHEZERTIERK
EERTEER U THENER
RHHBEE UEBITRENE

Ho



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

According to the records maintained by the Company,
the Directors received the following training regarding
roles, function and duties of a director of a listed
company or professional skills in compliance with
the new requirement of the CG Code on continuous
professional development during the year and up to the
date of this annual report:

EEERERS

BEXARATDFEZSHR RLES
BREAFRAMP[ EFE
REXEATINERFTEERES
RZMRE BEUTABLD
NABRZAB - BEABENR
FEREZEI

Attending seminars/
induction training/
reading materials

HERSE
N 31 e
BB
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Zhang (Chairman and SR ( FRERITEAER)

Chief Executive Officer) v/
Mr. Zhang Junwei SRERELES 4
Non-executive Director EHITESE
Mr. Lyu =254 v
Independent Non-executive Directors BIEHITES
Mr. Chan e 4
Mr. Chow BfE 4
Mr. Zhang Yong (appointed on 1 June 2020) 3EE&E (KRB -BF

NA—BEEMD 4
Mr. Li (resigned on 1 June 2020) A (
NA—B#HE) 4

Besides, the Company keeps circulating information and
materials to develop and refresh Directors’ knowledge
and skills from time to time. All the information and
materials are relevant to the Group’s business, the
economy, corporate governance, rules and regulations,
accounting, financial or professional skills and/or
directors’ duties and responsibilities. There are also
arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing
and professional development to each Director. All
Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training
courses at the Company’s expense. The company
secretary is responsible to keep records of training taken
by each Director.
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A.6 Board Meetings
A.6.1 Board Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Pursuant to Code Provision A.1.1 of the CG
Code, the Board should meet regularly and Board
meetings should be held at least four times a year
for reviewing and approving financial statements,
operating performance, budgets, rules and
regulations, announcements and circulars issued
by the Company and considering and approving
the progress of the various on going projects, the
overall strategies and policies of the Company.
Additional meetings would be arranged if and
when required. Annual meeting schedules of each
meeting of the Board and for the audit committee,
nomination committee and remuneration
committee of the Company (the “Committees”)
are normally made available to Directors and
members in advance. Board members are provided
with all agenda and adequate information for
their review at least 14 days before the meetings.
The Board and Board Committees members are
supplied with comprehensive meeting papers and
relevant materials within a reasonable period of
time in advance of the intended meeting date
(in any event no less than 3 days before the date
of the meeting). All Directors and the Board
Committees members are given opportunities to
include matters in the agenda for regular Board
and Board Committees meetings and/or their
meetings, if required. To facilitate the decision
making process, the Directors and the Board
Committees members are free to have access
to the management for enquiries and to obtain
further information, when required.
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After the meeting, draft minutes are circulated
to all Directors and Committees’ members for
comments. Minutes of Board meetings and
meetings of Board Committees are kept by the
company secretary and are available for inspection
by the Directors at all times.

Directors may participate in meetings either
in person or through electronic means of
communications. Directors are free to contribute
and share their views at meetings and major
decisions will only be taken after deliberation at
Board meetings. Directors who are considered to
have conflict of interests or material interests in
the proposed transactions or issues to be discussed
will not be counted in the quorum of meeting
and will abstain from voting on the relevant
resolutions.

Directors’ Attendance Records

The Board meets regularly for reviewing
and approving the financial and operating
performance, and considering and approving the
overall strategies and policies of the Company.
Additional meetings are held when significant
events or important issues are required to be
discussed and resolved.
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RER BEFETEH/NEGR
EREFEITZH-BZEFZ

HEBRAOT

During the year, the Board convened eight (8) full
Board meetings. The attendance of each Director is
as follows:

Number of meetings attended/eligible to attend

L/ AEREREEERY
Board RC AC NC
Bz¢ nWzsE BRZEE RLZEE
Executive Directors BiTER
Mr. Zhang (Chairman and RE4E EFRRAOBER)

Chief Executive Officer) 8/8 N/A R NA FEH 11
Mr. Zhang Junwei REBTE 8/8 17 N/A FEH NA T B
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Lyu BRE 8/8 N/A T 5/5 NA T B
Independent Non-executive BUERTES

Directors
Mr. Chan BREE 8/8 1” 5/5 "
Mr. Chow Ax4E 8/8 NA R @R N/A RiBFR N/A T B
Mr. Zhang Yong RELE (RZZZZE

(appointed on 1 June 2020) ~NA—BEZA) 6/6 N/A T 33 NA REH
Mr. Li FRE(RZBCE

(resigned on 1 June 2020) ANE—HEHE) b)) 17 0 i

Apart from the said meetings, matters requiring
Board approval were arranged by means of
circulation of written resolutions of all Board
members.

All business transacted at the Board meetings and
by written resolutions were well-documented.
Minutes of the Board meetings and written
resolutions are kept by the Company and are
available to all Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board Committees, namely,
the audit committee (“Audit Committee” or "AC"), the
remuneration committee (“Remuneration Committee”
or "RC") and the Nomination Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
Committees have been established with defined written
terms of reference, which are posted on the GEM's website
at www.hkgem.com and the Company’s website at www.
ziyygroup.com. All the Board Committees should report to
the Board on their decisions or recommendations made.
The practices, procedures and arrangements in conducting
meetings of Board Committees follow in line with, so far as
practicable, those of the Board meetings set out above.

All Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources
to perform their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstance, at the Company’s expense.

B.1 Remuneration Committee

The Company established the RC pursuant to a
resolution of passed on 12 June 2018 in compliance
with Rule 5.34 of the GEM Listing Rules with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.
The primary functions of the RC are to (i) make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
packages of the Directors and senior management of
the Group, (ii) review performance based remuneration
and (iii) ensure none of the Directors determine their
own remuneration.

The RC comprises a total of three members, namely, Mr.
Zhang Yong, Mr. Zhang Junwei and Mr. Chan.
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Pursuant to the code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code,
the remuneration of the members of the Board and
the senior management by band for the year ended 31
December 2020 is set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Details of the remuneration of each Director and the
five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set
out in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

The members of the RC should meet at least once a
year. During the year and up to the date of this annual
report, the individual attendance records of the each
Director at the meeting of the RC is set out on page 38
of this annual report.

Set out below is a summary of the work and related
tasks performed by the RC during the year:

- reviewed the summary of remuneration package
paid to each Directors and senior management of
the Company;

- studied the current remuneration package,
policy and structure of all Directors (including
appointment(s), resignation(s) and retirement(s)
during the year);
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- proposed remuneration packages with reference
to the duties and responsibilities of Directors,
business performance and profitability of the
Group and market conditions, the corporate
objective and goal set by the Board and a report
of salaries paid by the comparable companies to
directors and senior management; and

- reviewed the procedures of remuneration
policy, procedures and structure for fixing the
remuneration packages.

B.2 Audit Committee

The AC currently consists of three independent non-—
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan, Mr. Lyu and Mr.
Zhang Yong. Mr. Chan currently serves as the chairman
of the AC, who holds the appropriate professional
qualifications as required under Rules 5.05(2) and 5.28
of the GEM Listing Rules.

The primary duties of the AC are mainly to review the
financial information and reporting process, internal
control procedures and risk management system,
audit plan and relationship with external auditors and
arrangements to enable employees of the Company
to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters of the Company.

The members of the AC should meet not less than twice
a year to consider interim report and annual report
prepared by the Board and meet the external auditors
at least twice a year. During the year and up to the date
of this annual report, the individual attendance records
of each Director at the meeting of the AC is set out on
page 38 of this annual report.
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B.3

During the year, the AC met 5 times and performed the
following major tasks:

- Review and discussion of the quarterly, interim and
annual financial statements, results announcements
and reports, the related accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and the relevant
audit findings;

- Review and discussion of the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control system of
the Group;

- Review the internal control reports submitted by
the internal audit department of the Group; and

- Discussion and recommendation of the re-
appointment of external auditor.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the fee paid/
payable to auditors in respect of audit service and/or
non-audit services provided by the auditors to the Group
were as follows:

RER BREZEGTRTRE
B METUTEERTE:

- EBRAkIRTE -THKRE
EMHERE FERASTRER
S AEBERMZAERE S
JR B R 1B 5 LU 48 A &8 1%
B

- REkIwEIEERZAR
EERABEESEZMN
M

- BRAEBERIESER
BN EERRE 5 &

- AmkEZREBINEBEZHE
ik

BE_Z_THF+_A=+—H
IEFE o BB A A R 1t
Z IR K HIFZBUARFE T
BN EAZEEZERMT

RMB'000
Nature of services R#EME AR¥TF T
Audit services EIZRTE 871
Interim review P HAEE B 335
Major transaction B2 5 578
Nomination Committee B3 IR%ZEEY

The principal duties of the Nomination and Corporate
Governance Committee are to (i) review the Board
composition; (ii) develop and formulate relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of
directors; (iii) identify qualified individuals to become
members of the Board; (iv) monitor the appointment
and succession planning of directors; and (v) assess the
independence of INEDs.
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The NC consists of one executive Director, and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhang,
Mr. Chan and Mr. Zhang Yong. Mr. Zhang currently
serves as the chairman of the NC.

The Company adopted a board diversity policy which
sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board,
the summary of which are set out below:

- With a view to achieving a sustainable and
balanced development, the Company sees
increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment
of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development;

- In designing the Board’s composition, Board
diversity has been considered from a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service; and

- All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The members of the NC should meet at least once
a year where appointment of the Directors will be
considered. During the year and up to the date of this
annual report, the individual attendance records of the
each Nomination Committees at the meeting of the NC
is set out on page 38 of this annual report.

The principal duties of the NC are to (i) review the
Board composition; (ii) develop and formulate relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of
directors; (iii) identify qualified individuals to become
members of the Board; (iv) monitor the appointment
and succession planning of directors; and (v) assess the
independence of INEDs.
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Up to the date of this annual report, the NC met once
and performed the following major tasks:

Review and discussion of the existing structure,
size and composition of the Board to ensure that
it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements for the business of
the Group;

Assessment of the independence of the existing
INEDs;

Recommendation on the re-appointment of
retiring Directors at the AGM pursuant to the
Articles of Association;

Review and development of the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance
and make recommendations to the board;

Review and monitoring of the training and
continuous professional development of directors
and senior management;

Review and monitoring of the Company’'s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements;

Review and monitoring of the code of conduct
applicable to employees and directors; and

Review of the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

ZIYUANYUAN HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

E%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%’ﬁ%ééﬁ
T—REF O WETUTEE
fE:

B R REFTREZ
R NBURARL  FERE
REEEEREHTERZ
RN BAE R A B AT EY
B

SMLIREBUFRITES
ZBu;

REAGREEMANKRE
BFRELUEMZER
FEFRHEBRSE

Bt RBIERAT 2k F
ERABRRARER LAES
SIEHHEEER

BRREREFEheRE
BEZBIIRGFEERS
& ;

B REREAABDEET
FRKREEREZBERR
B

B RERBAREER
EFZOATRL R

BN ETLEER
SFRHIZBERERREEEAR
WEZHEEZE.



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPLIANCE ADVISER

In accordance with Rule 6A.19 of the GEM Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed Guoyuan Capital (Hong Kong)
Limited as its compliance adviser. Pursuant to Rule 6A.23 of

the GEM Listing Rules, the Company will consult with and, if

necessary, seek advice from its compliance adviser on a timely

basis in the following circumstances:

before the publication of any regulatory announcement,
circular or financial report;

where a transaction, which might be a notifiable or
connected transaction, is contemplated, including share
issues and share repurchases;

where the Company proposes to use the proceeds of
the initial public offering in a manner different from
that detailed in the prospectus or where the business
activities, developments or results of the Company
deviate from any forecast, estimate or other information
in the Prospectus; and

where the Stock Exchange makes an inquiry of the
Company under Rule 17.11 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The term of appointment of the compliance adviser of the

Company shall commence on the Listing Date and end on the

date on which the Company complies with Rule 18.03 of the

GEM Listing Rules in respect of the financial results for the

second full financial year commencing after the Listing Date

or until the agreement is terminated, whichever is earlier.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Company Secretary supports the Board by ensuring
good information flow within the Board and that the
Board policy and procedures are followed. The Company
Secretary is responsible for advising the Board on the
corporate governance matters and facilitating induction and
professional development of the Directors. All Directors have
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary
to ensure that the Board procedures and all applicable laws,
rules and regulations, are followed.

Mr. Wong Kwok San and Ms. Li Xinpei were appointed as
the Joint Company Secretaries of the Group on 28 August
2018 and 13 January 2017 respectively. Both Mr. Wong Kwok
San and Ms. Li Xinpei have complied with all the required
qualifications, experiences and training requirements under
the GEM Listing Rules. For the year ended 31 December
2020, both of Mr. Wong Kwok San and Ms. Li Xinpei
complied with the GEM Listing Rules by taking not less than
15 hours of relevant professional training.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020, which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs, results and cash flows of the
Group and are in compliance with the relevant accounting
standards and principles, applicable laws and disclosure
provisions required of the GEM Listing Rules.

As at 31 December 2020, the Board was not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
might cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Therefore the Directors continue
to adopt the going concern approach in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.

The responsibilities of the Group’s external auditors, BDO
Limited, on the Company’s consolidated financial statements
are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 98
to 105 of this Annual Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

A nomination and corporate governance committee has
been established and the Board is responsible for performing
the corporate governance functions such as developing
and reviewing the Company’s policies, practices on
corporate governance, training and continuous professional
development of the directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, etc.

The Directors will review the Group's corporate governance
policies and compliance with CG Code each financial year
and comply with the “comply or explain” principle in the
corporate governance report which will be included in the
annual reports after the Listing.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the rules set out in Rules 5.48
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the code for dealing in
securities of the Company by the Directors (the “Required
Standard”). Having made specific enquiry, all the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Required
Standard during the Reporting Period.

In addition, the Company has also adopted provisions of
the Required Standard as written guidelines for relevant
employees in respect of their dealings in the securities of
the Company. Such relevant employees did and would abide
by the provisions of the Required Standard. Besides, the
Company has adopted internal control policy in relation to
the disclosure of inside information of the Company (the
“Inside Information Policy”).

No incident of non compliance of the Required Standard and/
or the Inside Information Policy by such relevant employees
was noted by the Company from the Listing Date up to the
date of this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for the establishment,
maintenance and review of the Group’s internal control
system to safeguard the assets of the Group and shareholder
investments. The internal control system of the Group aims
to facilitate effective and efficient operation which in turn
minimises the risks to which the Group is exposed. The system
can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against misstatement or losses.

The Board has conducted a review of the implemented
system and procedures, covering financial, operational and
legal compliance controls and risk management functions.
The Directors consider that the Group has implemented
appropriate procedures for safeguarding the Group’s assets
against unauthorised use or misappropriation, maintaining
proper accounting records, segregation of duties and putting
plans and routines into execution with appropriate authority
and in compliance with the relevant laws and regulations.

The Company has an internal audit function. The Company’s
internal audit department identifies the risks of the Group,
and independently reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
control and risk management systems, including financial,
operational and compliance, in the key activities of the
Company’s business. The internal audit department reports
to the Audit Committee, and submits regular reports for its
review in accordance with the approved review and audit
mechanisms. The department submits a detailed report at
least once a year to the Board for its review and monitors
the risks identified and the effectiveness of the systems of
internal control and risk management of the Group.

The Audit Committee reviewed the internal control review
report submitted by internal audit department and the
Company's risk management and internal control systems in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2020 and considered
that they are effective and adequate. The Board assessed the
effectiveness of internal control systems by considering the
internal control review report and reviews performed by the
Audit Committee and concurred the same.
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The Group adopts a risk management framework which
comprises the following processes:

- Identify significant risk in the Group’s operation
environment and evaluate the impacts of those risks on
the Group's business;

- Develop necessary measures to manage those risks; and

- Monitor and review the effectiveness of such measures.

The Group formulated the policies and procedures of risk
management and internal control as follows:

- The Group established an organizational structure
with clear operating and reporting procedures, lines of
responsibility and delegated authority;

- Each operating subsidiary maintains internal controls
and procedures appropriate to its structure whilst
complying with the Group’s policies, standards and
guidelines;

- Relevant executive Directors and senior management
have been delegated with specific accountability for
monitoring the performance of designated business
operating units;
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- A systematic review of the financial and business
processes in order to provide management on the
adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls.
Where weaknesses are identified in the system of
internal controls, management will evaluate and take
necessary measures to ensure that improvements are

implemented; and

- Code of ethics are established and adhered to by all
employees to ensure high standards of conduct and

ethical values in all business practices.

The Board reviewed that the risk management and internal
control system adopted by the Group for the year ended 31

December 2020 and considered that it was effective.

I. PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
FOR HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF

INSIDE INFORMATION

The Board has approved and adopted the Inside Information
Policy for the Company since the Listing Date for monitoring
inside information to ensure compliance with the GEM
Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
The procedures and internal controls for handling and
dissemination of inside information as set out in the Inside

Information Policy are summarised below:

Handling of Inside Information

1. Inside information shall be announced as soon as
reasonably practicable after it becomes known to the
Board and/or is the subject of a decision by the Board
in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules. In cases
where a decision by the Board is pending or in cases
of incomplete negotiations, the Group shall implement
the procedures set out in the Inside Information Policy
to maintain the confidentiality of information. Until an
announcement is made, the Directors should ensure
that such information is kept strictly confidential. If the
confidentiality cannot be maintained, an announcement

shall be made as soon as practicable.
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2. Each department shall keep inside information on
transactions confidential. If there is a leakage of inside
information, they shall inform the Directors and the
Company Secretary immediately, so that remedial
actions, including making an inside information
announcement, can be taken at the earliest opportunity.

3. The Group’s Finance Department shall keep track of
the Group’s threshold levels for disclosure pursuant
to the size tests under the GEM Listing Rules, so that
an announcement can be made as soon as practicable
should a notifiable transaction arises.

Dissemination of Inside Information
Inside information is announced promptly through the
websites of the GEM (www.hkgem.com) and the Company
(www.ziyygroup.com). The electronic publication system of
the GEM is the first channel of dissemination of the Group's
information before any other channel.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board puts great emphasis on investor relationship in
particular fair disclosure and comprehensive report of the
Company's performance and activities.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the general meetings
of the Company and the Directors always make efforts to
fully address any questions raised by the Shareholders at the
annual general meetings (the “AGM") and the extraordinary
general meetings (the “"EGM") of the Company.

The forthcoming AGM of the Company will be held on
Monday, 10 May 2021 (the “2021 AGM"), the notice
of which shall be sent to the Company’s shareholders in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company,
the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable laws and
regulations.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’'s Hong Kong branch registrar
and transfer office, namely, Tricor Investor Services Limited,
whose contact details are stated in the section headed
"Corporate Information” of this annual report.

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up
capital of the Company may deposit a requisition to convene
an EGM of the Company and state the purpose therefore to
the Board or the Company Secretary.

The Company has adopted Communications Policy with
Shareholders and investors of the Company that provide
ready, equal and timely access to understandable information
about the Company. The Board welcomes Shareholders
for their comments and/or enquiries about the Company.
Shareholders may send their comments and/or enquiries to
the Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary.
Shareholders who wish to put forward proposal for the
Company’s consideration at the general meetings of the
Company can send their proposal to the Company Secretary.

Pursuant to Articles of Association of the Company, if a
Shareholder wishes to propose a person other than retiring
Directors for election as a Director at a general meeting of
the Company, the Shareholder should deposit a written notice
of nomination which shall be given to the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong within the 7 day
period commencing the day after the despatch of the notice
of the meeting (or such other period as may be determined
and announced by the Directors from time to time). The
relevant procedures is posted on the Company’s website
(www.ziyygroup.com).
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The shareholders of the Company may at any time send
their enquiries and concerns to the Board in writing. Contact
details are as follows:

Address:  Room 1908, 19/F, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong
E-mail: info@ziyuanyuan.com

Shareholders’ enquiries and concerns will be forwarded to
the Board and/or relevant Board Committees of the Company,
where appropriate, to answer the Shareholders’ questions.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

In order to enable Shareholders to exercise their rights in
an informed manner, and to allow Shareholders and the
investment community to engage actively with the Company,
the Company has established a number of channels for
maintaining on-going dialogue with the Shareholders as
follows:

(a) corporate communications such as annual reports,
quarterly reports, interim reports and circulars are issued
in printed form and are available on the GEM’s website
and the Company’s website;

(b) periodic announcements are made through the Stock
Exchange and published on the respective websites of
the GEM of the Stock Exchange and the Company;

(c) corporate information is made available on the
Company’s website;

(d) AGM and EGM provide a forum for the Shareholders to
make comments and exchange views with the Directors
and senior management; and

(e) the Company’s share registrars serve the Shareholders in
respect of share registration, dividend payment, change
of Shareholders’ particulars and related matters.

. CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year and up to the date of this annual report,
there was no amendment in the constitutional documents of
the Company. The Articles of Association of the Company are
available on the websites of the GEM of the Stock Exchange
and of the Company.
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ABOUT THE REPORT

Ziyuanyuan Holdings Group Limited (hereinafter referred to as

the "Group”, the "Company” or “we") is pleased to present its
Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG Report”
or the “Report”). This ESG Report is prepared in accordance with
disclosure obligations under the “comply or explain” provisions
contained in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide” (the "ESG Guide"”) as set out in Appendix 20 to the GEM
Listing Rules. The purpose is to allow all stakeholders to learn more
about the Group's progress and development direction in respect
of operation and sustainable development. The Group understands
the importance of the ESG report and is committed to making
continuous improvements in corporate social responsibility during
our course of business in order to better respond to the changing

needs of the advancing society.

APPLICABLE SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

OF THE REPORT

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group is principally
engaged in provision of medical equipment finance leasing services
and maternal and child postpartum care industry services in the
PRC.

The scope of the Report has been focused on the operation of
finance leasing business during 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2020 (the
the Group's total turnover. Maternal and child postpartum care

"Reporting Period”), which accounted for 96% of

business is not included in the Report. Going forward, the Group
will regularly review the scope of the Report and provide more
comprehensive disclosure to investors and stakeholders based on
the principle of materiality.

A complete index is appended in the last chapter hereof for reading
this Report in accordance with the ESG Guide.

CONFIRMATION AND APPROVAL

The information contained herein is sourced from official
documents and statistics of the Group, and management and
operation information collected in accordance with the Group’s
systems. This report was approved by the board of directors on 25
March 2021.
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OPINIONS AND FEEDBACK FROM
STAKEHOLDERS

The Group attaches great importance to valuable opinions from
all stakeholders. If you are in any doubt or have any opinion
for this report, please feel free to contact the Group via E-mail
info@ziyuanyuan.com to share your opinions and suggestions.

STAKEHOLDERS' ENGAGEMENT

Stakeholders’ engagement is essential to the formulation of
strategies for sustainable development. It allows the Group to
understand risks and opportunities. The Group has identified
key stakeholders that are important to the Group's business and
established various channels for communication.

Stakeholders Expectation

Communication Channel
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Key Measures to Respond

Fin& FAHA BEAR EIfER E EfTHE
Government - Comply with the laws - On-site inspections and The Group operated and managed according
- Tax payment according checks to laws, strengthened safety management,
to laws - Research and discussion cooperated with government's supervision,
- Promote regional through work inspection and evaluation (if any), and
economic development conferences, work actively undertaken social responsibilities.
and employment reports preparation and
submission for approval
- Publish information on
HKEXnews website,
such as annual and
interim reports and
announcements
- Company’s website
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Communication Channel

BEAR

Stakeholders
HHE

Expectation

FaHA

Key Measures to Respond

O] FEBY = EHE 5E

Shareholders and - Return on investment - Annual general meeting ~ The Group has issued notices of general

Investors - Information disclosure and other general meetings and proposed resolutions
and transparency meetings according to regulations, disclosed
- Shareholders” interests - Publish information on the Group's information by publishing
and fair treatment and HKEXnews website, announcements/notices and periodic
security such as annual, interim, reports. The Group has also carried out
- Control of operational quarterly reports and different forms of investor activities, such
risk announcements as results briefing, with an aim to enhance
- Meeting with investors investors' recognition. The Group disclosed
and analysts the Company’s contact details on website
- Company's website and in reports to ensure all communication
channels are available and effective.
RERKESE — REMLR - REBEAGREMER ZAEEERBREEHREAGBESRIER
- BHIRBEKRERE g RER BBEGAS/ BSNEHREH
- BRAGRATFE — EBXZMEBEZIALE BAEEER LN AEEEHEFARLR
R Bk MER FEK ANEEEETH AIUXEHR sTRS
- KERBRER TERERAE REEFTE Z!S%@ﬁ“ﬂiﬁ&%&iDMEZ%
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Employees - Safeguard the rights - Conferences The Group aims to provide a healthy and
and interests of - Trainings and seminars safe working environment and develops a
employees - Cultural and sport fair mechanism for promotion. The Group
- Occupational health activities has established labour unions at all levels
and safety - Intranet and emails to provide communication platforms for
- Working environment - Performance appraisals employees.
- Career development
opportunities
- Self-actualization
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Expectation

Communication Channel

RIR HERERERS

Key Measures to Respond

Fin& FEHA EBEBR [EIFERY X E e
Customers - Safe and high-quality - Website, brochures and The Group has developed a customer
products and services published information feedback system in order to evaluate
- Stable relationships on HKEXnews website, services provided.
- Information such as annual, interim,
transparency quarterly reports and
- Integrity announcements
- Business ethics - Emails and customer
service hotlines
- Feedback forms
- Regular meetings
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— BERME PR B 7 iR hER R o
- BRBHE MER -PBERFERS
- #E SN
- BEER — BEBRERRBHE
- BRE#EX
- THEg=Z
Suppliers/Business - Long-term - Business meetings, The Group has invited tenders publicly

Partners

HiEm EBBH

partnerships
- Honest cooperation
- Fairness and openness
- Information resources
sharing
- Risk reduction
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supplier conferences,
phone calls and
interviews

Regular meetings
Reviews and assessments
Emails, circulars and
manuals

Company's website
*Hezm HEEgR
BE EZ

THEZ

f ey Reat il

B[ i K F

NGIE b

to select the best suppliers/business
partners performed contracts according

to agreements, enhanced daily
communications, and established long-term
cooperation with quality suppliers/business
partners.
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Stakeholders Expectation

RinE TaH8 BEAR

Communication Channel

Key Measures to Respond
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Peer/Industry - Experience sharing -

Associations — cooperation - Site visits
- Fair competitions

B /1TEHE - £R9=E - 1T%8=

HE - Biff — BEMEH
- REHEF

Market Regulators - Compliance with laws

and regulations - Reports
- Information disclosures
mEEEE — BFERER - BEfHE
- BRKE - WA
Public - Community - Voluntary work
involvement - Charity and social
- Social responsibilities investments
- Employment
promotion
HEAR - ftE2H - RIIfF
- HE8HE - BENHERE
— {RERE

Materiality Assessment

The management and employees that perform major functions
in the Group have all participated in preparing the ESG Report to
assist the Group in reviewing its operation, identifying relevant ESG
matters, and assessing the importance of such relevant matters
to our business and stakeholders. Information was collected from
relevant departments and business units of the Group based on the
major ESG matters that had been assessed.

During the Reporting Period, the Group confirmed that appropriate
and effective management policies and control systems for ESG
matters have been established and that the disclosed contents
are in compliance with the requirements of the Reporting Guide.
Corporate governance is addressed separately in the “Corporate
Governance Report” of the Annual Report.
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Industry conferences

Information disclosure

The Group has insisted on fair competitions,
cooperated with peers to realise win-win
situations, shared experience and attended
various seminars of the industry so as to
promote sustainable development of the
industry.
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The Group has strictly complied with
regulatory requirements and disclosed and
reported true information in a timely and
accurate manner according to laws.
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The Group has given priority to local
citizens in respect of job opportunities so
as to promote community building and
development and maintained smooth
communication channels between the
Group and the community.
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECT

The Group mainly provides customers with finance leasing solutions
and related ancillary services. The sector where the Group operates
is not a major source of environmental pollution. In addition,
the business of the Group does not involve industrial activities.
Therefore, total amount of emissions, resource usage and waste
production is relatively low.

However, the Group believes that it is the social responsibility of all
corporations to ensure that emissions of pollutants and resource
consumption are minimised and carbon emissions is reduced.
For such purpose, the Group aims to achieve its stated goals by
reducing carbon dioxide emissions, resource consumption and
waste production.

A1. Emissions Management

Exhaust Emission

The exhaust emission of the Group mainly derives from the
fuels used by vehicles. As at 31 December 2020, the Group
had two vehicles which consumed an aggregate of 5,125
litres of gasoline and travelled 41,000 km in total. Due to
the business nature of the Group, employees take public
transport to visit customers’ companies and vehicles of the
Group are used only in special cases. Meanwhile, the Group
encourages employees to take electric public transport
whenever possible for meetings or activities and reduce
the use of private cars. For activities at nearer destinations,
the Group encourages employees to walk as far as possible
instead of taking the transportation.

During the Reporting Period, exhaust emissions were as
follows:
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PREEHAA BERIFWAT ¢

Amount of

Emissions (kg)

Type of Exhaust EEEELE M E ()
Nitrogen oxides Ea=R ek 3.075
Sulphur oxides =k wk?| 0.076
Particulate emissions SRR 0.256
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Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The Group’s main sources of greenhouse gas emissions
are direct emissions from vehicles, indirect emissions from
electricity consumption for office operation and indirect
emissions from employees taking planes for business trips.
The Group attaches great importance to adopting the
energy saving initiatives as mentioned in the section “Use of
Resources”, and reduce the impact of these emissions on the
environment by monitoring energy consumption and reducing
itineraries which require the Group’s senior management
taking private cars.

Greenhouse gas emissions are partly generated from
combusting gasoline by the three vehicles owned by
the Group. The Group’s vehicles are mainly used by the
senior management to commute between Hong Kong and
Shenzhen. However, in consideration of environmental
protection and cost saving, the senior management chose to
take the High Speed Rail for commuting between Shenzhen
and Hong Kong since the opening of the High Speed Rail
services in Hong Kong.

Meanwhile, greenhouse gas emissions are also generated
from electricity consumption for the operation in the Group's
office. The Group aims to reduce electricity consumption
in daily operation as the amount of indirect greenhouse
gas emissions depend on the units of electricity consumed.
Specific measures adopted by the Group to reduce electricity
consumption are set out in the section headed “Use of
Resources—Electricity” of this Report.

During the Reporting Period, employees travelled by plane
200 times for business trips. Those trips by plane generated
an aggregate of 25.39 tonnes of carbon dioxide emissions.
Employees only take plane for business trips when necessary
as the Group pursues the policy of emissions reduction.
Under normal circumstances, the Group will arrange for
conference calls or video conferences instead of face-to-face
meetings to reduce indirect greenhouse gas emissions from
transportation.
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During the Reporting Period, greenhouse gas emissions were

RIR HERERERS

REBSHA BEREBHFRUOT

as follows:

Greenhouse Gas Emissions Unit Amount
BERBEHERK B =
Scope 1 — Direct Emissions Tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 13.98
HEN —BHEHMW MR ICIRER
Scope 2 - Energy Indirect Emissions Tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 31.21
#HE2—EREEHN MR ICIRER
Scope 3 - Other Indirect Emissions Tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 25.39
#HES—HEMEEHR MR ICIRER
Total Tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 70.58
we M _EibiE S

Waste and Wastewater

Solid waste produced by the Group was mainly generated
from daily office operation, including daily paper usage, office
document waste and food waste by employees. All domestic
waste is uniformly classified, collected and disposed by the
property management office of the office building on a
regular basis.

The Group is committed to reducing waste production and
encourages employees to recycle stationery and reduce waste
with an aim to reduce waste production from the source.
Moreover, the Group has adopted a digital operation model
to centralise the handling of documents and regularly convey
environmental protection messages to employees. Permission
is also required for printing in the office for statistics and
adjustments in respect of paper usage in order to enhance
resource utilization.
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A2.

The Group has established appropriate measures for the
disposal of computer and related products, such as printers
and toner cartridges. The Group transfers or reuses excess
digital products, while obsolete accessories or used toner
cartridges are collected by third party companies for recycling.

In case it is necessary to dispose of an item, the Group also
encourages employees to collect and classify the waste
before disposing so as to reduce negative impacts on the
environment.

No hazardous wastewater was generated by the Group
during the Reporting Period as the only type of wastewater
produced was domestic wastewater from daily office
operation. Domestic wastewater is directly discharged to the
sewer network and is treated by local municipal wastewater
treatment plants. During the Reporting Period, domestic
wastewater generated by the Company was solely controlled
by the property management company. In this case, it is not
feasible for the Group to provide wastewater data as there
is no sub-meter to record the data. As wastewater volume
depends on water consumption, specific measures have been
adopted by the Company to reduce water consumption,
details of which are set out in the section headed “Use of
Resources — Water” of this ESG Report.

Use of Resources

The Group attaches great importance to the effective use of
resources, and is committed to reducing waste of resources
in daily operation. During the Reporting Period, the Group
has complied with relevant laws and regulations in relation
to the use of energy. Since the Group has not engaged in
the manufacturing business, no problem was encountered in
identifying suitable water source and no packaging materials
were used. Resources used by the Group were mainly
electricity, water and paper.
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Electricity

The Company acknowledges the importance of energy
saving and the fact that reducing electricity consumption will
indirectly reduce greenhouse gas emissions so the Group has
promoted various energy saving strategies. To strengthen
each employee’s awareness on environmental protection
and energy saving, the Group has placed reminders of “For
electricity saving, please switch off the light when leaving”
at prominent places in the office. The Group encourages
employees to set office air conditioner at a moderate
temperature and switch them off when they are not in use to
reduce electricity consumption.

All electricity consumption by the Group was directly from
daily office operation. During the Reporting Period, total
electricity consumption of the Group amounted to 83,490
kWh.

Water

Water was mainly consumed by staff at work in the Group.
To improve the utilisation efficiency of water resource,the
Group and all its employees have laid emphasis on water
conservation and are committed to saving every drop of the
precious water resource through practicable but effective
ways, for examples, promote to and educate employees to
save water regularly, place water saving slogans in prominent
places and encourage water conservation and report to
the property management company to fix dripping taps
immediately when the taps are broken. During the Reporting
Period, the water consumption of the Group in 2020 reached
485 m?3.

Paper

The Group has implemented environmental protection
measures to minimise paper usage at the office. Employees
are encouraged to use both sides of paper, and the back of
single-sided documents is used for printing or as draft paper.
If possible, employees may use the suitable font size and
indentation to minimise the pages. Besides, electronic media
is recommended for circulation and communication so as to
minimise paper usage. During the Reporting Period, the total
office paper consumption was 0.363 tonnes.
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RIE - HEREREKS

During the Reporting Period, total resource consumption was
as follows:

RESHA ERERBHEENT

Use of Resources Unit Amount
BRAR B i =
Electricity consumption kWh 83,490
BIHE T REF

Water consumption Cubic metres 485
KOHFE 375K

Paper consumption Tonnes 0.363
A IRIHFE 95

The Group will keep recording its resource consumption for
reviewing effectiveness of its conservation measures in the
future and formulating more specific improvement measures
and objectives.

A3. The Environment and Natural Resources

Regarding the operation of the Group, the Group was
not aware of any significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources. With the implementation
of green office measures, the Group strived to minimise
impacts on the environment and natural resources. The Group
will continue to implement environment-friendly practices
in the Group’s operation in order to enhance environmental
sustainability.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS

Employment and Labour Practices

The Group regards employees as the cornerstone of its corporate
operation and development. Therefore, the Group attaches
great importance to the training and welfare of employees, and
are committed to providing a working environment with job
satisfaction. The Group provides competitive remuneration and
sound promotion opportunities to facilitate career development of
employees.

During the Reporting Period, the Group strictly complied with
labour legislations and related regulations in the PRC and Hong
Kong. The Group was not involved in any violation relating to
labour practices and would have a significant impact on the Group.

B1. Employees

The Group aims to attract and retain talents, ensures a safe
and equal working environment for employees, provides
development opportunities and promotes employees’ health
and well-being. The Group has formulated the staff manual
according to relevant labour regulations, covering the Group's
remuneration and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, leave and standards of other rights and
benefits. The Group strictly complied with the Labour Law
of the PRC, the Labour Contract Law of the PRC and other
applicable laws and regulations in the PRC.

As of 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of 81
employees, with the employee structure as follows:
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A
Male Female

Employees Employees Total
Age Group FEHH R BEHES ZHES =5
21 to 30 21-303% 23 20 43
31 to 40 31-40%% 25 7 32
41 to 50 41-50%% 3 1 4
51 to 60 51-605% - 1 1
61 to 70 61-70%% - 1 1
Total YN 51 30 81
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Male Female
Employees Employees Total
Region tE EHES ZER &%
Mainland China R Py 49 29 78
Other Regions Outside R P dth DA S E A 3 &
Mainland China 3 - 3
Total YN 52 29 81
Male Female
Employees Employees Total
Employment type E{ELE R BEES ZHES =1
Full-time and contracted e A= 52 29 81
Others (part-time, Hh GRE -~ T ISR
fixed-term or casual) - - -
Total PN 52 29 81

A total of 23 employees left the Group in 2020, with statistics

A TECEF, —HB23REERR

of such employees as follows: UM BEERR®ET
Employee
Male Female turnover
Employees Employees Total rate
BER%
Age Group FH R B EHEE RS &5t tb =
21 to 30 21-30% 1M1 19 31%
31 to 40 31-405% 3 - 3 9%
41 to 50 41-505% 1 - 1 20%
Total AR 12 11 23 22%
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Talent Recruitment and Retention

Employees are the core assets to maintaining corporate
competitiveness, and the key to corporate success. The
Group provides a fair and impartial talent selection system
and continuously improves the system to recruit talents. The
Group has formulated an annual recruitment plan and filled
job vacancies based on the principle of “internal staffs before
external candidates” in order to offer internal promotion
and re-designation opportunities to existing employees. The
Group recruits external candidates through the Company's
website, recruitment website, job market, newspapers and
media, headhunting companies and employee’s referral. The
Group ensures that the recruitment and promotion processes
are fair, open and transparent, and selects candidates
depending on objective factors such as candidates’ working
experience, skills, academic background, communication
skills, personal qualities.

The Group adheres to the principle of employing talents
with both ability and moral integrity, and regards morality,
knowledge, ability and performance as the main evaluation
criteria, so as to put talents at suitable positions and retain
talents. The Group has formulated a set of staff performance
appraisal mechanism, in which appropriate remuneration
adjustment is made annually based on staff performance to
reduce talent loss.

Remuneration and Benefits

The Group provides staff with reasonable and competitive
remuneration and staff benefits. Based on work performance,
periodic performance and job appraisal, the Group provides
remuneration adjustment and job promotion. The Group
strictly complied with the Social Insurance Law of the People’s
Republic of China (F#E AR HME T EREE) and the
Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China (F#E AR
ME % EE), and made timely contribution to “five social
insurance and one housing fund (ABE—=%)" (being five
social insurance, including endowment insurance, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance, maternity insurance and
employment injury insurance, and housing provident fund),
mandatory provident fund and labour insurance. Apart from
basic statutory holidays, wedding and funeral leave, maternity
leave, work-related injury leave, annual leave and family
planning leave, the Group also offers additional staff benefits,
including working luncheon and transportation allowances.
These benefits boost employees’ sense of belonging to the
Company, create a good working atmosphere and enhance
enterprise cohesion.
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Equal Opportunity and Diversity

As a diversified enterprise, the Group strives to create
a diversified and harmonious working environment for
employees and protect them from discrimination and
harassment. The Group formulated employment policies
in strict accordance with the Labour Law of the People's
Republic of China (FZ AR HFEI% &%) and the Labour
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China (FRZ A
EHXMESEEERFE) and provides equal opportunities in
respect of recruitment, training, promotion, job transfer,
remuneration, benefits, and termination of contracts. These
equal employment opportunities are not affected by age,
gender, physical conditions, marital status, family status, race,
colour, nationality, religion, political connection or sexual
orientation. The Group requires employees to abide by anti-
discrimination practices as set out in the Employee Code of
Conduct.

The Group also values female employees’ career development
and ensures that they have equal promotion opportunities
as male employees. The Group also complies with the
requirements under the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Protection of Women's Rights and Interests (FHEE A
EHARBLERREL) . Female employees’ employment
contracts will not be released or terminated during their
pregnancy, maternity leave and breastfeeding period and they
are entitled to basic salaries.

Health and Safety

Based on the business nature of the Group, employees mainly
work at office and their possibility of sustaining work injuries
is limited. During the Reporting Period, no serious work injury
incident occurred within the Group. For laws and regulations
in Mainland China in relation to the occupational health
standards and safe production, there was no violation of the
laws and regulations regarding the provision of safe working
environment by the Group during the Reporting Period. The
Group has always maintained work-related injury insurance
for all employees in accordance with the Social Insurance Law
of the People’s Republic of China (FF#E AR £ MBI Z R
%) .

In addition, the Group has implemented a series of policies
to foster and maintain a favourable, comfortable and healthy
working environment:

o to maintain obstruction-free emergency exits at
workplace;

° to provide a workplace with adequate illumination and
moderate temperature;

o to prohibit smoking at workplace; and

J to conduct safety inspections and fire prevention
training regularly.
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Development and Training

The Group has provided comprehensive trainings to
employees, including face-to-face trainings, sharing among
departments, online learning and internal and external
trainings according to the Group's Staff Handbook and
other related internal policies. The Group has provided
employees with diversified on-the-job training. Orientation
trainings were offered to new employees in respect to
skills and knowledge trainings and attitude building. Skills
and knowledge trainings and attitude building allow new
employees to be familiar with the corporate culture and the
background of the Company. According to job duties and
company development, the Group provides employees with
skills and trainings. Continuous assessments are conducted to
keep track on the performance of employees.

Trainings covered a variety of topics in order to cater the
needs for employees from different departments, for instance,
management skills and trainings related to medical devices.
The Group believes development of employees are crucial to
sustainable corporate development. The Group will enhance
the training system in order to promote personal development
of employees.
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Percentage of

employees Average Training

trained training hour Hours

Employees training BT ZHETLEF  FI9FIIEE Z el 8
Senior management BHREEEAER 13% 19.6 196
Administrative staff THAE 7% 15.0 75
Other staff Hith A8 80% 13.5 826

Percentage of

employees Average Training

trained training hour Hours

Employees training 8T ZAMEILEF  FI9EIEE k|| LE
Male employees BEMREE 63% 18.0 865
Female employees ZHEE 37% 8.3 232
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Labour Standards

The Group strictly complies with the laws and regulations in
the PRC. The Group tolerates no child labour or forced and
compulsory labour, allows no employment of child labour
or forced and compulsory labour which are prohibited by
international standards and relevant regulations in the PRC.
Before employment, new employees shall show their ID cards
to avoid child labour. During the Reporting Periods, the Group
was not aware of any non-compliance regarding child labour,
forced or compulsory labour in its operation.

Protection of the Interests of Employees

The Group is committed to protecting human rights, and has
established a respectful, honest and fair working environment
for employees and customers and complied all relevant laws
and regulations. Laws and regulations relating to employment
and labour which would have significant impacts on the
Group include the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of
China (FZE AR H£HMEZ5 &%) and the Labour Contract Law
of the People’s Republic of China (FZE AR XEMNEESHEE
7£) . There was no significant violation by the Group during
the Reporting Period.

Operational Practices

The Group believes that the best operational practices are
keys to the realisation of sustainable development and
long— term corporate growth. Our qualities of integrity,
honesty and fairness have also been reflected in the Code of
Business Conduct, Employee Code of Conduct, supply chain
management, environmental protection practices and product
assurance.
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Supply Chain Management

The Group believes that establishing sustainable supply
chain and facilitating interaction and communication with
suppliers and banks could improve confidence of customers
and other stakeholders on the Group. Therefore, the
Group only maintains long-term cooperative relationships
with printing, logistics and medical device suppliers and
banks with good creditworthiness, sound goodwill, quality
products and services, good track record and eligibility.
Focusing on establishing close cooperation relationships
with suppliers, the Group has been working together with
them to reduce impacts on the environment from production
processes while ensuring the quality of service to customers.
Although most of the device suppliers are designated by
customers, the Group has formulated written policies and
guidance to monitor suppliers’ performance regularly in
order to control service quality more effectively. The Group
will cease cooperation with suppliers which fail to meet its
requirements. During the Reporting Period, there was no
supplier which failed to meet such requirements.

Product Responsibility

Providing efficient and high-quality services to customers
have always been the utmost concern for the Group. The
Group’s objective is that customers have confidence in our
services and they are provided with sufficient information
to make informed choices. To improve service quality of the
Group, the Company conducts site visits and regular visits
in order to have in-depth understanding on actual demands
and development targets of customers. By establishing long—
term and good cooperation with customers, the Company
has efficiently supported the economic development in the
regions of operation and indirectly facilitated employment
in those regions. Meanwhile, the Group has proactively
acquired customer feedbacks, including feedbacks from site
visits and feedbacks by phone. Therefore, the Group has a
set of policies and procedures in place to monitor and control
quality, so as to ensure customers’ opinions are efficiently
collected and handled.
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Quality Management

The Group has established the “Quality Management Policy”
with aims to add value for customers through business
processes that support the services offered. To enhance
service quality, the Group collects customers’ feedback on
services provided and designated staff would report the
same to the management. The Group has also issued the
Staff Operational Manual and organised training sessions
to familiarise employees with the standard operational
procedures. The Group is committed to providing quality
services to customers through enhancing the senior
management’s administrative ability and the strength of
operation employees.

Protection of Customer Data and Privacy

The Group handles significant amount of personal data
and credit information of customers. The Group upholds a
belief that information security and privacy are key principles
for operation. The Group’s employees are required to sign
a confidentiality agreement acknowledging receipt and
agreement of their responsibility and obligation regarding the
protection and non-disclosure of customer data. In addition,
information can only be used in authorised business activities.
Employees disclosing such information to other parties
is considered as data theft. Related employees shall bear
corresponding responsibility.

During the Reporting Period, there were no noted case of
violation of relevant laws or regulations regarding product
responsibility.
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Anti-corruption

The Company is committed to upholding ethics and integrity
during the operation process. No form of corruption or
bribery is tolerated. Sound judgements for transactions with
customers, suppliers, contractors, job seekers, colleagues
or any other third party should be ensured. All applicable
laws and regulations shall be duly complied with so as to
always maintain the highest standard of integrity. During the
Reporting Period, the Company rigidly abided by the Anti-
Money Laundering Law of the People’s Republic of China
(hzE A B HMBE & EEEE) and other laws and regulations
in respect of anti-corruption, bribery, fraud and money
laundering. Reference to the aforesaid laws and regulations,
the Company has developed the “Anti-Money Laundering
Policy”, which provided that staff of the business department
shall learn potential customers’ background completely
through consulting documentation and communicating with
customers according to relevant internal guidance before
commencing business dealings with them. The Company's
risk management department also collects information of
current customers in respect of uses of proceeds, sources
of repayment funding and operational conditions. The
risk management department also acquires their latest
information from time to time and report to the senior
management once abnormal situation is identified.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Group's relevant policies,
employees may question suspected misconduct or misconduct
orally or in writing. The Group will make every effort to
treat all reports in a strictly confidential way. The identity of
the reporting and complaining employee is not allowed to
be disclosed without his/her consent, unless the Group is
legally obliged to disclose the employee’s identity and other
information. In case of suspected corruption or other criminal
offences, the Group will report to the applicable departments.

The Group has always strictly complied with relevant laws
and regulations. During the Reporting Period, no corruption
behaviour nor litigation by the Group or employees of the
Group has been noticed.
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COMMUNITY

BS.

Community Investment

The Group deeply realised the importance of returning to the
society and spared no effort in providing help to community.
The Group strongly encouraged its staff to participate in
community activities and contribute to the sustainable
development of the harmonious society. Looking forward, the
Group will continue to focus on community care and staff
development with an aim to improve the society through
participation in the community. The Group actively undertakes
social responsibility and devotes itself to various social welfare
activities > making unremitting exploration and efforts to
achieve the promotion of harmonious social progress and the
win-win development.

At the beginning of 2020,the Covid-19 broke out. It was
an importance guarantee to ensure adequate supplies
for medical staff on the epidemic prevention and control.
Therefore, the Group overcame all kinds of difficulties and
spared no effort to contact domestic and overseas suppliers
to purchase disposable surgical masks, N95 respirators,
medical latex gloves, disinfectant water and other prevention
and control medical supplies, which were sent to the
first responders in Xiangmi Community Party Committee,
Shenzhen Third People's Hospital, Peaking University
Shenzhen Hospital, Guangzhou University of Chinese
Medicine Shenzhen Hospital, Qiaoxiang Community as well as
Xiangmihu police station respectively.
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INDEX OF ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
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GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE 5]
Subject Areas Content Page Index
TEHR NE BEEZRS|
A. Environmental
A. IBiE
Aspect A1: Emissions
BEAT: HHY
General Disclosure Information on: 59
— AR B BERERRRAERBHB PR THNE S - BEERBZEEYN

ELEEN:

(a) the policies; and

(a) HHE; &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer

(b) BFHETABEARATZENBERDERRRACOINER -

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water

and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
A1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data 59
A1.1 BER BB R AR BEE &
A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity 60
A1.2 BERBEBNERTBE
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity N/A
A1.3 FMELEEEEEMRERTE ERA
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity 61
A1.4 FFEXBREBREYRERTE
A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved N/A
A1.5 B RBER E NI R PRIS AR EA
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, N/A

reduction initiatives and results achieved
A1.6 HEIEEERBEEEREN A X BEELEENEHRAEMRE NiE A
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Subject Areas Content Page Index

FEHE AE BEE%ES5|

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BEA2 . BFEH

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and 62
other raw materials

— AR iR EE BEREAER (BT K EMERERME) BEER

A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas 63
or oil) in total and intensity

A2.1 BBV ONERK,/SEEER WME - RIUH) REERTE

A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity 63

A2.2 MEKEREE

A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved N/A

A2.3 s RE R MM st E RIS R ~ER

A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit N/A
for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved

A2.4 AR EGE AR E I BERMRE > URIRA B KW@ sTE RS ER
e

A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products and with reference N/A
to per unit produced

A2.5 B mTEEEMENEERSEESB LS ~ER

Aspect A3: Environment and Natural Resources

IBEA3 X IRIERXAER

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the 64
environment and natural resources

— AR B BEBITABRERRABERERNEATENBER

A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment 64
and natural resources and the actions taken to manage them

A3.1 WM EBETHHREARAERNEATZERDHKDNEEFHTE

N1TH
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Subject Areas Content Page Index
FEHE AE BEE%ES5|
B. Social
B. #&
Aspect B1: Employment
BEB1: B
General Disclosure Information on: 65
— AR B BR#FHMREE - BERSH TFEFY - RA - TEHE 2
[ 48 LUR LAt 5 8 s B A B9 -
(a) the policies; and
() HBHR; XK
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
(b) BFHETABEATENHBEZRERROINER
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti—
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and 65
geographical region
B1.1 IR EBREEAR  FREMN R RS D ESBH
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region 66
B1.2 MR FR AN R ER DR EE MK LR
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Subject Areas Content Page Index
TEHR NE BIEEZRS|
Aspect B2: Health and Safety
EEB2: BFLEZE
General Disclosure Information on: 68
— AR B ERREZ2TIHRRERREEERCHELTCSH !

(a) the policies; and

(a) HMHE; &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer

(b) BFHETABEARTENEREZERRANER

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting

employees from occupational hazards.
B2.1 Number and rate of workrelated fatalities N/A
B2.1 AT ERAFRMIETAIAB KR EA
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury N/A
B2.2 HAITHBELRITFEEH ER
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how 68

they are implemented and monitored
B2.3 HMPTER M B R L 25 UREAITRER S E
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Subject Areas Content Page Index
FEHE AE BEE%ES5|
Aspect B3: Development and Training
BEB3 . BRI
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging 69
duties at work and description of training activities
— AR iR EE BRRAEEEBITIERENA # R ENBER REMEIES
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by employee category (e.g. 69
senior management, middle management)
B3.1 ZEEBHEN NEREEE -FREEES 2I0NTIEEE DL
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and 69
employee category
B3.2 Bt REEERZ D BREETHRIINTHEH
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
JEEB4 > & TH#E
General Disclosure Information on: 70
— AR B BRABIEET %55 TH .
(a) the policies; and
(@) BE; K
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
(b) BFHETABEAZENEREERRANER
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child 70
and forced labour
B4.1 AT IEHS B A8V E i LU R B T K sa s T
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered 70
B4.2 T S BE R B R R H IR A RIS T Pr R EX RS & BR
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Subject Areas Content Page Index
FEHE AE BEE%ES5|
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
/EEB5 & REHEETE
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply 71
chain
— ARk EE EEMEENIRIE RS RAREBER
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region N/A
B5.1 wrMEd o HERHE NER
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of 71
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored
B5.2 HAERERHEENES mERTERAENNHERHE UKk
BRIBOINAITREGEEHE
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
EBEB6 X EmEF
General Disclosure Information on:
—ARiREE BRFRHERNBRFENEREZ2 - BES - RERMBESTEUARAE 71
W EN
(a) the policies; and
(@ BXR; K
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
(b) TTFHETABEATENHEBEZRERRAINER
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.
B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how N/A
they are dealt with
B6.2 BRBNERRRBNIGHFEE U R EH % FEA
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting N/A
intellectual property rights
B6.3 R B e R (RIEE S E B RARYIE 6 EA
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how 72
they are implemented and monitored
B6.5 HHCHBE B RERMBER > UREBRNITRERG A
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Subject Areas Content Page Index
TEHR AE BEE%ES5|
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
BEB7: RES
General Disclosure Information on: 73
— AR iR EE BRI IEERES - $1R  IEF ROt B 82AY ¢
(a) the policies; and
() HBHR; XK
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
(b) BFHETABEARTENEREZERRANER
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought N/A
against the issuer or its employees during the Reporting Period and
the outcomes of the cases
B7.1 RREANEETANEEERETYEEENESHARZHNHE ~ER
VeEiEN
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistleblowing procedures, 73
how they are implemented and monitored
B7.2 AR BB HE i B R R AR T U R IT R &R 5%
Aspect B8: Community Investment
/EEBS : HERE
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the 74
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take
into consideration the communities’ interests
— AR B BERMHE2ERBREEMTHERENRREERITEZR
& AR
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution 74
B8.1 FXEEERE
B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus areas 74
B8.2 TEEILBABAER
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The Board is pleased to present its annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 33 to
the consolidated financial statements. During the year ended 31
December 2020, the Group is principally engaged in provision of
medical equipment finance leasing services and maternal and child
postpartum care industry services in the PRC.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
and the financial position of the Company and of the Group at that
date are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages
106 to 108 of this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The review of the business of the Group during the year and the
discussion on the Group’s future business development are set out
in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis”, and the description of the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group and key financial performance
indicators are set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis”. The financial risk management objectives
and policies of the Group are set out in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements. No important event affecting the Group has
occurred during the year up to the date of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital is set out in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
respectively.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions entered by
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set
out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements. To the
best knowledge of the Directors, none of these related party
transactions constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions, which are required to comply with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to owners comprising share premium account less
retained profits, amounted to approximately RMB64.2 million.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the revenue attributable
to the Group's largest customers and five largest customers
accounted for approximately 1.3% and 5.2% of the Group’s total
revenue, respectively.
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None of the Directors or any of their close associates (as defined in
GEM Listing Rules) or shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company's issued
share capital) has any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers.

Due to the Group’s business nature, the Group does not have
major suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual
report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zhang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhang Junwei

Non-executive Director
Mr. Lyu

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan

Mr. Chow

Mr. Zhang Yong (appointed on 1 June 2020)
Mr. Li (resigned on 1 June 2020)

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, at
each annual general meeting, one third of the Director for the
time being shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. Such retiring Directors may, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting. All
Directors appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office until the first general meeting of shareholders after their
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting and
all Directors appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Group are set out on
pages 21 to 24 of this annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Every Director shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets
of the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained
by him as a Director in defending any proceedings, whether civil or
criminal, in which judgment is given in his favour, or in which he is
acquitted.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Zhang, being the executive Director, has entered into a service
agreement with the Company with effect from 12 June 2018. The
service contract is for an initial term of three years with effect from
the Listing Date and shall continue thereafter unless and until it
is terminated by our Company or our Director giving to the other
not less than three months’ prior notice in writing. In addition,
Mr. Zhang has also entered into a service contract with a PRC
subsidiary. The service agreement can be terminated by either party
by giving the other party one month’s written notice in advance or
otherwise in accordance with the terms of the service contract.

Mr. Zhang Junwei, being the executive Director, has entered into a
service agreement with the Company with effect from 9 November
2018 for a terms of three years. The service agreement can be
terminated by either party by giving the other party three months’
written notice in advance or otherwise in accordance with the
terms of the service agreement.

Mr. Lyu, being the non-executive Director, has entered into a
service agreement with the Company with effect from 15 August
2019 for a terms of three years. The service agreement can be
terminated by either party by giving the other party three months’
written notice in advance or otherwise in accordance with the
terms of the service agreement.
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Each of Mr. Chan and Mr. Chow, being all our Independent Non-
executive Directors, has entered into a letter of appointment with
our Company on 12 June 2018. Each letter of appointment is for
an initial term of three years commencing from the Listing Date
and shall continue thereafter unless terminated by either party
giving at least three month’s notice in writing.

Mr. Zhang Yong, being the Independent Non-executive Directors,
has entered into a letter of appointment with our Company on
1 June 2020. The letter of appointment is for an initial term of
three years commencing from 1 June 2020 and continue thereafter
unless terminated by either party giving at least three month's
notice in writing.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the directors of the Company and the
five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in note 11 to
the consolidated financial statements, respectively. There has been
no arrangement under which any Director has waived or agreed to
waive any emolument.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

There was no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to which the Company, its holding company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or an entity
connected with a Director had a material interest whether directly
or indirectly, existed at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2020, the Company did not enter into or have
any management and administration contracts in respect of the
whole or any principal business of the Company.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST

Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short positions
in Shares and underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of SFO)
which are required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions in which they are taken or
(b) pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to

deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or

therein; or (c) have to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules,

were as follows:

Long positions in the Shares

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERS

T 5 BB
BERTETHABRS AT R A
AR BB R A M 3 Rk

A TECEE+RA=+T—H ' FxRAER
REZBITHRABRIAB REEMEREE
(E&ERBHFRBAERGFEXVELD BIRHD
RN REEETES [(A)RBEIZFK
HERBIEXVBETRFSDEANGER
B AP (SRR ERBE S A EIRA

ZRERIREFRRAHEA B KK
B) 5 HbRERE S KR E R 35218 A5
ﬁﬁ’~\¢1l PRt &5 5 B(ORBGEM LR
AI555.46F5.671R AN & AR B K B3P BY
BmBokBamT

KRB EIIFE

Number of
Shares held/
interested in

Approximate
percentage of

B8/ HEk: R RERE4
EEN4 B/ EEHE & E Bt
Mr. Zhang" @ Interest in controlled corporation; interest held 300,000,000 75%
jointly with another person
REENO REFEERED B A ATHREFEN#ER
Mr. Zhang Junwei®® Interest in controlled corporation; interest held 300,000,000 75%

jointly with another person
RERELOO

REHERRED  BR - A ALHRFENED
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Notes:

On 24 February 2017, the ultimate controlling shareholders of the
Company, namely Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhang Junwei entered into
a concert parties confirmatory deed to acknowledge and confirm,
among other things, that they are parties acting in concert with each
member of the Group from the incorporation dates of the respective
members of the Group and continue as at and after the date of the
concert parties confirmatory deed, details of which are set out in
the subsection headed “History and Reorganisation—Parties Acting
in Concert” in the Prospectus. As such, pursuant to the parties
acting in concert arrangement, each of the controlling shareholders
of the Company, namely Hero Global (being wholly owned by Mr.
Zhang), Mr. Zhang, Icon Global Holding Limited (“lcon Global”)
(being wholly owned by Mr. Zhang Junwei) and Mr. Zhang Junwei, is
deemed to be interested in 75.0% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

300,000,000 Shares in which Mr. Zhang is interested consist of the
following: (i) 219,801,980 Shares held by Hero Global, a company
wholly owned by Mr. Zhang, in which Mr. Zhang is deemed to be
interested under the SFO; and (ii) 80,198,020 Shares in which Mr.
Zhang is deemed to be interested as a result of being a party acting-
in-concert with Mr. Zhang Junwei.

300,000,000 Shares in which Mr. Zhang Junwei is interested consist
of (i) 80,198,020 Shares held by Icon Global, a company wholly
owned by Mr. Zhang Junwei, in which Mr. Zhang Junwei is deemed to
be interested under the SFO; and (ii) 219,801,980 Shares in which Mr.
Zhang Junwei is deemed to be interested as a result of being a party
acting— in-concert with Mr. Zhang.
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Long position in the associated corporations

Name of associated
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Number and
class of

EFERS

Percentage

Name of Director corporations Capacity/ nature of interest securities of Shareholding
Eickzd 4=

By HREOEE 8 Sip/ #EHE gl REB DL

Mr. Zhang Hero Global Beneficial owner 50,000 100%
ordinary shares

REE Hero Global BmEBA 50,0008 & i % 100%

Mr. Zhang Junwei Icon Global Beneficial owner 100 100%
ordinary shares

RERRE BHZ2IK BB A 1008 EER 100%

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had an interest or
short position in any shares or underlying shares and/or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
in which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO) or that was required to be recorded in the register kept
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which are
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,

pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Be
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Substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions in
Shares and underlying Shares of the Company

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December 2020, the
persons (other than Directors or chief executive of the Company)
who had interests in the Shares and underlying Shares of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which will be required, pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register of the
Company were as follows:

FERRNEQABRMRERMRGNER
R#xE

BEEMANC R_ZE-ZF+-_B=+—
H REARBRORAEBRO PES EDZ
(EERBHERPEMHROIEXVE) > MRE
B MAERPIEXVEFE2 KR E30 BB IF
XAT IR BEHREE T RMERPIF3360%
RAARBENAABDNECHZAL (AT
BEENESTHASRI OTF :

Long positions in the Shares HREIIFE
Number of Approximate
Shares held/ percentage of
Name of shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest interested in shareholding
BE/BEEE RRAERE4
[EE LY g3/ #zElE NkRHEHE BAL
Hero Global® Beneficial owner; interests held jointly with 300,000,000 75%
another person
Hero Global” BEalEB N B - AT HRAFENER
Icon Global® Beneficial owner; interests held jointly with 300,000,000 75%
another person
EH IR BRBEAAN BE— L AT HRFENER
Ms. Tang Yiping? Interest of spouse 300,000,000 75%
ekt FoftEm
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Notes:

On 24 February 2017, the ultimate controlling shareholders of the
Company, namely Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhang Junwei entered into
a concert parties confirmatory deed to acknowledge and confirm,
among other things, that they are parties acting in concert with each
member of the Group from the incorporation dates of the respective
members of the Group and continue as at and after the date of the
concert parties confirmatory deed, details of which are set out in
the subsection headed “History and Reorganisation-Parties Acting in
Concert” in the Prospectus. As such, pursuant to the parties acting
in concert arrangement, each of the controlling shareholders of the
Company, namely Hero Global (being wholly owned by Mr. Zhang),
Mr. Zhang, Icon Global (being wholly owned by Mr. Zhang Junwei)
and Mr. Zhang Junwei, is deemed to be interested in 75.0% of the
issued share capital of the Company.

Ms. Tang Yiping is the spouse of Mr. Zhang, and she is deemed, or
taken to be, interested in all Shares in which Mr. Zhang is interested
in for the purposes of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Directors

were not aware of any other person (other than the Directors or

chief executive of the Company as disclosed in the section headed

“Directors’ and chief executive's interests and short positions in

Shares and underlying Shares and debentures of the Company

and its associated corporations” above) who had or deemed to

have interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares

or debentures of the Company which has to be disclosed to the

Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of

the SFO and as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO.
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COMPETING INTEREST

During the year ended 31 December 2020, none of the Directors
or the controlling shareholders of the Company or their respective
close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) is interested
in any business which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group or has any
conflicts of interest with the Group.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The controlling shareholders of the Company, namely Mr. Zhang,
Mr. Zhang Junwei, and their respective holding companies, namely
Hero Global and Icon Global (the “Controlling Shareholders”)
entered into a deed of non-competition dated 12 June 2018
("Deed of Non-competition”) in favour of the Company (for
itself and as trustee for each of its subsidiaries). For details of
the Deed of Non-competition, please refer to the section headed
“Relationship with Controlling Shareholders—Non-competition
Undertaking” in the Prospectus. Each of the Controlling
Shareholders has confirmed that none of them is engaged in, or
interested in any business (other than the Group) which, directly
or indirectly, competes or may compete with the business of the
Group.

The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed the
status of compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings under
the Deed of Non-competition have been complied with by each of
the Controlling Shareholders during the year and up to the date of
this report.
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PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
and up to the date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company considers the maintenance of a high standard of
corporate governance important to the continuous growth of the
Group. The Company’s corporate governance practices are based
on code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the "CG Code"”) as contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing
Rules. As the Shares were listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
on 9 July 2018, other than the deviation from code provision
A.2.1, the Company has since then adopted and complied with,
where applicable, the CG Code to ensure that the Group’s business
activities and decision-making processes are regulated in a proper
and prudent manner.

During the year and up to the date of this report, other than the
deviation from code provision A.2.1 explained on pages 27 and
32 of this report respectively, the Company complied with the
provisions of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM
Listing Rules.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in notes 13 and 38 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Directors are not aware of any significant event
which had material effect on the Group subsequent to 31
December 2020 and up to the date of this report.
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FINAL DIVIDENDS

Dividend Policy

The Company has no fixed dividend policy. A decision to distribute
any interim dividend or recommend any final dividend would
require the approval of the Board and will be at its discretion. In
addition, any final dividend for a financial year will be subject to
Shareholders” approval. A decision to declare or pay any dividend in
the future and the amount of any dividends depends on a number
of factors, including but not limited to our results of operations,
financial condition, working capital, capital requirements and
other factors our Board may deem relevant. There is no assurance
that dividends of such amount or any amount will be declared or
distributed each year or in any year.

In addition, as our Company is a holding company registered in
the Cayman Islands and our operations are conducted through our
subsidiaries in the PRC, the availability of funds to pay distributions
to Shareholders depends on dividends received from these
subsidiaries.

During the board meeting held on 25 March 2021, the Board
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK2.5 cents
per share, in form of a cash dividend, to the Shareholders. The
proposed final dividend for 2020 is expected to be paid to the
shareholders on or before Wednesday, 9 June 2021.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

For the purpose of determining the entitlement to attend and
vote at the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Monday, 10 May 2021 (the “2021 AGM"), the register of members
of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 5 May 2021 to
Monday, 10 May 2021, during which period no transfer of Shares
will be effected. Shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on Monday, 10 May 2021 will be
entitled to attend and vote at the 2021 AGM. In order to qualify
for attending and voting at the 2021 AGM, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer
office, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 4 May 2021.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
FINAL DIVIDEND

For the purpose of determining Shareholders’ entitlement to the
final dividend, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Monday, 17 May 2021 to Tuesday, 18 May 2021,
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. The
record date for determination of entitlement to the final dividend
shall be Tuesday, 18 May 2021. Shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on Tuesday, 18 May
2021 will be entitled to the final dividend. To qualify for the
final dividend, all share transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with the
Company's branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Tricor Investor Services Limited at level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday,
14 May 2021,
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INTEREST OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISER

As notified by Guoyuan Capital (Hong Kong) Limited (“Guoyuan
Capital”),
compliance adviser service agreement entered into between the

the Company’s compliance adviser, save for the

Company and Guoyuan Capital dated 28 March 2017, none of
Guoyuan Capital or its directors, employees or associates (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in the Group
as at 31 December 2020, which is required to be notified to the
Company pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of the GEM Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, based on information that is publicly
available to the Company and within the knowledge of the
Directors, the Directors confirm that the Company maintained the
amount of public float as required under the GEM Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management of
the Group the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and discussed auditing, internal control and financial
reporting matters including the review of the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020. The
Audit Committee had reviewed together with the management and
external auditor the accounting principles and policies adopted by
the Group and the audited consolidated financial statements for
the year.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors in writing an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and
the Company considers all the independent non-executive Directors
to be independent.
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AUDITOR

On 3 December 2020, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public
Accountants resigned and BDO Limited was appointed as the
auditor of the Group. Details of the change of auditor were set out
in the announcement of the Company dated 3 December 2020.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other changes in auditor of
the Group during the past three years.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020 have been audited by BDO Limited, Certified Public
Accountants, who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
BDO Limited as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board
Ziyuanyuan Holdings Group Limited
Zhang Junshen
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 March 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIAZHBE RS

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

IBDO

E5E - +852 2218 8288
{2H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ZIYUANYUAN HOLDINGS GROUP
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Ziyuanyuan Holdings Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 106 to 219,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
“Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial

under those standards are further described in the
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We

Professional Accountants”

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

ZIYUANYUAN HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Impairment of finance lease receivable

Refer to Note 19 and the Group's critical accounting estimates and
judgements in relation to impairment of finance lease receivable set
out in Note 4 and Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements

We identified the impairment of finance lease receivable as a key
audit matter due to its significance to the consolidated financial
statements, and the use of judgement by the management in
measuring the expected credit losses (“ECL") for finance lease
receivable which are subject to impairment assessment under
HKFRS 9.

As set out in Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements,
as at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of finance lease
receivable is RMB291,868,000 after deducting a lifetime ECL
allowance of RMB16,331,000, representing 66% of the Group’s
total assets.

As set out in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
management measures ECL for finance lease receivable by using
a provision matrix. In determining the impairment of finance lease
receivable, the management considers (i) internal credit rating
which reflect shared credit risk characteristics for different industry
types, historical past due information and lessees’ creditworthiness
for different groupings of finance lease receivable; (ii) associations
between macroeconomic scenarios and economic inputs, (iii)
forward-looking information without undue cost or effort including
macroeconomic scenarios; and (iv) amount and timing of future
cash flows as parameters of the ECL models, and fair value of the
pledged underlying assets. In addition, finance lease receivable
which are credit-impaired are assessed for ECL individually
based on expectation of cash flows that takes into account the
fair value of the pledged underlying assets based on available
market information and credit risk characteristics of the particular
individual lessees.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIAZHBE RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Our response

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment

assessment included:

Understanding and assessing the appropriateness of
management’s methodology for identifying the grouping of
finance lease receivable on the basis of internal credit rating
which reflect shared credit risk characteristics;

Assessing the reasonableness of ECL model, model
assumptions (such as the estimation of the amount and
timing of future cash flows), economic inputs and forward-
looking macroeconomic scenarios for ECL measurement;

Testing the integrity of a sample of data used to measure ECL;

On a sample basis, checking the accuracy of internal credit
rating which reflect shared credit risk characteristics for
different industry types, historical past due information and
lessees’ creditworthiness for different groupings of finance
lease receivable;

For the credit-impaired finance lease receivable, on a sample
basis, assessing for reasonableness the Group’s assumptions
on the expected future cash flows and testing the value
of the pledged underlying assets against available market
information;

ZIYUANYUAN HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Our response (continued)

- Testing a selection of subsequent settlements of credit-
impaired finance leases, by inspecting supporting documents
for cash receipts from lessees subsequent to the end of the
reporting period; and

- Assessing the financial statement disclosures relating to the
Group’s credit risk management and impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9.

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019 were audited by another auditor who
expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 23 March
2020.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing

to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIAZHBE RS

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibilities in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIAZHBE RS

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among

other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with governance with

a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with

them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be

thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.

ZIYUANYUAN HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

BHEMEZGE
?%Eﬁﬁ{f (#)

e HEBEGAMBTRERNERZ®RS A
EERAD BERE URGEEHME
BREATERBERZZREE-

R 75 ¥R | K

e T BEXEENERNEFTIINMHE
ENENRTE BENEZEE U
BHEAUFERRERER - EFE
B BEEEZNAR -BERWITC
EENBRERBERELMEE-

ELUBZEZE TN (HTEE st8NEZ
HE - HEZH - EABLERS GFF
EREBEZTHE HAEEZENEAER

fRETE®

ENMNEZEZEGTRXEN RAE
Géﬁﬁéﬁulﬁﬁ’ﬂffEEE%%L@gﬁ’Itf;—i
REBBBEOUESEMBEIRETETSE
BIUMRFARGEREMEE LIRERRN
PrectE i Q@A) »



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Cheung Or Ping
Practising Certificate Number P05412

Hong Kong, 25 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEoEmkAMERNER

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_EEFEFF+ A =+—HIFE

2020 2019
—EIEF Z—NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
[ ARETT AR®ETT
Revenue &
Finance leasing income MEHEEWA 54,584 67,064
Interest income from loan FEWE MRF E WA
receivables 1,738 1,061
Income from postpartum care B FIRFBWA
services 2,190 -
Total revenue il 5 58,512 68,125
Bank interest income RITH B WA 46 28
Other gains and losses Hhlh = & E518 7 4,467 1,328
Staff costs BT 10 (14,636) (13,778)
Impairment losses under expected ~ FEFA{E 1B ((FEHRIE BB %))
credit loss (“"ECL") model, BRIET 2B EBEE
net of reversal (0Bx#EE[ED 9 (3,500) (2,861)
Other operating expenses B (21,438) (13,301)
Share of loss of an associate DEBE R BIEE - (60)
Finance costs FE A 8 (8,296) (13,028)
Profit before income tax BRPRIS IR AT F) 10 15,155 26,453
Income tax expenses FRiSMBE 12 (2,270) (9,580)
Profit and total comprehensive FRRA R mmU A LR
income for the year 12,885 16,873
Profit and total comprehensive FREM K2 EABEEES
income for the year
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KRBHEB AN 12,981 16,873
Non-controlling interests R E R (96) -
12,885 16,873
Earnings per share for profit KABHEBANEREEEREF
attributable to owners of
the Company during the year
— Basic and diluted (RMB cents) —HEAR#E (ARED) 14 3.25 4.22
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
REMBRRR

At 31 December 2020
RZEZZFEF+"H=+—H

2020 2019
—EIEF —E-NEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
[ ARBETT AR®ETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment MEBE KRB 15 14,567 939
Right-of-use assets FREEE 16 10,295 13,969
Intangible assets mLEE 17 9,232 -
Finance lease receivable REREEWRIE 19 84,380 119,027
Loan receivables EWE ™ 19 864 5,897
Prepayments for leasehold FENHEYEEENIE
improvement - 6,485
Prepayments for acquisition of WHEMI B A B TR(T 1B
subsidiaries 7,200 -
Deferred tax assets RIETRIBE E 18 5,070 4,996
Refundable rental deposits ARERERE 1,017 1,072
132,625 152,385
CURRENT ASSETS MEBEE
Finance lease receivable RRE B EURIE 19 207,488 240,050
Loan receivables EWRE 19 6,935 7,208
Prepayments and other receivables  F81J 18 K H fth FE Ut =v 18 20 7,749 4,577
Restricted bank deposits BREGIRITER 21 - 61
Bank balances and cash RITHEGRKAIRE 21 84,814 22,291
306,986 274,187
CURRENT LIABILITIES ik BRI
Other payables and accrued charges EL &S IE K FE 5T & 22 12,076 5,796
Provision for taxation T 1E 6,018 8,593
Lease liabilities HEaE 23 3,491 4,031
Deposits from finance lease MERERFZE
customers 19 5,422 24,956
Deferred income 3R IE U A 24 399 2,070
Bank borrowings RITER 25 99,730 56,180
127,136 101,626
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENE ERE 179,850 172,561
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT  #MEERFEARE
LIABILITIES 312,475 324,946

EnnZEREBRFRAR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A MBEAKRR

At 31 December 2020
KIE_ZEFS _FH=+—H

2020 2019
—EIEF —E-hHF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR¥TF T AREFIT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ETREEE
Deferred tax liabilities RN IBE A 18 1,146 1,978
Lease liabilities HEEsE 23 7,729 10,857
Deposits from finance lease MERERRESE
customers 19 257 10,096
Deferred income R IE YA 24 31 1,744
9,163 24,675
NET ASSETS BEEFE 303,312 300,271
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXxKE#E
Share capital [N 26 33,839 33,839
Reserves HH 27 268,529 266,432
Equity attributable to owners of RRABHEB AL #E
the Company 302,368 300,271
Non-controlling interests JERERG = 944 -
TOTAL EQUITY WS4 EE 303,312 300,271

Mr. Zhang Junshen
REBFRSEE

Director

EF

ZIYUANYUAN HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Mr. Zhang Junwei
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Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A AE 3L 4
EeEEE

B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BER —F - FFEF =+ —HIFE

Non-
controlling
Attributable to owners of the Company interests Total
NG PN FERER by
Capital
Share Share  and other  Statutory  Retained
capital premium reserves reserves profits Total
BfR
k& ROEE  HthEE  OAERE  REER it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTR AEETR ARETT AREFR ARBTn ARETR ARETR ARETR
(Note i) (Note i)
(i) (M zEii)
Balance as at 1 January 2019 RZE-nE-F—H 33,839 84,435 133,023 5,392 26,709 283,398 - 283,398
Profit and total comprehensive ~ EREFIRZERALE

income for the year - - - - 16,873 16,873 - 16,873
Transfer to PRC statutory reserves & ZHREIATE (i (P zHiil)

(Note iii) - - - 2,198 (2,198) - - -
Balance as at 31 December 2019 RZZF—AEFZF=+—H 33,839 84,435 133,023 7,590 41,384 300,271 - 300,271
Profit and total comprehensive  EREFI R 2 EMALE

income for the year - - - - 12,981 12,981 (96) 12,885
Dividend paid (Note 13) DREE (HzE13) - (10,884) - - - (10,884) - (10,884)
Acquisition of a subsidiary KE-XWBAF (330)

(Note 30) - - - - - - 1,040 1,040
Transfer to PRC statutory reserves 5% BB R RS (5

(Note iii) - - - 1,227 (1,227) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2020  RWZZFZZFEF-F=+—H 33,839 73,551 133,023 8,817 53,138 302,368 944 303,312
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

SERBEHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HE_ZF

Notes:

(i)

(iii)

ZEFS A=+ —HILFE

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands, share
premium is distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition that
the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution
out of share premium if (i) it is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or (ii) the realisable
value of its assets would thereby be less than aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital account.

Capital and other reserves represents (i) the reserve arising from
the acquisition of 55% equity interest of Ziyuanyuan (Shenzhen)
International Finance Leasing Company Limited (“ZYY Finance
Leasing”), a subsidiary of the company, through acquisition of HK
Lixin Trade Co., Limited ("HK Lixin"); (ii) the difference between the
aggregate of the issued capital of HK Lixin and ZYY Finance Leasing
directly attributable to Mr. Zhang Junshen and Mr. Zhang Junwei, the
controlling individual shareholders of the Company (the “Controlling
Individual Shareholders”) and the net assets value of HK Lixin
upon insertion of the Company and Honor Global Holding Limited
as part of the group reorganisation; (iii) the consideration paid on
the acquisition of the remaining 45% equity interest of ZYY Finance
Leasing by HK Lixin from the Controlling Individual Shareholders;
and (iv) Hero Global Limited (“Hero Global”),
holding company of the Company, waived an amount due from HK

an immediate

Lixin, a subsidiary of the Company, amounting to RMB68,000,000,
which was accounted for as a deemed capital contribution from a
shareholder.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the subsidiaries established
“PRC"),
appropriate 10% or an amount to be determined by its directors

in the People’s Republic of China (the it is required to
of its profit after taxation in accordance with the relevant PRC
regulations before any distribution of dividends to owners each
year to the statutory reserve until the balance reaches 50% of its
registered capital.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
.\7[‘ = EE@/JIL%%

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE—

FTEFFES A=A —HIEFE

2020 2019
k-t 3> 5 T—h&F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
M sx AREFT AREFIT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REZHFISHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before income tax FRPTS AT R A 15,155 26,453
Adjustment for: FEE .
Depreciation of right-of-use assets fERAEEEITE 16 4,110 2,754
Depreciation of property, plant and ¥ HE MR EITE
equipment 15 1,531 335
Covid-19-related rent concession Covid-1918RIFEEE R 7 (726) -
Share of loss of an associate DMEBE QB EIE - 60
Amortisation of intangible assets — EF & E# Y 17 85 -
Property, plant and equipment MEE ~ B R % 1 i EE
written off 15 1 15
Finance costs EE=Y N 8 8,296 13,028
Impairment losses on finance lease FYE T ERWTIEREEE
receivable 9 3,567 2,725
Impairment losses on loan FEWERRIEEE
receivables (reversed)/made (#[E) 5118 9 (67) 136
Bank interest income IRITH B UA (46) (28)
Gain on investment of structured — 4BMERE W R
deposits 7 (1,994) (63)
Gain on disposal of an associate HE =N T W 7 - (260)
Operating profit before working EEESEHRLE RN
capital changes 29,912 45,155
Decrease in finance lease receivable B T8 & & W kI8 5 63,709 6,961
Decrease/(increase) in loan FEUE R/, (38 h0)
receivables 5,305 (13,241)
Increase in prepayments and other  FE3 7R I8 K B FE W =R IEE 110
receivables (2,856) (878)
Increase in other payables and HENRIBE R
accrued charges EEg==Rl 4,319 2,235
Decrease in deposits from finance FIEHRERFRRESK
lease customers and deferred 35 SIE LT AR 2>
income (35,635) (49,679)
Cash generated from/(used in) RERR] (FA) R+
operations 64,754 (9,447)
Income taxes paid BT (5,976) (4,981)
NET CASH GENERATED IREEEFRTS (FRA) HE P8
FROM/(USED IN) OPERATING
ACTIVITIES 58,778 (14,428)

EnnZEREERERAR FEHRE 2020

111



112

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n\7|- | IE ﬁ /7)IL E 1%

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_EEFEFF+ A =+—HIFE

2020 2019
—EIEF Z— 4
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
[ ARBETT AR®ETT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING K EFEFREFRERE
ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of WE—XEAT 2
cash acquired BE&RMAFEE 30 (1,500) -
Decrease/(increase) in BIRFISRTERUR L (8 0)
restricted bank deposits 61 (61)
Increase in prepayments WHEMT B A B 2 TR FIE N
for acquisition of subsidiaries (7,200)
Redemption of structured deposits ElAEE TR 270,614 52,563
Proceeds on disposal of investment ﬁ’iﬁﬁﬁﬁjﬁﬁ SRIE
in an associate - 1,200
Proceeds from rental deposits refund fA & & E TS TIE 240 351
Bank interest income received BUERTTH] B WA 46 28
Payments for right-of-use assets FRAEEEZ IR - (223)
Payments for refundable rental RIBEMHEREZMWR
deposits - (627)
Purchase of property, plant and EEYE -BERKE
equipment (8,667) (738)
Purchase of intangible assets EEETEE 17 (5,099) -
Investment in an associate KEKENE] - (1,000)
Payments for leasehold improvement T8 & #) 2 $£1& 2 (I 7K - (6,485)
Placement of structured deposits FEEBEER (268,620) (52,500)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING  # & EEFTAIREFE
ACTIVITIES (20,125) (7,492)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n\7r A EE@IHL%%

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_FE_FFEF _HZAF—HIFFE

2020 2019
—ECTHE Z—NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
[ ARBETT AR®ETT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RIEFENFISRERE
ACTIVITIES 34
Bank borrowings raised SHIBTEMR 101,080 61,000
Cash receipts from financial ClERBREENTMEEN
liability arising from repurchase e WR
agreements - 4,953
Interest paid for financial liability — CIEHZEEENSRERN
arising from repurchase BNFE
agreements - (63)
Issue costs paid BT &7 A - (346)
Interest portion of the lease ENEEAGNEHZIS
liabilities paid (897) (508)
Repayments of principal portion of EEHAESEAEIHD
the leases liabilities (3,378) (1,612)
Interest paid for bank borrowings  fRITERBELSF B (4,521) (4,664)
Dividend paid to the Company'’s DK ETFTARRABRE
shareholders (10,884) -
Repayments of financial liability BELEGREENTMEE
arising from repurchase
agreements - (4,953)
Repayments of bank borrowings BEREIBITER (57,530) (34,600)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM MEZBREREFHE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 23,870 19,207
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN RERRESEBEMWEM (EL)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS %% 62,523 (2,713)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS WM—B—HHRERRELEY
AT 1 JANUARY 22,291 25,004
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS W+ZA=+—HHRER
AT 31 DECEMBER REXEEY 84,814 22,291
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND RERFEZEEMAIN
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances RITRFERE 84,814 22,291
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GENERAL

Ziyuanyuan Holdings Group Limited (the "Company") is a
public limited company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and its shares are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Company's
immediate and ultimate holding company is Hero Global.
The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information section of the annual report.

The shares of the Company have been listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange with effect from 9 July 2018.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) are provision of
finance leasing services and postpartum care services in the
PRC. Details of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in Note
33.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020 were approved for issue by the board of directors of the
Company on 25 March 2021.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
2.1 Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new or amended
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group:

° Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a Business

° Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8, Definition of
Material

. Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9,
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B WRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(continued)

2.1

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs (continued)

These new or amended HKFRSs did not have any
significant impact on the Group’s results and financial
position for the current or prior period. The Group has
not early applied any new or amended HKFRSs that
is not yet effective for the current accounting period
except for the amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-
Related Rent Concessions. Impact on the applications of
these amended HKFRSs are summarised below.

Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

HKFRS 16 was amended to provide a practical expedient
to lessees in accounting for rent concessions arising
as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic, by including an
additional practical expedient in HKFRS 16 that permits
entities to elect not to account for rent concessions
as modifications. The practical expedient applies only
to rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence
of Covid-19 pandemic and only if all of the following
criteria are satisfied:

- the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the
lease immediately preceding the change;

- the reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June
2021; and

- there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

iR e MR R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FFEAf_FH=+—HIEE

RMERMBRSEN (TE
AMBRSEN) @

2.1

RS RESTEBMBRE
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ZEMI VBT BBV HRS
ZQHAE BB BT
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T AEBTRIZEERBMEM
PeAS & 5t B 1) R £ BBV R 5T 3K
RIESTEBMBREER K&
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e

BRI ERF 16350915
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BERMBREERB16RDEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M IR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BEr _F _EFFEF _H=+—HIFFEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(continued)

2.1 Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs (continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions (continued)

Rent concessions that satisfy these criteria may
be accounted for in accordance with this practical
expedient, which means the lessee does not need to
assess whether the rent concession meets the definition
of lease modification. Lessees shall apply other
requirements of HKFRS 16 in accounting for the rent

concession.

Accounting for rent concessions as lease modifications
would have resulted in the Group remeasuring the
lease liability to reflect the revised consideration using
a revised discount rate, with the effect of the change
in the lease liability recorded against the right-of-use
asset. By applying the practical expedient, the Group is
not required to determine a revised discount rate and
the effect of the change in the lease liability is reflected
in profit or loss in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the rent concession occurs.

The Group has elected to utilise the practical expedient
for all rent concessions that meet the criteria.
accordance with the transitional provisions, the Group
has applied the amendment retrospectively, and has not
restated prior period figure. As the rent concessions
have arisen during the current financial period, there
is no retrospective adjustment to opening balance
of retained earnings at 1 January 2020 on initial
application of the amendment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)
2.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective
The following new or amended HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group's financial statements, have been
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group. The Group's current intention

is to apply these changes on the date they become

effective.

Amendments to
HKAS 1

HK Interpretation 5

(2020)

Amendments to
HKAS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 37

HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to

HKAS 39, HKFRS

4, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 16

Annual

Improvements to

HKFRSs 2018-
20202

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current?*

Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause*

Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?
Insurance Contracts*

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 2’

RE M B ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M IR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEf _H=+—HIEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

2.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022.
3 Effective for business combinations for which the date of

acquisition is on or after the beginning of the first annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023.
> The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the

sale or contribution of assets occurring in annual periods
beginning on or after a date to be determined.

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current and HK Interpretation

5 (2020), Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

The amendments clarify that the classification of
liabilities as current or non-current is based on rights
that are in existence at the end of the reporting period,
specify that classification is unaffected by expectations
about whether an entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement of a liability and explain that rights are in
existence if covenants are complied with at the end of
the reporting period. The amendments also introduce a
definition of ‘settlement’ to make clear that settlement
refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity
instruments, other assets or services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(continued)

2.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)
Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current and HK Interpretation
5 (2020), Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause (continued)
HK Int 5 (2020) was revised as a consequence of the
Amendments to HKAS 1 issued in August 2020. The
revision to HK Int 5 (2020) updates the wordings in the
interpretation to align with the Amendments to HKAS
1 with no change in conclusion and do not change the
existing requirements.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of the amendments and revision in the
future will have an impact on the financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16, Proceeds before
Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds
from selling items produced while bringing that asset to
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management.
Instead, the proceeds from selling such items, and the
cost of producing those items, is recognised in profit or
loss.

The directors of the Company is currently assessing the
impact that the application of the amendments will have
on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEf _H=+—HIEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

2.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a
contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the
contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can
either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(e.g. direct labour and materials) or an allocation of
other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (e.g.
the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item
of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the
contract).

The directors of the Company is currently assessing the
impact that the application of the amendments will have
on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

The new standard establishes the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
of insurance contracts and supersedes HKFRS 4,
Insurance Contracts. The standard outlines a ‘General
Model’, which is modified for insurance contracts with
direct participation features, described as the 'Variable
Fee Approach’. The General Model is simplified if certain
criteria are met by measuring the liability for remaining
coverage using the Premium Allocation Approach.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of this standard in the future will have an
impact on the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(continued)

2.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the
Conceptual Framework
The amendments update HKFRS 3 so that it refers
to the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 instead of the version issued in 2010.
The amendments add to HKFRS 3 a requirement
that, for obligations within the scope of HKAS 37, an
acquirer applies HKAS 37 to determine whether at the
acquisition date a present obligation exists as a result of
past events. For a levy that would be within the scope of
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies, the acquirer applies HK(IFRIC)-
Int 21 to determine whether the obligating event that
gives rise to a liability to pay the levy has occurred by
the acquisition date. The amendments also add an
explicit statement that an acquirer does not recognise
contingent assets acquired in a business combination.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments in the future will have
an impact on the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEf _H=+—HIEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(continued)

2.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify with situations where there is a
sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture. When the transaction with
an associate or joint venture that is accounted for using
the equity method, any gains or losses resulting from
the loss of control of a subsidiary that does not contain
a business are recognised in the profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that
associate or joint venture. Similarly, any gains or losses
resulting from the remeasurement of retained interest in
any former subsidiary (that has become an associate or
a joint venture) to fair value are recognised in the profit
or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors'

interests in the new associate or joint venture.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of these amendments may have an impact
on the financial statements in future periods should

such transaction arise.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

The annual improvements amends a number of

standards, including:

° HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, which permit a
subsidiary that applies paragraph D16(a) of HKFRS
1 to measure cumulative translation differences
using the amounts reported by its parent, based
on the parent’s date of transition to HKFRSs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE B wRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BER —F - FFEF =+ —HIFE

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)
2.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020
(continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which clarify
the fees included in the 10 per cent’ test in
paragraph B3.3.6 of HKFRS 9 in assessing whether
to derecognise a financial liability, explaining that
only fees paid or received between the entity
and the lender, including fees paid or received by
either the entity or the lender on other’s behalf are
included.

HKFRS 16, Leases, which amend Illustrative
Example 13 to remove the illustration of
reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the
lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease incentives that
might arise because of how lease incentives are
illustrated in that example.

HKAS 41, Agriculture, which remove the
requirement to exclude taxation cash flows when
measuring the fair value of a biological asset using
a present value technique.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the

application of the amendments in the future will have

an impact on the financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEf _H=+—HIEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

2.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16, Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

The amendments address issues that might affect
financial reporting when a company replaces the old
interest rate benchmark with an alternative benchmark
rate as a result of the interest rate benchmark reform
(the "Reform”). The amendments complement those
issued in November 2019 and relate to (a) changes
to contractual cash flows in which an entity will not
have to derecognise or adjust the carrying amount
of financial instruments for changes required by the
Reform, but will instead update the effective interest
rate to reflect the change to the alternative benchmark
rate; (b) hedge accounting in which an entity will
not have to discontinue its hedge accounting solely
because it makes changes required by the Reform, if
the hedge meets other hedge accounting criteria; and
(c) disclosures in which an entity will be required to
disclose information about new risks arising from the
Reform and how it manages the transition to alternative
benchmark rates.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments in the future will have
an impact on the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation

The financial statements on pages 106 to 219 have
been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("HKAS”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
financial statements include the applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of the Stock Exchange.

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented. The
adoption of new or amended HKFRSs and the impacts
on the Group's financial statements, if any, are disclosed
in Note 2.

The financial statements have been prepared under
historical cost convention, except for certain financial
instruments, which are stated at fair value. The
measurement bases are fully described in the accounting
policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in the preparation of the financial
statements. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge and judgement of
current events and actions, actual results may ultimately
differ from those estimates. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

BEr _F _EFFEF _H=+—HIFFEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Business combination and basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with unrealised
profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of impairment on the asset transferred, in which case
the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the dates of acquisition or up to the
effective dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of

the Group.

The Group accounts for business combinations using
the acquisition method when the acquired set of
activities and assets meets the definition of a business
and control is transferred to the Group. In determining
whether a particular set of activities and assets is a
business, the Group assesses whether the set of assets
and activities acquired includes, at a minimum, an input
and substantive processes and whether the acquired set
has the ability to produce outputs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE B wRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FFEAf_FH=+—HIEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3. FEEHHEEE -

3.2 Business combination and basis of consolidation 3.2 X¥BEHRESEE (&)
(continued)
The cost of an acquisition is measured at the aggregate WHE R AP e B E -FTEL

of the acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the
Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at
acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or
losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may
elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure
the non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary either at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs
incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in issuing
equity instruments in which case the costs are deducted
from equity.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity,
separately from equity attributable to owners of the
Company. Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the Company and to the non-controlling interests.
Total comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Business combination and basis of consolidation

3.3

(continueq)

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's
interest and non-controlling interest are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by
which non-controlling interest is adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would be
required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed
of.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are
present: (i) power over the investee, (i) exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from the investee, and (iii) the
ability to use its power to affect those variable returns.
Control is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances
indicate that there may be a change in any of these
elements of control.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.3

34

Subsidiaries (continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any
impairment loss. The results of the subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but not control or joint control
over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and
thereafter, their carrying amount are adjusted for the
Group's share of the post-acquisition change in the
associates’ net assets except that losses in excess of
the Group’s interest in the associate are not recognised
unless there is an obligation to make good those losses.

Profit and loss arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate.
The investor’s share in the associate’s profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against
the carrying value of the associate. Where unrealised
losses provide evidence of impairment of the asset
transferred they are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B WRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEf _H=+—HIEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.4

3.5

Associates (continued)

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value
of the Group's share of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and
included in the carrying amount of the associate. Where
there is objective evidence that the investment in an
associate has been impaired, the carrying amount of the
investment is tested for impairment in the same way as
other non-financial assets.

Foreign currency

The financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB"), which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the individual entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the reporting date, monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that
date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
reporting date retranslation of monetary assets and
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined and are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured at
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FFEAf_FH=+—HIEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESHBEME &

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.6 Property, plant and equipment 3.6 ME -BERSZE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives as
follows:

Furniture and office equipment 5 years
Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms

Motor vehicle 5 years
The assets’ depreciation methods and estimated useful
lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
reporting date.

Gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance, are charged to profit or loss during the
period in which they are incurred.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.7

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
exceed the aggregate of the fair value of consideration
paid, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree, the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the
acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units (“CGU") that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A CGU is
the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates
cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or groups of assets. A CGU
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, by comparing its carrying amount
with its recoverable amount (see Note 3.14), and
whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.7

3.8

Goodwill (continued)

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that financial
year. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less
than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment
loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the
other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the
carrying amount to each asset in the unit. However,
the loss allocated to each asset will not reduce the
individual asset’s carrying amount to below its fair value
less cost of disposal (if measurable) or its value-in-use (if
determinable), whichever is the higher. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss and is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets acquired separately and in a
business combination

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at the
date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation of computer software is provided on
straight-line method over their useful lives of 5 years.
The amortisation expenses is recognised in profit or loss
and included in administrative expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M IR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BER - E - FFEF+ =+ —HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.8 Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
Internally generated intangible assets (research
and development costs)

Expenditure on internally developed products is
capitalised if it can be demonstrated that:

o it is technically feasible to develop the product for
it to be sold;

o adequate resources are available to complete the
development;

o there is an intention to complete and sell the
product;

o the Group is able to sell the product; and

o sale of the product will generate future economic
benefits; and expenditure on the project can be
measured reliably.

Development expenditure not satisfying the above
criteria and expenditure on the research phase of
internal projects are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE B wRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FFEAf_FH=+—HIEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.9 Financial instruments

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item
not at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL"),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to
its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without
a significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
market place. Financial assets with embedded
derivatives are considered in their entirely when
determining whether their cash flows are solely
payment of principal and interest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M IR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEf _H=+—HIEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.9 Financial instruments (continued)
(i) Financial assets (continued)
Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are two
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

(1) Financial assets at amortised cost: Assets
that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. These are
subsequently measured using effective
interest rate method. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.9 Financial instruments (continued)

(i) Financial assets (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

2)

Financial assets at FVTPL: These include
financial assets held for trading, financial
assets designated upon initial recognition
at FVTPL, or financial assets mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value.
Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling or repurchasing in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not solely
payments of principal and interest are
classified and measured at FVTPL, irrespective
of the business model. Notwithstanding
the criteria for debt instruments to be
classified at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income, debt
instruments may be designated at FVTPL
on initial recognition if doing so eliminates,
or significantly reduces, an accounting
mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B WRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEf _H=+—HIEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.9

Financial instruments (continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit loss ("ECL") on financial assets (including
loan receivables, refundable rental deposits, other
receivables, restricted bank deposits and bank
balances) and finance lease receivable which are
subject to impairment under HFKRS 9. The ECLs
are measured on either of the following bases:

(1) 12-month ECLs (“12m ECL"): these are the
ECLs that result from possible default events
within the 12-month after the reporting
date: and

(2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from
all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The maximum
period considered when estimating ECLs is
the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due
to the Group in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an
approximation to the assets’ original effective
interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.9 Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)
The Group has elected to measure loss allowances
for finance lease receivables using HKFRS 9
simplified approach and has calculated ECLs based
on lifetime ECLs. To measure the ECLs, finance
lease receivable have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics or are assessed
individually for credit-impaired balances.

For other debt financial assets, ECLs are based
on lifetime ECLs except when there has not been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the allowance will be
based on the 12-month ECLs.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument and finance lease receivable
as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument or
finance lease receivable as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M IR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEf _H=+—HIEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.9 Financial instruments (continued)
(iij) Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit rating;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its
debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.9 Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and revises
them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
classifies credit risk on finance lease receivable into
4 grades (low risk, fair risk, loss and write-off). The
internal credit risk ratings are based on qualitative
(such as lessee’s operating conditions, financial
positions, etc.) and quantitative factors (mainly
includes past due information of the finance lease
receivable).

The Group considers an event of default occurs
when information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
or finance lease receivable is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M IR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEf _H=+—HIEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.9 Financial instruments (continued)

(iij) Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets/finance lease
receivable
A financial asset or finance lease receivable is
credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset/finance lease
receivable have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset/finance lease receivable is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following
events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted
to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties; or

(f)  the purchase or origination of a financial

asset at a deep discount that reflects the
incurred credit losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE B wRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FFEAf_FH=+—HIEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.9 Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)
Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset or finance
lease receivable when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets
or finance lease receivable written off may still
be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default (“PD"), loss given default
("LGD") (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default
("EAD"). The assessment of the PD and LGD is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B WRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEf _H=+—HIEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.9 Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL
(continued)

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due
to the Group in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition. For a
finance lease receivable, the cash flows used
for determining the ECL is consistent with the
cash flows used in measuring the finance lease
receivable in accordance with HKFRS 16.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis to
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the
financial instruments are grouped on the following
basis:

. Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the
Group’s other receivables and finance lease
receivable are each assessed as a separate
group.);

. Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

° External credit ratings where available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.9
(i)

(iii)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL
(continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue
to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised

cost of the financial asset.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at amortised
costs are initially measured at fair value, net of
directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
other payables, deposits from finance lease
customers and bank borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is

recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through amortisation process.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B WRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEf _H=+—HIEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.9 Financial instruments (continued)

(iv) Effective interest method

(v)

This is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income or interest expense
over the relevant period. Effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts or payments through the expected
life of the financial asset or liability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows
in relation to the financial asset expire or when
the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.9 Financial instruments (continued)

(v)

Derecognition (continued)

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments
to a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole
or in part as a result of renegotiating the terms
of that liability, the equity instruments issued are
the consideration paid and are recognised initially
and measured at their fair value on the date the
financial liability or part thereof is extinguished.
If the fair value of the equity instruments
issued cannot be reliably measured, the equity
instruments are measured to reflect the fair
value of the financial liability extinguished. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability or part thereof extinguished and
the consideration paid is recognised in profit or
loss for the year.

3.10 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is

determined using the nominal value of shares that have

been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issue of shares
are deducted from share premium (net of any related
income tax benefit) to the extent they are incremental

costs directly attributable to the equity transaction.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEf _H=+—HIEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.1

3.12

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and demand deposits, and short-term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are payable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position,
cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Leases

The Group as a lessee

All leases are required to be capitalised in the statement
of financial position as right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities, but accounting policy choices exist for an
entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which
are short-term leases and/or (ii) leases for which
the underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has
elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for low-value assets and leases for which at
the commencement date have a lease term less than
12 months. The lease payments associated with those
leases have been expensed on straight-line basis over
the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE B wRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FFEAf_FH=+—HIEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12 Leases (continued)

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and

would comprise:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability (see below for the accounting policy to
account for lease liability);

any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and

an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset to
the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to
produce inventories.

The Group measures the right-of-use assets applying

a cost model. Under the cost model, the Group

measures the right-to-use at cost, less any accumulated

depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted

for any remeasurement of lease liability.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEf _H=+—HIEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12 Leases (continued)

Right-of-use asset (continued)

The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings
which is held for own use under HKAS 16 and are
carried at cost. Other than the above right-of-use assets,
the Group also has leased a number of properties
under tenancy agreements which the Group exercises it
judgement and determines that it is a separate class of
asset apart from the leasehold land and buildings which
is held for own use. As a result, the right-of-use asset
arising from the properties under tenancy agreements
are carried at depreciated cost.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease are considered
to be lease payments:

(i)  fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12 Leases (continued)

Lease liability (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee
is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an
option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group

measures the lease liability by:

(i)

(iii)

increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest
on the lease liability;

reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made; and

remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessment or lease modifications, or to reflect
revised in-substance fixed lease payments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

BEr _F _EFFEF _H=+—HIFFEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12 Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessor

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the leased assets to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
as an expense on the straight-line basis over the lease

term.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as lease receivables at the amount of the
Group’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease
income is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group's
net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Sale and leaseback transactions

The Group applies the requirements of HKFRS 15
to assess whether sale and leaseback transaction
constitutes a sale by the Group.

For a transfer of asset that does not satisfy the
requirements of HKFRS 15 to be accounted for as a sale
of asset, the Group as a buyer-lessor does not recognise
the transferred asset and recognises loan receivables
equal to the transfer proceeds within the scope HKFRS

9.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE B wRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FFEAf_FH=+—HIEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESHBEME &

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13 Revenue recognition 3.13 IR R

Finance leasing income consists of finance lease
income and is recognised over the period of lease (see
accounting policy in respect of leases in Note 3.12)
and in accordance with HKFRS 16. Interest income is
calculated with reference to the gross carrying amount
of finance lease receivable, except for those which have
subsequently become credit-impaired, for which interest
income is calculated with reference to their amortised
cost from the next reporting period.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or service is transferred over
time if the Group's performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed

simultaneously by the customer;

. creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13 Revenue recognition (continued)

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods or service.

Income from postpartum care service is recognised
over time as the postpartum care, healthcare and other
services are provided. Deposits will be made upon the
confirmation of the orders and most of the remaining
balance will be paid upon the commencement of the
service.

Interest income is recognised on time-proportion basis
using effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13

3.14

Revenue recognition (continued)

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods/services that the
Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group's unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation
to transfer goods/services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

Impairment of assets (other than financial assets)
At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets other than goodwill, right-of-use
assets and interests in subsidiaries to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value-in-use) of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.

iR e MR R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FFEAf_FH=+—HIEE

3. FEEHHEEE -

3.13

3.14

W bR (42)

EHNBERERE
BHNEEEEREEMBINER
EEERERFEENG R R
Y E R E B F) B e 8 F] 15 <
Pl A AR o MBI BIRRRIE TS
B R B R IR E R R
) B LB B HA 5 TR A 2 75 s
R

BHNEREEREERERER
WERARE (S E R U EAE) »
MAREREESER RENE
fFo

BE MBEERND ZRE
RERSHER TEBERY
F BEARB - BLEE (BE
BRON ~ERREEMURIKNEA
BlzEmNREE UEEES
ERBATZEEECHSHE
BEIMUERBZHEGEER
EEENAIEESLRL -

WEBEEZIWEIEEE (BRF
BEALENFTEEREENE
hrzEeE) G EREEREE
AIEEZ REERAREEAEE
TR BERBIBRNR X8 FRIF
HABEERES —BEBHMHR
SEARE G TSR HER
BEEERREZEEBEYHFRS
AR IFRMGBERE -

ZanEREEARAE FEHE 2020

155



156

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A
117 O = |

At 5 R R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Impairment of assets (other than financial assets)

(continueq)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
HKFRS, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss
is treated as a revaluation increase under that HKFRS.

Value-in-use is based on the estimated future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset or CGU (see Note
3.7), discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset or CGU.

3.15 Employee benefits

(i) Retirement benefit schemes
Payments to defined contribution retirement
benefit plans and the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE B wRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FFEAf_FH=+—HIEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.15 Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

(i)

Retirement benefit schemes (continued)
Employees in the PRC are members of a state-
managed employee pension scheme operated
by the relevant municipal government in the
PRC which undertakes to assume the retirement
benefit obligations of all existing and future retired
employees. The Group’s obligation is to make
the required contributions under the scheme.
The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expenses when they are due.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at
the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in
the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual
leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount
already paid.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEf _H=+—HIEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.16 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying assets
which require a substantial period of time to be
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. Income earned on
temporary investments of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which

they are incurred.

3.17 Income taxes

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and

deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. The amount
of current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate
of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that

reflects any uncertainty related to income tax.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FFEAf_FH=+—HIEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESHBEME &

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.17 Income taxes (continued)

3.17 FREMHR (&)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for goodwill not deductible for tax purposes and
initial recognition of assets and liabilities that are not
part of the business combination which affect neither
accounting nor taxable profits, taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future, deferred tax liabilities are recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised, provided that
the deductible temporary differences are not arises
from initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a
transaction other than in a business combination that
affects neither taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to
the expected manner in which the carrying amount of
the asset or liability is realised or settled and that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
reporting period, and reflects any uncertainty related to
income taxes.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.17 Income taxes (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the assets to be
recovered.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or when they
relate to items recognised directly in equity in which
case the taxes are also recognised directly in equity.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities in net if, and only if, the entity has a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and deferred tax assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

(i)  the same taxable entity; or

(i) different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE B wRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE—EFEFF+ /A =+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.18 Segment reporting

3. FEEHHEEE -

3.18 D EpIR

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the directors for
their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group’s major product and service lines.

The Group has identified the following reportable
segments: (1) finance leasing; and (2) postpartum care
service.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment profit under HKFRS 8 are the same as those
used in its financial statements prepared under HKFRSs,
except that:

° finance costs

. share of loss of associate

. income tax expense

are not included in arriving at the operating profit of the
operating segment.

Segment assets and liabilities exclude corporate assets
and liabilities which are not directly attributable to
the business activities of any operating segment are
not allocated to a segment, which primarily applied
to deferred tax assets/liabilities and the Group's
headquarter.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEf _H=+—HIEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.19 Related parties
(@) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity

and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.19 Related parties (continued)

(b)

(continued)

v)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees of the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Company’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those

family members who may be expected to influence, or

be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity and include:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

that person’s children and spouse or domestic

partner,

children of that person’s spouse or domestic

partner; and

dependents of that person or that person’s spouse

or domestic partner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B WRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEf _H=+—HIEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.20 Government grants

3.21

Government grants are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as revenue in profit or loss on
a systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that year or in the year of the revision
and future years if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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BE—EFEFF+ /A =+—HIFE

TEERNRZEERER
st

BB R A S B 2 B A TSR (AR A M
3) B AATEBAEHABELE
HiEHRRE s EER S EERE
(B2 H8 3 R B o (b5 BB BB
B IREB R RS B
HAE R F o EHAERAAER R
ZE it

Eet REEBRRDEFEREEETR
e gEthst 2SI ERESTEEt 2
FERES (HEJEXEZEE) 3
PMEST FEE R AR R F EHERD (HIEFT R
BER AR °

UTHREBESHRBEARRZEEZR
BURGEFAEBRARZAMERZR
R HAIBE R AREXRRR  BRAH T
—EMREFERNZEEREGEREE
EHERBE-

ZanEREEARAE FEHE 2020

165



166

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Impairment of finance lease receivable

The measurement of impairment of finance lease receivable
requires judgement in evaluating the ECL. The Group uses
a provision matrix to measure ECL for the finance lease
receivable, except for the finance lease receivable which is
credit-impaired, which is assessed for ECL individually. As part
of the measurement process, the assessment of PD and LGD
is based on a number of historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information that is reasonable and supportable
available without undue costs or effort.

In particular, the parameters of the ECL models for the
provision matrix that require the use of judgements and
estimates mainly include (i) internal credit rating which assign
PD to grades of the finance lease receivable; (ii) determination
of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and
economic inputs, such as nonfarm payroll and purchasing
managers' index and the effect on PD, LGD and EAD; (iii)
selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and
their probability weightings, to derive the economic inputs
into the ECL models; (iv) the estimation of the amount and
timing of future cash flows, and fair value of the pledged
underlying assets.

In addition, finance lease receivables which are
credit-impaired are assessed for ECL individually based
on expectation of cash flows that take into account the
individual circumstances, including fair value of the pledged
underlying assets based on available market information and
credit risks characteristics of the particular individual lessees.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates of
expected cash flows to be received. The information about
the ECL and the Group’s finance lease receivable are disclosed
in Notes 9 and 19.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEf _H=+—HIEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Recognition of deferred taxation

As at 31 December 2020, deferred tax assets of RMB5,070,000
(2019: RMB4,996,000), in relation to the temporary difference
arising from finance lease income and ECL provision were
recognised in the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position. The realisability of the deferred tax assets mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available in the future. In
cases where the actual future profits generated are less than
expected, a material reversal or recognition of deferred tax
assets may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss
for the period in which such a reversal or recognition takes
place. Details of the deferred tax are disclosed in Note 18.

REVENUE

Revenue for the year represents finance leasing income,
interest income on loan receivables received and receivable
arising from the finance leasing activities and income from
postpartum care services in the PRC. The amounts of each
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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significant category of revenue recognised in revenue during WASERIBZREWT -
the year are as follows:

2020 2019
—E_EHF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARYFT ARBTT
Finance leasing income MEHEEWA 54,584 67,064
Interest income from loan receivables B E B WA 1,738 1,061
Income from postpartum care services B F B’ A 2,190 -
58,512 68,125
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M IR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEf _H=+—HIEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.
For the year ended 31 December 2020, information regarding
the Group’s reportable segments provided to the Group's
most senior management (i.e. the executive directors) is set

DEEH
BE-2-2EL_A=+—ALF
B REAFEERSERE B3
£35) WEMSEET 2R BOES

out below: mnr
2020 32 3
Finance Postpartum
leasing service care service Total
AEHE SRS B FIR# st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREF7T
Reportable segment revenue B 2R 9 Uk
(external customers) GrEBEFR) 56,322 2,190 58,512
Reportable segment profit/(loss) B] 2 D 354, (E518) 27,340 (227) 27,113
Other corporate income H AT WA 1,602
Other corporate expenses HMABRX (12,209)
Finance costs BE R A (1,351)
Profit before income tax FRPRSF AT A 15,155
Reportable segment assets AE2RNHEE 368,523 9,800 378,323
Property, plant and equipment ¥ R KR 2,043
Prepayments and other FEAT RIS e MR U
receivables B 429
Intangible assets mLEE 5,014
Deferred tax assets RIERIEEE 5,070
Cash and bank balances R& RIRITAER 39,519
Prepayments in acquisition of WS E A B A RIA
subsidiaries 7,200
Refundable rental deposit ARERERE 510
Right-of-use assets FREEE 1,503
Group assets EEEE 439,611
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

iR e MR R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FFEAf_FH=+—HIEE

6. DEPEH @

Finance Postpartum
leasing service care service Total
b & 1 & AR 7% B 7R 4 st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT ARETFT
Reportable segment liabilities B 2R D & E 86,931 2,363 89,294
Other payables and accrued HME A HRIER
charges FEstE R 5,398
Lease liabilities HEEaR& 1,443
Provision for taxation fEfIRIE 6,018
Bank borrowings RITIER 33,000
Deferred tax liabilities EIERIEE(R 1,146
Group liabilities EEaE 136,299
Capital expenditure BEARZH 13,146 294 13,440
Impairment losses of FEWRIE BB E 18
receivables 3,500 - 3,500
Interest income FEWA 29 2 31
Interest expenses MEEX 6,945 - 6,945
Depreciation of property, ME - -BERRBEITE
plant and equipment 1,143 8 1,151
Depreciation of right-of-use FREEEEITE
assets 2,344 - 2,344
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_EEFEFF+ A =+—HIFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

170

6. DEPEK @

2019 —NEF
Finance Postpartum
leasing service care service Total
MERERY BFR#% “aEt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARFT ARBFT ARBFT
Reportable segment revenue  B] 2D EURE
(external customers) UNEE ) 68,125 - 68,125
Reportable segment profit Al 2R &R EF) 33,822 - 33,822
Other corporate income Ht Qs WA 436
Other corporate expenses Htt BEMAX (7,465)
Share of loss of associate FE{L B A B 518 (60)
Finance costs EE= Wi (280)
Profit before income tax BREAE AT 26,453
Reportable segment assets 2RI EE 415,035 - 415,035
Property, plant and equipment #)% -~ B KR HE 702
Prepayments and other TR RIE e MR U
receivables B 22
Deferred tax assets IRIETRIEE E 4,996
Restricted bank deposits B REIBITER 61
Cash and bank balances R MIRTTARER 2,360
Refundable rental deposit RIEMERS 564
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 2,832
Group assets EREE 426,572
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FFEAf_FH=+—HIEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

6. DEEH &=

Finance Postpartum
leasing service care service Total
MERERS B TR st
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARTFIT AE®BTT AE®ETT
Reportable segment liabilities B 2R D & E 106,386 - 106,386
Other payables and accrued HME I HRIER
charges FEST & 3,385
Lease liabilities HEaE 2,959
Provision for taxation E{T I8 8,593
Bank borrowings RITIER 3,000
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIESE 1,978
Group liabilities EEaE 126,301
Capital expenditure BEARZH 118 - 118
Impairment losses of FEWRIE BB E 18
receivables 2,861 - 2,861
Interest income FEWA 26 - 26
Interest expenses MEES 12,748 - 12,748
Depreciation of property, ME -BERREBITE
plant and equipment 93 - 93
Depreciation of right-of-use FREEEITE
assets 586 - 586

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
Company is an investment holding company and the principal
place of the Group's operation is in the PRC. All the Group's
revenue and major non-current assets are attributable to and
located in the PRC.

None of the customers contributed over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group of the corresponding years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= AH

702 O =

At 5 R R MY 5

For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020

BHE

FFE+ A= —HILFE

7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HihlhmkiEsia
2020 2019
—EEE —E-NHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFIT
Gain on sales of finance lease receivable FiEH & EWTIEHE W iF
(Note i) (B 5Ei) - 1,044
Gain on disposal of investments HEME QAT W (i)
in an associate (Note ii) - 260
Gain on investment of structured EEEERZRERA
deposits 1,994 63
Government subsidies (Note iii) BT fE AL (B EEiii) 2,078 -
Exchange loss, net PEREIEFRE (358) (71)
Covid-19-related rent concession Covid-19—tHREFEEE R 726 -
Others Hh 27 32
4,467 1,328
Notes: M35

(i)

(iii)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, a finance lease
receivable of which the lessee involved in a restructuring
activity, was sold to a third party, at the price of
RMB1,200,000, with carrying amount of RMB156,000 after
deducting an accumulated impairment of RMB879,000.

In December 2019, the Group disposed of investment in
Shenzhen Kangyi Pediatric Medical Equipment Sharing
Management Co., Ltd., an associate of the Group that invested
in January 2019, to an independent third party at consideration
of RMB1,200,000, which resulted in the Group recognising a
gain of RMB260,000 in profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
obtained support granted by governments during the Covid-19
pandemic, included RMB49,000 Employment Support
Scheme from government of HKSAR and RMB391,000 from
government of the PRC. The PRC tax authority has announced
that for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December
2021, entities engaged in provision of service in four particular
areas could have extra deduction on VAT amounted to
RMB1,638,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE M B ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BER —F - FFEF =+ —HIFE

FINANCE COSTS 8. MIERZA
2020 2019
—EEF “E—nF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARHF AR®ETT
Imputed interests on interest-free deposits FIEFHEE A R B &K
from finance lease customers HEFE 2,878 8,078
Interests on bank borrowings repayable B —EREZERETT
within one year ERGlIS) 4,521 4,379
Interests on lease liabilities HEEEME 897 508
Interests on financial liability arising from [EEHEEENEREEN
repurchase agreements ME - 63
8,296 13,028

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER EXPECTED 9.
CREDIT LOSS ("ECL") MODEL, NET OF
REVERSAL

FREAS AR K (TFRERE A
B/K))BRIE T ZREER
(30 R £ [ED)

2020 2019
—EZEHF —E-NE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TFT AE®TIT
Impairment losses recognised on: BB B
— finance lease receivable —MEEEEWIE 3,567 2,725
— loan receivables —ERER (67) 136
3,500 2,861

Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note 35.

B EF BB MI5E35
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_EEFEFF+ A =+—HIFE

10. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 10. FRFRIS A F!
Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/ BRETIEMATEF B GEA) -
(crediting):
2020 2019
32 3 —Z—hEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT ARBTIT
Directors’ emoluments (Note 11) ERHHN F5E11) 1,780 1,514
Other staff costs HME T A
— Salaries, allowances and other staff —HE R REME TEFN
benefits 13,990 12,868
— Staffs' retirement benefit scheme —BTRARENFBIHR
contributions 66 763
Total staff costs = W N 15,836 15,145
Less: staff costs recognised as research & | REMKE A HEA
and development costs in other B 3E P AR B TR AR
operating expenses (1,200) (1,367)
Staff costs recognised in profit REGERZETIRA
or loss 14,636 13,778
Amortisation of intangible assets mLEEEH 85 -
Auditor’s remuneration BB #r & 1,449 1,100
Depreciation of property, plant and YE~ERREITE
equipment 1,531 335
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEENE 4,110 2,754
Property, plant and equipment written off #J2£ - Bt 5= Kz & £ Hf 5 1 15
Research and development costs R AR RER A
recognised as an expense GtAREMEERS)
(included in other operating expenses) 1,593 1,451
Short-term leases payments FRHAFR B R 894 483
Note: Bt :

Auditor’s remuneration for other non-audit services of RMB578,000
was recognised during the year (2019: Nil).

174 Z1YUANYUAN HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

RER BB HMIESAREZFHFS
WA ARNES78,00070 (ZB— L F :

) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE B wRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BER —F - FFEF =+ —HIFE

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND TOP N E2FMERLBREHE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES =]
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEME
The aggregate amounts of the emoluments paid or B HENEE RTBAERNF
payable to the directors and the chief executive are as B4RZEN T !
follows:
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and scheme
Fee  allowances contributions Total
gy el
He  HERE A by
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTT  AREBTT ARETT ARBT:n
2020 ZEZZE
Executive directors BiTESE
Mr. Zhang Junshen RERTE 108 870 3 981
Mr. Zhang Junwei RERRE 108 - - 108
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Lyu Di BEEE - 363 3 366
Independent non-executive directors BIFHITEE
Mr. Chan Chi Fung Leo {3 108 - - 108
Mr. Li Zhensheng (resigned on FTHERE RS2 F
1 June 2020) ~A—BEE) 45 - - 45
Mr. Zhang Yong (appointed on RERE (RZZZSE
1 June 2020) ~A—BEZH) 64 - - 64
Mr. Chow Siu Hang BRERE 108 - - 108
541 1,233 6 1,780
2019 —E-NE
Executive directors BiTEZ
Mr. Zhang Junshen RERTE 104 612 35 751
Mr. Zhang Junwei RERRE 104 - - 104
Non-executive director FUITES
Ms. Shen Qingli (resigned on TEBYT (RZZE-—hE
15 August 2019) NEB+E BT 64 - - 64
Mr. Lyu Di (appointed on 15 August 2019) BB%E (R -E—hE
NBT+EBEZA) - 265 18 283
Independent non-executive directors BUERITES
Mr. Chan Chi Fung Leo Rl 3k 104 - - 104
Mr. Li Zhensheng FRELE 104 - - 104
Mr. Chow Siu Hang BRERE 104 - - 104
584 877 53 1,514
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B WRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BER - E - FFEF+ =+ —HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND TOP
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

During each of the two years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019, none of the directors waived or agreed to
waive any remuneration and there were no emoluments
paid by the Group to the directors as an inducement to
join, or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for
loss of office.

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year included one (2019: one)
director whose emolument is reflected in the analysis
presented above. Emoluments payable to the remaining
four (2019: four) individuals during the year are as
follows:

M. EFMERTILERSHE
8 @®)

(a)

(b)

BEEME @)
REEZZZEFR-Z—NF
+ZA=+—HIEmMEEFES
FOUREEREXARNERET
Al B <& > T s £ [ 75 M 4 S (B
ETFTEE EARSIBEEMAR
EEHRMAERE B Z BRI
WIEABERmE-

hamREHMAL
FEEMEESHALEAD R
BEARFAMELEST (CE-A
F18) RENWENR X2
5B 3 4 R B P [ BR o F& A F &R
TREA (CTZE—NEF 1 48) 8
Bz

2020 2019

—EZF —E-NHF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T AR¥TF T

Salaries, allowances and other benefits #r & \ZBEHEMBF] 3,260 3,428
Retirement benefit scheme BRIREFFTHEIHER

contributions 24 111

3,284 3,539
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND TOP
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals (continued)
Their emoluments fell within the following bands:

RE M B ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BER —F - FFEF =+ —HIFE

M. EFMERTLLRSHIE
8 @®)
(b) ERBESHFMAL @
HMATUTHE

Number of individuals

AE
2020 2019
—EBEF —E-NF
Emolument bands BN E
Nil to HK$1,000,000 =% 1,000,000 7T 3 3
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7
%2,000,0007& 7T - -
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T
%2,500,0007 7T 1 1
4 4

During each of the two years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any of the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

REEZZSZZEFRIZE—NF
+ZBA=+—HIEmMEFES
FOoAREEBMERAQARAME
EFTHAEFAAEB 2 4R
BHEESZ IS UIEAMAK
SEEEMALRER B RS E
HwhE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M IR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_EEFEFF+ A =+—HIFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. 1R18

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFIT

The charge comprises: ZHEE

Current tax BIERFR 1B

- PRC Enterprise Income Tax —hE > ZEFTEHR 3,401 8,022
Deferred tax (Note 18) EIEFRIE (F15E18) (1,131) 1,558
2,270 9,580

No provision for taxation in Hong Kong has been made as the
Group’s income neither arises in, nor is derived from, Hong
Kong.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

MEREBRBEFHERG RASK
ERZWANIFREBELENRER

REFEEEMBERE (TEERRT
W& REEXRBREBRED >
BENBARRMEFEZREHTR
25%-°

FRANERAXAEGSEGRHEME
EW@mERAZ RS BRI T

2020 2019
S 22 —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT

Profit before income tax MR8 1 A
Tax at the domestic enterprise HEERARTEFERTE
income tax rate in the PRC of 25% A25%mR1E

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AHMBANRAZ 2 RBEE
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax EhFSJcHi kR 2 IR IEE B

losses
Statutory tax concession 5 TE TR WU G2
Withholding tax on distributable earnings A B} &A= A 2 A
of the PRC subsidiaries W FBINIRIE1E
Income tax expense PR sz

ZIYUANYUAN HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

15,155 26,453
3,788 6,613
58 989
(100) -
(419) -
(1,057) 1,978
2,270 9,580




13.

14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e MR R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FFEAf_FH=+—HIEE

DIVIDENDS 13. KB
2020 2019
—EEF “E—nF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARHF ARBFT
Final dividend paid in respect of prior year 93k U ATEE Z R EARR B
of HK$0.03 (2019: Nil) per share FR3IEW (CZ2—NE |\ 10,884 -

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2020 of
HK2.5 cents (2019: HK3 cents) per ordinary share has been
proposed by the board of directors of the Company and is
subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming
general meeting of the Company.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to owners of the Company of
RMB12,981,000 (2019: RMB16,873,000) and on the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during
the year of 400,000,000 (2019: 400,000,000).

Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per
share as there was no potential dilutive ordinary share in issue
during both years.

14.

RREHARB AEIEEEERIRE
HE_ZZF+A=+—HZ=X
AR B SR EAR2.581 (2019 : 378
i) > MEL AT RENREEREEE
K& EHEE

SKREF
SREXABFGREBELDERE AEMSL
mAE AR 12,981,000t (ZE—N
£ AR1516,873,0007T) RERNE 2
17 & BB 2 Il # T ¥920400,000,0008%
(Z=Z—AH4 : 400,000,0008%) st& o

HRMEFERNTESETETERE

HEk WERETRFNEGRER
ERER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M IR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_EEFEFF+ A =+—HIFE

ZIYUANYUAN HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ME - -BERKZE
Furniture
and office Leasehold Motor
equipment  improvements vehicle Total
HFERK
WAERE HEYERE pat:] 4t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEEBTT ARETT AR®TRT ARETR
Cost ESMS
At 1 January 2019 RZE—-h&E—HA—H 1,067 - - 1,067
Additions 12 m 203 535 - 738
Write off gz (22) - - (22)
At 31 December 2019 RIE-hE+ZB=1+—H 1,248 535 - 1,783
Acquisition of subsidiaries W EE T B A B
(Note 30) (PiFEE30) 8 - - 8
Additions 121m 1,303 12,605 1,244 15,152
Write off b | (28) - - (28)
At 31 December 2020 RZE-ZHE+-HA=+—H 2,531 13,140 1,244 16,915
Accumulated depreciation %Hﬁ%
At 1 January 2019 ZE-NF—A—H 516 - - 516
Depreciation nE 228 107 - 335
Write off b (7) - - (7)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-hE+-B=+—H 737 107 - 844
Depreciation nE 286 1,245 - 1,531
Write off gz} 27 - - 27)
At 31 December 2020 RZE-ZHE+-HA=+—H 996 1,352 - 2,348
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2020 R_E-_ZTF+_A=+—H 1,535 11,788 1,244 14,567
At 31 December 2019 RZE-hE+-A=+—H 511 428 - 939




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE B wRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE—EFEFF+ /A =+—HIFE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16. EHIEEE
Leasehold land and buildings
HE LM KIET
2020 2019
—E_EHF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FT ARBTIT
At 1 January w—A—H 13,969 1,303
Additions B 436 15,420
Depreciation e (4,110) (2,754)
At 31 December W+ZB=+—H 10,295 13,969
For both years, the Group leases various offices for its PREFEEAEERNEEBMEES
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of B AE-HESRZETNEERR
2 to 5 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis R2ESF - HEFRLE NS RAERS
and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. REFEEESBIENER GG
In determining the lease term and assessing the length of the R E T E & R R G A 0 B 88 8
non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a ZER - AEERBERZERERE
contract and determines the period for which the contract is ERHITERZ A -

enforceable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

lﬁ!A
IS

At 5 R R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_EEFEFF+ A =+—HIFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B EE
Computer
Goodwill Trademark software Total
BHe A L 4t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANREFT AREF T AREF T AREFT
Cost [
At 1 January 2020 R _E_EE—F—H - - - _
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEENRE A (H5E30)

(Note 30) 2,318 1,900 - 4,218
Addition 120 - - 5,099 5,099
At 31 December 2020 RZZ2ZZF+ZA=1+—H 2,318 1,900 5,099 9,317
Accumulated amortisation Rt
At 1 January 2020 N ZE2Z2F—F—H - - - -
Amortisation #iH - - 85 85
At 31 December 2020 AZEIZF+ZR=+—H - - 85 85
Net carrying amount ﬂﬁﬁﬁfﬁ
At 31 December 2020 RZZZZF+ZA=+—H 2,318 1,900 5,014 9,232
At 31 December 2019 AZE-NF+ZA=+—H - - - -
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated MEEBNAMS BESEFAER

to the Group's CGU, Wuhan Desheng Meimei Health

M

anagement Co., Ltd.

newly acquired during the year.

ZIYUANYUAN HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

("Desheng Meimei”), which was
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The recoverable amounts of the CGU has been determined
from value in use calculations based on cash flow projections
from formally approved budgets covering a five-year period.
Cash flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using
the estimated growth rates of 3%. The growth rate does not
exceed the long-term average growth rate for the postpartum
care service business in which the CGU operates. The discount
rate used for VIU of 17% is pre-tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant CGU.

Apart from the considerations described above in determining
the recoverable amounts of the CGU, management is not
aware of any other probable changes that would necessitate
changes in the key assumptions. Management determines
that the CGU containing goodwill does not suffer any
impairment.

In accordance with HKFRS 3 “Business Combination”, the
Group recognised Desheng Meimei's assets and liabilities
which included intangible assets at the acquisition date. The
fair value of trademark of RMB1,900,000 on the acquisition
date was determined based on a valuation performed by an
independent professional valuer, APAC Asset Valuation and
Consulting Limited. The valuation was determined based on
the discounted cash flow method of income approach.

iR e MR R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FFEAf_FH=+—HIEE

17. B EE &

REEEBUZIKRERIEETREE
HEFMMEMBZELFRZMBESR
NRMpRERERENEREBENE
ZMEE -hFEREZREMNEDE
REFEREIRMER - ZERERI
FTEAREEEBEUCERTENAF
RBTEZRATHEREK - BRE
REESEEZERT17% AT
RBEBBEEEEEUZ S ERE -

BREAUEEREELEBUZER
BEZZEH EBEREL AT
FREMEUEREEERRAFLHE
BZAREEH -EEEISCEHE
ZREELBUTERZEMRE-

BESEVBEREENEINEBS
) REBEPUEE B R REEEE
NEERBE (BEREEE) - WE
HEAMN mEEE ARE1,900,0007875
REBISXGEMEABEETER
EERARABETHHEET HE
THIRIEAIRIR S RN A EETE ©

ZanEREEARAE FEHE 2020

183



184

4 A
117 O = |

At 5 R R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020

18. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FFEf = —HIUEE

18. IEIEFRIE
UT R BREMS NIBELERIES
Bk Z T
2020 2019
ZEZEE —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FT ARBFT
Deferred tax assets RIETRIBE E 5,070 4,996
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEAG (1,146) (1,978)
3,924 3,018
The following are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities) MTHINFARDBZEERIERIEBEER
recognised and movements thereon during the year: E/S (R REEE
Temporary
Undistributed Fair value difference
earnings of  increase on arising from
PRC intangible ECL finance lease
subsidiaries assets provision income Total
ERERE
AAEHE WAEE
MEAR BREEZ FHER HE R
AlE  ATEEN P E8 st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARETT ARBTR ARETRT AREFR ARETR
As at 1 January 2019 RZZ2—h&E—F—H - - 2,824 1,752 4,576
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss  (0FRE) /st AB% (H5£12)
(Note 12) (1,978) - 496 (76) (1,558)
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-HnE+ZB=+-H (1,978) - 3,320 1,676 3,018
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 30) Uz B& R B A El (ff3£30) - (225) - - (225)
(Charged)/credited to (0BR8) /st ABE (HE12)
profit or loss (Note 12) 1,057 - 875 (801) 1,131
At 31 December 2020 RIB-RE+-B=+-1H (921) (225) 4,195 875 3,924
Pursuant to the EIT Law and its detailed implementation rules, BIECEMEREIREBMMA] > B
dividend distributed out of the profit generated thereafter,
shall be subject to EIT at 5% (2019: 10%) and withheld by
the PRC entities.

tEEENMBROIRKNERE  BiZ

5%(ZZF—NFE : 10%)M IR K @an

FFREHR UHRPEBEERAREN
ZIYUANYUAN HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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19.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 AH

AR B B RS AR AR MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE—EFEFF+ /A =+—HIFE

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 18. ‘i@ﬁﬁlﬁ (4

At the reporting date, the amount of the deferred tax assets RBEH AEIRERNEBEEZS
not recognised is as follows: REAOT

2020 2019
—ETHE Z—NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT ARBTIT
Tax effect of unutilised tax losses RAYARBEBEZMNBEEE 214 354

Deferred tax asset in respect of tax losses has not
been recognised in the financial statements due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams against which the tax
losses can be utilised. All tax losses had no expiry dates under
the current tax legislation.

FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLE/LOAN
RECEIVABLES/DEPOSITS FROM FINANCE
LEASE CUSTOMERS

The Group entered into finance lease arrangements as a
lessor for equipments and motor vehicles. The average terms
of finance leases entered into usually range from 1 to 3
years. All interest rates inherent in the leases are fixed at the
contract date over the lease terms.

All of the lease contracts are with guaranteed residual values.
There was no unguaranteed residual value of leased assets
and no contingent rent arrangement that needed to be
recognised in both periods.

19.

RREZRAJLUERRBEERZ AR
2 A HOR - R IE I B A B R AR L
MBEREDIELERNRBEE - RIER

FRBEH FFEREE AL RE R
R0
B SRR

B MEHEERESE

ERRERABENHBEAN ZEEET
YTHMEHAELZH -MEBAETIM
THERBEES /I E3F -FREEAFF
XKEeRAFITZAREERREER

o

FREHEEREARRRIGEE-
E“ﬁlﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁmjtmﬂ%#ﬁﬂ FEE
TEFEREDZARBVELHE
KO
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M IR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BER - E - FFEF+ =+ —HILFE

19. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLE/LOAN

RECEIVABLES/DEPOSITS FROM FINANCE

LEASE CUSTOMERS (continued)

Finance lease receivable

19. Bt EEFH EEYFIE FEIX
BN MEHEETRERS

(i

MEEERWMRE

RIEHERE REHERERE
Present value of
Minimum minimum
lease payments lease payments
2020 2019 2020 2019
ZEZEFE Z-NF ZZEZEE IZ-NF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETRT ARETR ARETR
Finance lease receivable comprises: MERERKRIERE .
Within one year —ER 256,374 293,279 221,404 250,492
In the second year ol 83,200 121,887 74,670 108,549
In the third year E 12,715 13,933 12,125 12,800
352,289 429,099 308,199 371,841
Less: Unearned finance income B RBIRRMERA (44,090) (57,258) - -
Present value of minimum lease payments {5 EHIERE 308,199 371,841 308,199 371,841
Less: lifetime ECL allowance B ABBRERERER (16,331) (12,764) (16,331) (12,764)
291,868 359,077 291,868 359,077
Analysed for reporting purposes as: NERENDTA
Current assets NEEE 207,488 240,050
Non-current assets ERHEE 84,380 119,027
291,868 359,077
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLE/LOAN

RECEIVABLES/DEPOSITS FROM FINANCE
LEASE CUSTOMERS (continued)

Finance lease receivable (continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the interest rates implicit in the
above finance leases range mainly from 8.2% to 21.2%
(2019: 9.3% to 21.2%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2020, finance lease receivable of
RMB24,015,000 (2019: Nil) were pledged to secure the
Group's bank borrowings (Note 25(ii)).

Finance lease receivable is mainly secured by the leased assets
which are used in printing industry, medical industry and
logistics industry and customers’ deposits where applicable.
Customers’ deposits are collected and calculated based
on a certain percentage of the entire value of the lease
contract. Certain deposits are returned to the customers
in full by end of lease period according to the terms of
the lease contract. When the lease contract expires and
all liabilities and obligations under the lease contract have
been fulfilled, the lessor must return the full lease deposits
to the lessee. The balance of the customers’ deposits can
also be applied and used to settle any outstanding lease
payments for the corresponding lease contract. As at 31
December 2020, the customers’ deposits of RMB5,679,000
(2019: RMB35,052,000) to be returned to the customers
in full by end of lease period while customers’ deposits of
RMB5,422,000 (2019: RMB24,956,000) will be repayable
within 12 months from the reporting date and therefore
classified as current liabilities.

19.

iR e MR R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FFEAf_FH=+—HIEE

AT EREURIE e
B RMEHEERES
(&

AEEREWERIE (&
W_EBEZEFE+_-_B=+—0> it
MERENESFEMNENTFL2%E
212% (ZE—HF193%F21.2%)

RZEZEFEFZA=T—H' AR
124,015,000 (ZE—HE ) 2/
BEHERWAREBEEERUNEEAER
BIERTT AR (MTEE25() ©

HEAERKRFEBEZITEHARER
X BEERMMTENHEEERE
Efs (MER) (FRF -BEREET
RHEGNEEENETE LK
BMEHE BREERBEEESHNK
TR EERBEEHMEBRETRER 8
HESNIBEHEESANETMES
AREBCERTR  HEANKAR
ABEARCEHAERE -FRES
BRI ATUERR RBRBNEEE
ERESNNAREERENM KT
E-EF+_HB=+—H BRES
A NRIE5,679,00070 (ZE—H4F
AR 135,052,00070) I S EA4S
BEYREFER BEEREAAR
15,422,000t (Z2—NF AR
24,956,0007T) MR EH12BA NKE
REBW WD A TEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M IR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_EEFEFF+ A =+—HIFE

19. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLE/LOAN
RECEIVABLES/DEPOSITS FROM FINANCE
LEASE CUSTOMERS (continued)

Finance lease receivable (continued)

The following is an aging analysis based on due dates of
the finance lease receivable instalments which are past due
(instalments which are not yet due at the end of the reporting
period are excluded):

19.

MEHBERKRIE R
BX mMEHEERES

(&)

BB RWRIE (&

UTRRECABEIRERED N
FEEHPRE DT (FEERREHE

5 REVHRBY D BT R0

2020 2019
kGt 3. 3 —NE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARHFT AR®ETT
Past due by: B
1 - 30 days 1£30H 920 243
31 - 90 days 31&290H 1,005 241
More than 90 days BiE90H 12,000 5,738
13,925 6,222
Loan receivables R E =R
2020 2019
-3 3 “E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT ARBTIT
Fixed-rate loan receivables: Bl EF K EWER
Within one year —FR 6,999 7,282
One to two years —FE & 798 5,441
More than two years MEBBEER
but not more than five years 71 518
7,868 13,241
Less: 12m ECL allowance B 1@ B TERERIBREE (69) (136)
7,799 13,105
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MERENDITS
Current assets MBNEE 6,935 7,208
Non-current assets FEREMEE 864 5,897
7,799 13,105
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20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLE/LOAN
RECEIVABLES/DEPOSITS FROM FINANCE
LEASE CUSTOMERS (continued)

Loan receivable (continued)

In accordance with HKFRS 16, the sales and leaseback
transaction which does not satisfy the requirements of HKFRS
15 as a sale is recognised as a loan receivable in accordance
with HKFRS 9.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of
loan receivables amounting to RMB7,799,000 (2019:
RMB13,105,000) are pledged with collaterals such as
equipments and motor vehicles. The Group is not permitted
to sell the collaterals in the absence of default by the
borrower. There has not been any significant changes in the
quality of the collateral held for the loan receivables. As at
31 December 2020 and 2019, all of the loan receivables were
not past due.

As at 31 December 2020, loan receivables of RMB1,054,000
(2019: Nil) were pledged to secure the Group's bank
borrowings (Note 25(ii)).

Details of impairment assessment of finance lease receivable
and loan receivable are set out in Note 35.

19.

iR e MR R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE—EFEFF+ /A =+—HIFE

R BT B FEUCRIE I
BER MEHEERES
(@)

RS B3R ()

RIEEBMBREERE1657E A
HERRERZINEEBYHRS
ERFISHIERHENRE » BIRE

BERYHREENFIOREID/ENE
RZE-ZTE+-_RB=+—H &

WEMEHEEAAREK?7,799,000
T (ZE—N®E: AR¥13,105,000
7o) CURBRAEEAIRRR ESE
TAEBNBERE AEBFABHE
HIEFR BRERIEHRSESTE
EABEL - RIEZEFR_ZTE—H
F+ZB=+—H FBERKRERIL
A o

RIE_ZFFE+-_A= + B> AR
#1,054,0007T (ZZ2—NF 1 T) ER
ﬁ%ﬁe*‘éiﬁuﬂxﬁ%zk%@m&ﬁ%%
(B EE25(i)) ©

MEAERBRIERBRERZBE
ST SF BB MY EE35

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES  20. FA{J R 1E K H Mt FE UL TR
2020 2019
—EIERF —E-hHF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T AE¥T T
Value-added tax recoverable A UL el (E R 4,461 3,776
Prepayments FEfIFRIB 2,270 467
Refundable rental deposits ARERERE 185 -
Other receivables HAthfE W =g 833 334
7,749 4,577
KT TEREEBERAT FEIHRS 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_EEFEFF+ A =+—HIFE

21.

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

The bank balances and the restricted bank deposits of the
Group carry interest at market rates 0.01% to 0.30% (2019:
0.01% to 0.35%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2019, the restricted bank deposits of
HK$68,000 (equivalent to RMB61,000) will be released upon
the update of regular bank account information by the
Group. Such deposits are released during the year and there is
no restricted bank deposits as at 31 December 2020.

The bank balances and the restricted bank deposits that
are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of respective entities are set out below:

21. BRHIERT

ﬁTA/ﬁE n\I:I
BRRIRE
REBZRTEREBREIRETER
BB HEGFEATF0.01%E0.30%
(ZE—NF 1 0.01%=0.35%)°

A _E-NFE+ZBE=+—H ' BR
HISRTTERN68,00058 T (FHER AR
61,0007T) I AEEE M —RIBTTIR
FERBHMEBRER-

LR BEREZIREEBUIZ G5t
BZRITEGRRABRGIRTERES
LI

2020 2019

—ECEF —E—-hE

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR¥T T AR¥TFIT

Hong Kong dollar (“HK$") Bt (F#7T)) 1,780 1,169
United States dollar (“US$") x5t (M%) 4 4
1,784 1,173

The Group performed impairment assessment on restricted
bank deposits/bank balances, details of which are set out in
Note 35.

As at 31 December 2020, included in cash and bank balances
of the Group was RMB83,030,000 (2019: RMB21,118,000)
of bank balances denominated in RMB placed with the
banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely convertible currency.
Under the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement and Sales and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for foreign currencies through the banks that
are authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.
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22. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED

23.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE B wRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BER —F - FFEF =+ —HIFE

22. HthE(HRIE R Bt E R

CHARGES

2020 2019
—EIEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#F AREFT

Advance receipts from prospective REBERR ZEWRRIE
customers 2,991 1,372
Contract liabilities (Note) HaR&E (M) 2,015 -
Other accrued charges HMET&ER 3,330 4,292
Other tax payables Hn R IE 180 82
Other payables H e I8 3,560 50
12,076 5,796

Note: All contract liabilities are arising from provision of postpartum

care services. The Group may take a certain deposits

on acceptance of the order, with the remainder of the

consideration payable at the completion of the services. The

deposits remains as contract liabilities until such time as the

services are provided.

LEASE LIABILITIES

BT

FrEaRARERERMHE FRS
MEE - AEEREMITERES
PEE &% Mk T EAORE
PARFER e BTS2 F - B RN
I ERERBREERBRM-

23. HE&E

2020 2019

—ECERF S

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBETFT AR®ETT

Balance as at 1 January ®—H—H 14,888 -
Additions &0 436 15,989
Interest expense MERZ 897 454

Lease payments GEN- RN (5,001) (1,555)
Balance as at 31 December R+_BA=+—H 11,220 14,888

Represented by: AV

Current liabilities mEIEaE 3,491 4,031
Non-current liabilities EREERE 7,729 10,857
11,220 14,888

ZanEREEARAE FEHE 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEf _H=+—HIEE

23.

LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)

Future lease payments are due as follows:

23. fHE&E @
R EN R H SR T

Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
=&
HEI= FME HE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
AREFT AREFTT ARETFTT
As at 31 December 2020 RIE-ZHF
+=ZA=+—H
Due within one year FEREE 4,145 654 3,491
Due in the second to fifth years "I RFREHA 8,470 741 7,729
12,615 1,395 11,220
As at 31 December 2019 BZE—hEF
+ZRA=+—H
Due within one year —F R EEA 4,855 824 4,031
Due in the second to fifth years “HRFEANEE 12,278 1,421 10,857
17,133 2,245 14,888

Lease obligations that are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities
are set out below:

MEMEREBRNINEERLUNZE
KEHENEESEIRIOT -

2020 2019

—ECEF —E—hE

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T AR¥TF T

HK$ BT 1,044 2,207

24. DEFERRED INCOME

Deferred income represents the difference between the
nominal value of the deposits from finance lease customers
and their fair values at initial recognition dates. Deferred
income is recognised in the profit or loss in a pattern which is
consistent with recognition of finance leasing income over the
lease period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FFEAf_FH=+—HIEE

25. BANK BORROWINGS 25. SRITE™R
2020 2019
—E-EF S NE
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT AREFTT

Bank borrowings due for repayment —FRIHREEZRITER
within one year

— Unsecured and guaranteed (Note i) —EJ PR AEFR EEEEG))

- Secured and guaranteed (Note ii) —BEEEEER ()

Total bank borrowings KB

Notes:

(i) As at 31 December 2019, the variable-rate bank borrowings
amounted to RMB35,080,000 carrying interest rate per annum
at 161% of the benchmark rate offered by the People’s Bank
of China ("PBOC"), was guaranteed by Mr. Zhang Junshen, an
executive director of the Company, Ms. Tang Yiping, the spouse
of Mr. Zhang Junshen, and Shenzhen Ziyuanyuan Investment
Holdings Limited, Shenzhen Zhuojunye Investment Limited and
Shenzhen Suhao Investment Limited, which companies are
controlled by the Controlling Individual Shareholders of the
Company. The loan has been fully repaid during the year.

As at 31 December 2020, the variable-rate bank borrowing of
RMB30,000,000 (2019: Nil) carrying interest rate per annum
at the rate of the benchmark rate offered by the PBOC plus
1.50% per annum was guaranteed by Mr. Zhang Junshen,
an executive director of the Company, Mr. Zhang Shengjie,
father of the Controlling Individual Shareholders, Shenzhen
Ziyuanyuan Investment Holdings Limited and Shenzhen Lingnan
Real Estate Development Limited, companies which are
controlled by the Controlling Individual Shareholders.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's bank borrowings of
RMB33,650,000 (2019: RMB18,100,000) were guaranteed
by financial guarantee companies, which are third-parties
(2019: guaranteed by the Company and a financial guarantee
company, which is a third-party).

69,650 56,180
30,080 -
99,730 56,180

A _E-NFF+ZA=+—H'FH
M ERTHEMRDH ARTE35,080,000
o EPEARRET (THEARR
7)) RENEERN K161 %I FF
KB O HEARBDRITEERERE
EVREREEZRBSBFELLIR
FREERR B A B SR EEFIBY A BRI &
TLREEEARRAE HRIITH =8
(REARABNRNARRERR
NERMEER - LLERENRFERNEH
g

i

RIZEZZEE+-R=+—H %8
FRIRITHER A AREE30,000,0007T
TE-NF I E)  BREARRT
TRMAYEERFN1.50%09 FF) K&t
B HAEARABRITERRERTE
EREARRZREREEITE B
EREARRIZERIBABRITERT
TREEEARABRARITERE
HEIERERRABTIRHER.

A ZEZEF+ZA=+—H XK
EEMIRITERARY33,650,0007T
—ZT—NF : AR¥18,100,0007T)
BHEZHSRIERATRMER (&
E—NEFE HAEARAE—RFE=AE
BIERABIRMEER o

ZanEREEARAE FEHE 2020

193



194

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M IR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BEr _=F_

EEf f =+ —AIEE

25. BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

@)

(continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's bank borrowings of
RMB3,000,000 (2019: RMB3,000,000) were guaranteed by ZYY
Finance Leasing, a subsidiary of the Company.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's bank borrowing of
RMB3,000,000 (2019: Nil) was guaranteed by Mr. Zhang
Junshen, an executive director of the Company.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's borrowings were
interest bearing at the rate of the benchmark rate offered by
the PBOC plus 2.95% per annum, and were guaranteed by
Mr. Zhang Junshen, an executive director of the Company,
Ms. Tang Yiping, the spouse of Mr. Zhang Junshen, Mr. Zhang
Shengjie, father of the Controlling Individual Shareholders and
Shenzhen Ziyuanyuan Investment Holdings Limited, a company
controlled by the Controlling Individual Shareholders, and
secured by charges over certain finance lease receivable and
loan receivables of the Group with the aggregate carrying value
of RMB25,069,000.

Effective interest rate of bank borrowings ranged between
4.55% and 7% (2019: between 5.22% and 7%) per annum
for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE—E_FF _A=1—HILFE

26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. fg7s
Details of movements of share capital of the Company are as RABNRAEEFHBNOT !
follows:
Number of
shares Share capital
KRB E g s
‘000 HK$'000
T FHET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each SREEIATHNEER
Authorised: ERE -
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019, R_Z—HhE—H—H"
1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 —“ZE—AE+"F=+—H"
“EIEF—HF—HK
2 ZF+"A=+—H 1,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITREE :
At 1 January 2019, RZZ2—hF—HF—H8-
31 December 2019, 1 January 2020 —2-NEFE+ZB=+—H~
and 31 December 2020 2T EF—RF—HK
“2CZF+"A=+—H 400,000 40,000

ZanEREEARAE FEHE 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_EEFEFF+ A =+—HIFE

26. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 26. g7 (&
2020 2019
—E-%HF BN
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARBTT

Shown in the consolidated statement REMBER R
of financial position 33,839 33,839
27. RESERVES 27. (#fH&
Group TEH
Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are NEBEBRBEBEREAEEZEFHNE
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on 1098 Vs oz gE R o
page 109.
Company Pi/N |
Movements of the Company’s reserves are as follows: KANBEEBEZEBWT .
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
R EE REtEEiE “ast
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®FTT ARBTT AR®BTT
At 1 January 2019 RZZ—-—NF—A—H 84,435 (17,889) 66,546
Loss for the year FREE - (2,286) (2,286)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ2—nE+ZA=+—H 84,435 (20,175) 64,260
Profit for the year FRiEH] - 10,818 10,818
2019 final dividend paid DIRZE—NERHRE (10,884) - (10,884)
At 31 December 2020 RZEZZF+-HA=+—H 73,551 (9,357) 64,194
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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28. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF 28. B AT EIRAE

FINANCIAL POSITION

2020 2019
—EEHE —E-hHF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 5 AR¥T T AREFIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERAE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries INEENCIPA 120,009 120,009
Current assets MENEE
Prepayments and other receivables  FE{J 1B & E At FE UL R 127 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries AN EPNCIE O] 1,542 1,589
Cash and bank balances IRITHBRKAIRE 894 234
2,563 1,823
Current liabilities mENaE
Other payables and accrued charges H fthf& {7 I8 K FE ot & A 2,096 2,813
Amounts due to subsidiaries NN EPNETE O] 22,443 20,920
24,539 23,733
Net current liabilities REBEFEE (21,976) (21,910)
Net assets BEEFE 98,033 98,099
EQUITY T
Share capital il 26 33,839 33,839
Reserves HE 27 64,194 64,260
Total equity g R 98,033 98,099
On behalf of the Board EAREFY

Mr. Zhang Junshen

Mr. Zhang Junwei

RIEFETE RIEREE
Director Director
BZE EE

ZanEREEARAE FEHE 2020
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29. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

CIAL STATEMENTS

29. BARKIE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT AREFTT

Capital expenditure contracted for but Bl NEXRELGESHMEREFSD
not provided in the consolidated RN =g YN Rl
financial statements in respect of: HEMEEBNEASTH
- acquisition of office equipment and —EBERAREBENHEEYE
leasehold improvement =1 - 4,000
— acquisition of subsidiaries — BB B AT 27,040 -
27,040 4,000

30. BUSINESS ACQUISITION DURING THE

YEAR

On 22 July 2020, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party to acquire 51%
equity interest in Desheng Meimei, a company incorporated
in the PRC with the consideration of RMB3,400,000. Desheng
Meimei is engaged in the provision of postpartum care
services in the PRC. The acquisition was completed on 1
August 2020 and has been accounted for using acquisition
method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. BUSINESS ACQUISITION DURING THE

YEAR (continued)

The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities of Desheng
Meimei as at the date of acquisition and goodwill arising from

the acquisition were as follows:

iR e MR R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FFEAf_FH=+—HIEE

30. REARZERIWE @

BHEEENRWEARZAIRIEER
BEUKRWHEPREENNEENT -

RMB'000
AE®ETT
Trademark iR 1,900
Property, plant and equipment Mz BB MR E 8
Other receivables Hith U skIE 500
Cash and bank balances RERIBITAAER 1,000
Other payables HMENRIE (1,061)
Deferred tax liabilities RIS (A (225)
Fair value of net assets acquired WHEEREZ FEEATE 2,122
Less: non-controlling interests B IEER S (1,040)
1,082
Consideration: HE

— Cash paid —BRE 2,500
— Other payables —H M EA R IE 900
3,400
Goodwill G 2,318

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEEEANFREM
Cash consideration R HE 2,500
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired B NBEBERE IR MRS EEY (1,000)
1,500

Goodwill of RMB2,318,000, which is not tax deductible,
comprises the acquired workforce and the significant future
prospect and the business value of Desheng Meimei.

FEA ANR1E2,318,0007T (RAEHKIR)
BEMKNENEEREBEENEKX

RIRFTRMEEEE
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30. BUSINESS ACQUISITION DURING THE

YEAR (continued)

Since the acquisition date, Desheng Meimei has contributed
RMB2,113,000 and RMB55,000 to the Group's revenue and
loss. If the Acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2020, the
Group’s revenue and loss after income tax would have been
RMB58,512,000 and RMB12,832,000 respectively for the
year ended 31 December 2020. This pro forma information
is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the Group
that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 January 2020, nor is it intended to be a
projection of future performance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
Material non-controlling interests
As at 31 December 2020, the Group’'s material non-
controlling interests represented by Desheng Meimei,
a 51% owned subsidiary of the Company. Summarised

iR e MR R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE—EFEFF+ /A =+—HIFE

31. FFIERE RS
BRI
N _ETEFE+_HBA=+—H K&
B EAFERBREAANBEREESE
51%R At o IREBE R EF A - B

financial information in relation to non-controlling interests

of Desheng Meimei,
presented below:

before intra-group eliminations, is

BBEEEFERETERZIMBER
BmEOT

RMB'000
ARBTIT
For the period from 1 August 2020 to RZIEZZEHEN\A—HE
31 December 2020 —ECEF+_"RA=+—HIHME
Revenue g 2,113
Loss for the year REANZED (55)
Total comprehensive income 2E WA LLEE (55)
Loss allocated to non-controlling interests DEEIEERER ZIBX (27)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests BATIEERER R E -
Cash generated from operating activities RETEPMERE 50
Cash used in investing activities KEEEFIARE (27)
Cash generated from financing activities MEEZBASRE -
Net cash inflows RWEFEMA 23
At 31 December 2020 N ZEF+"HA=+—H
Current assets MBEE 2,620
Non-current assets EREMEE 1,929
Current liabilities mENaE (2,257)
Non-current liabilities Bl =K = (225)
Net assets FEE 2,067
Accumulated non-controlling interests RETFFIERER 1,013

ZanEREEARAE FEHE 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_EEFEFF+ A =+—HIFE

32.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which
are related parties of the Company, have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. In addition to
those balances and transactions disclosed elsewhere, details
of other significant transactions between the Group and other
related parties during the year are disclosed as follows:

Compensation of key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Group are the
directors and senior management. Remuneration of the key
management personnel is determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of individuals
and market trends. The remuneration of key management
personnel during the year is as follows:

32 Eﬁ Aj: %&n\nﬁ?

ds’\ﬂéﬁilgd&’&ﬂ%ﬁiﬁA:tZWE’&

RZERERE IR B B 585 &
E:Z!&MJ‘EEPH&%H%HT&%MNEE%Z
BEHREXZN AEBMEAHEMBAEA
THRERETZHEMEARZHBR
BT

EEEEBAEHE
FEBTEZEEAERESTRERE
BEE - T 2EEASZMNET) B HM
ZEEKERBENALZRERTS

Salaries, allowances and other benefits ¥« 28h R EHMEF

Retirement benefit scheme contributions BKEF] 5t 2 (3K

Emoluments paid or payable to members of senior
management were within the following bands:

BEEEET - FRNIEEEEBAEN
HE2WH

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®EFT AREETIT

5,006 4,368

29 166

5,035 4,534

ENHENTEEREEABNNEE

MTeEEM :

Number of individuals

AE

2020 2019
—EBE_EHE —E-NE

Emolument bands N EEE:
Nil — HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000 7T 9 10
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7% 1,500,0007 7T 1 —
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 75 %2,000,0008 75 - -
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 75 %E2,500,0008 7T 1 1
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33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

33. XEMBARFE

SUBSIDIARIES
Issued and
fully paid Percentage of
Place/Country of share capital/ issued capital  Principal activities
Date of incorporation/ incorporation/establishment registered held by  and place of
Name of company establishment and kind of legal entity capital the Company”  operations
B3 FAH
Iz BR BETRERE PR ITIR A&
CEY MBI, M A Rt EERER B/ HRER ZESNL FEEBREEMET
Honor Global Holdings Limited 28 October 2016 British Virgin Islands ("BVI"), limited US$50,000 100%  Investment holding,
liability company (2019: 100%) Hong Kong
REERERBRAR “E-RE+AZTN\E HEERRYHES BREEAT 50,000% 7% RERR B
Infinite Success Enterprises Limited 2 July 2019 BVI, limited liability company Us$1 100% Investment holding,
(2019: 100%) Hong Kong
“2-N%tAZH HBRUHE BARSAEAT 1% RERR BB
Action Star Investments Limited 18 May 2020 BVI, limited liability company US$50,000 100%  Investment holding,
(2019: N/A KB f8) Hong Kong
“Z_ZERATN\H HBRELHE ERELAT 50,000% 7T REER BF
HK Lixin 6 March 2013 Hong Kong, limited liability company ~ HK$50,000,000 100% Investment holding,
(2019: 100%) Hong Kong
BBUE “B-=F=A5"H B BREMEAR 50,000,000 7% REER &
Ziyuanyuan Finance Limited 8 October 2018 Hong Kong, limited liability company HK$10,000 100% Money lending, Hong
(2019: 100%) Kong
EnnHHERAT —2-)\#+ANR B AREELT 10,0007T BE &
ZYY Finance Leasing 28 May 2014 PRC, limited liability company US$50,000,000 100%  Provision of finance
(2019: 100%) leasing services, PRC
EnnHERE “E-WEEAZHNR B BEREEAD 50,000,000% 7% REREHERS
FE
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33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

33. XEMBATRFE @

Issued and
fully paid Percentage of
Place/Country of share capital/ issued capital  Principal activities
Date of incorporation/ incorporation/establishment registered held by  and place of
Name of company establishment and kind of legal entity capital the Company”  operations
AR, FAH
Iz BR BETRERE P RITRE
AERE AR/ A B RitEBRER Bx,/EREE ZESL IERBRESMET
Ziyuanyuan (Shenzhen) 6 September 2015 PRC, limited liability company RMB2,000,000 100% Provision of
Technology Limited (2019: 100%) technological services,
PRC
£ (RY) BEBRAS —Z2-1FNARA FE EREEAE N RERKRE HE
2,000,0007%
Shenzhen Ruiheng Equipment Trade 16 August 2019 PRC, limited liability company US$2,898,800 100% Equipment trading, PRC
Limited (2019: 100%)
RNTHEREEZERAT “2-NEN\A+RE FE EREEAH 2,898,800% 7T REEZ FE
Shenzhen Meijiaer Health Management 8 June 2020 PRC, limited liability company RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding, PRC
Co., Ltd. (2019: N/A RBF)
AT ERARRERERAT ZZ”TFXANAR FE EREEAE N REER TE
1,000,0007T
Desheng Meimei 1 June 2020 PRC, limited liability company RMB1,000,000 51% Provision of postpartum
(2019: N/A RBA) care services, PRC
EBEE —2°EE5XA-H FE EREEAH N RHUBFRHE HE
1,000,0007T

n

Except Honor Global Holdings Limited, Infinite Success
Enterprises Limited and Action Star Investments Limited, all
subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

Except for HK Lixin which adopts the financial year end date
of 30 June, all subsidiaries adopted 31 December as their
financial year end date.

The directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the
particulars of all subsidiaries would be of excessive length and
therefore the above list contains only the particulars of the
subsidiaries which materially affect the results or assets of the
Group.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

ZIYUANYUAN HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

" FREEIB2IKIERBRAE ~ Infinite
Success Enterprises Limited &z Action
Star Investments Limited4h > Fr 5 [ /&
REHRARBIBERSA -

BREBUGHRMANBE=THERBYHE
EFEEBI PRENBARARAR
A LERM+_B=+—HBAH
MEFEEFEHE

EERR 2BIHABERBARZ
HEGENRREMN IR AL LE
REIHAEREXENEEBNE
FEZNBARZFIE

REBESHRNERARERE BERBER
B E#ITRAERRES -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
krE B wRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE—EFEFF+ /A =+—HIFE

34. NOTES SUPPORTING STATEMENT OF 34. TFREMERKRZMEE
CASH FLOWS
During the year, the purchase of property, plant and FRNBEYE BERRBEEBEN
equipment was partly settled by prepayments for leasehold HERBDBEEL—FEZMHNERE
improvements paid in prior year of RMB6,485,000. ERA AR 6,485,0007T °
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financial activities: MEETELEZBEZHR
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z-_ZEHF+"A=+—HI=E
E
Bank Lease
borrowings liabilities
RITE HEa®E
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETFT ARETFT
At 1 January 2020 r-_E2_FF-/—-8B 56,180 14,888
Changes from cash flows: REeEREEH !
New bank borrowings IRITER 101,080 -
Repayment of bank borrowings BIERITEM (57,530) -
Interest paid BAHFE (4,521) -
Capital element of lease liabilities paid ~ BEfffiE&E&E AR D - (3,378)
Interest element of lease liabilities paid B E&EF 2E9D - (897)
Total changes from financing cash flows #E&EREEESH 000 39,029 (4,275)
Other changes: HnEg:
Covid-19-related rent concession Covid-19— 18RS R R - (726)
Additions of lease liabilities HESEEM - 436
Interest expenses bl EF‘%E‘Z 4,521 897
At 31 December 2020 N _EZF+"_RB=+—H 99,730 11,220
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_EEFEFF+ A =+—HIFE

34. NOTES SUPPORTING STATEMENT OF

34. XFFRERNEHRRZME

CASH FLOWS (continued) #)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE_Z—NE+B=+—HIHF
E
Financial
liability
arising from
Bank  repurchase Lease Accrued
borrowings  agreement liabilities issue costs
e
EEW FESTE1T
RITER ERAE HEER A
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®Tn AR®Tn ARETR
At 1 January 2019 RZZ—NE—F—H 30,065 - 1,303 -
Changes from cash flows: REMEE
New bank borrowings HIRTTER 61,000 - - -
Cash receipts from financial liability arising IR ZEENEREEN
from repurchase agreement Re W - 4,953 - -
Interest paid for financial liability arising ~ EIEEREEENSREEN
from repurchase agreements 2HFE - (63) - -
Repayments of financial liability arising from %%@Eﬁfﬁ%%éiﬁ@%%ﬁ%%
repurchase agreements - (4,953) - -
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTED (34,600) - - -
Interest paid ENFE (4,664) - - -
Issues costs paid BAETHA - - - (346)
Capital element of lease liabilities paid BNHEEREARTD - - (1,612) -
Interest element of lease liabilities paid ENEEEREFESS - - (508) -
Total changes from financing cash flows B BEREHELH 21,736 (63) (2,120) (346)
Other changes: Hitn& g
Additions of lease liabilities HESEEM - - 15,197 -
Issues costs paid BAETRAE - - - 346
Interest expenses FIERE 4,379 63 508 -
At 31 December 2019 R _E-AE+ZA=1+—H 56,180 - 14,888 -
35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT M E R ERE

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
instrument risks: market risk (including foreign currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance by closely monitoring the individual exposure.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The Group does not have written risk management

policies and guidelines. However, the directors meet

periodically to analyse and formulate strategies to manage

the Group's exposure to a variety of risks which resulted

from its operating and investing activities. Generally,

the Group employs conservative strategies regarding its

risk management to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner. The risks

associated with these financial instruments and the policies

on how to mitigate these risks are set out as follows:

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group's
counterparties default on their contractual obligations
resulting in financial losses to the Group. The Group's
credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to
restricted bank deposits, bank balances, other
receivables, refundable rental deposits, loan receivables
and finance lease receivable.

The Group performed impairment assessment for
financial assets and finance lease receivable under
ECL model. Information about the Group's credit risk
management, maximum credit risk exposures and
the related impairment assessment, if applicable, are
summarised as below.

Restricted bank deposits/bank balances

The credit risk on restricted bank deposits and bank
balances is limited because the majority of the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies, and
the probability of default of the counterparty banks is
insignificant, and accordingly, no allowance for credit
losses is provided as the amount of ECL is immaterial.

iR e MR R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FFEAf_FH=+—HIEE

35. UBEKMEIR =

AERTEEERBREERRRIE
SlefAM EFEHRITEH  UDM
REEREREBEANERREAEER
ZRERREFEGHNIER R — R
Me  AEESTRRERTHVAREE
RS BRERAMMBITEE RS-
HZEMBIAARZARKRAEZ
FRERZ BREST

(a) EREE
ERRRNXZHFHERES
F&EBMarEBEMMBRERX
WER AERZERRREE
WERBRGRITER RITHE
B HEMEWRIE - AIREHEE
BE BUWERKBREEERK
TRIE

FEBRERAEHABRENY
TMEEMAMERSGRIRIEE
TRENSGE - BEAERERR
BREE RAERRRKOKRE
BIREERER (WER) @8
e

B IR #2R17 77 7k /3R 1T 43 R
BRFIIRITERRIRITERRZE
BREEBER RESHSREZH
RHEBREETREBTESA
BEESFRZBTRRZHFH
IRITENMEXAEE  BHRER
BRUEAEKR FILEEBEAR
SHEREME ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEf _H=+—HIEE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

Other receivables/refundable rental deposits

For other receivables and refundable rental deposits,
the directors of the Company make periodic
individual assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables and refundable rental deposits based
on historical settlement records, past experience,
and also quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable forward-looking
information available without undue cost or effort at
reporting date. The directors of the Company believe
that there is no significant increase in credit risk of
these amounts since initial recognition and the Group
provided impairment based on 12m ECL. For the
year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group
assessed the ECL for other receivables and refundable
rental deposits were insignificant and thus no loss
allowance was recognised.

Loan receivables

In order to minimise the credit risk in relation to loan
receivables, credit limits and credit terms granted to
customers are approved by delegated officers and
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider
that the credit risk of the Group is significantly
reduced. The directors of the Company estimate the
estimated loss rates of loan receivables based on
industry types, the historical past due information and
lessees' creditworthiness. The directors of the Company
believe that there is no significant increase in credit
risk of these amounts since initial recognition and the
Group provided impairment based on 12m ECL. As at
31 December 2020, the Group provided RMB69,000
(2019: RMB136,000) impairment allowance for loan
receivables, based on 12m ECL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

Finance lease receivable

In order to minimise the credit risk in relation to finance
lease receivable, credit limits and credit terms granted
to customers are approved by delegated officers and
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the credit risk of the Group is significantly reduced.
Except for the finance lease receivable is credit-impaired,
which are assessed for impairment individually, the
remaining finance lease receivable is grouped under a
provision matrix based on industry types, the historical
past due information and lessees’ creditworthiness.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's concentration
of credit risk on finance lease receivable included five
major counterparties accounting for 5.2% (2019:
6.9%), of the aggregate outstanding balance at the
respective year end date.

The Group has closely monitored the recoverability of
finance lease receivable from all counterparties, ensured
adequate collateral is received from these counterparties
and taken effective measures to ensure timely collection
of outstanding balances.

The Group is exposed to the concentration of
geographical risk on revenue which is generated mostly
from customers located in the PRC during the reporting
period. The directors of the Company have closely
monitored the business performance of these customers
in the PRC and will consider diversifying its customer
base as appropriate.

iR e MR R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEf _H=+—HIEE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(a) Credit risk (continued)

Finance lease receivable (continued)

For finance lease receivable, the Group has applied the
simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss
allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for customers who are
credit-impaired, the Group determines the ECL on these
items by using a provision matrix, grouped by internal
credit rating. The table below detail the credit risk
exposure of the Group's finance lease receivable, which
are subject to ECL assessment:

35. WHERKER @
() EREK (&
BEHERERRIE ()
BREREENRETNS A%
BOERESNEREEDNE9
% 57552 TEEAE AIE
KHBEARBE BROLBEEH
REZEEN SEEERRT
TR EED > BEERE
GO LBmANBEEFROMe T
=HFARAEESHNEER
REREERRIE EETER
ERBLTE ZERARK

Weighted Gross
average carrying Loss
lifetime ECL amount allowance
MEFEY
2 HATEH
B:EEEES IREAR{E BREE
(%) (RMB'000) (RMB'000)
(%) ARBFTT ARETT
As at 31 December 2020 R_ZB_EHF
+=ZB=+—H
Low risk (the counterparty has a EAB(ZZEFH
low risk of default or BARBERIEE
does not have any past due BHAEER)
amounts) 1% 279,780 3,872
Fair risk (the counterparty —RRBXRZEHFH
frequently repays after due KENRIPEEEZH
date but usually settle in full or fEEB B EHEAE
the asset is past due within 90 90 H & {)
days) 13% 17,356 2,170
Loss (there is evidence indicating E5(BEBBEREE
the asset is credit-impaired or  HIRERRED
more than 90 days past due) BEHABIE90H) 93% 11,063 10,289
308,199 16,331
As at 31 December 2019 RIE—N%F
+=B=+—H
Low risk & R Bz 1% 348,567 4,021
Fair risk — iR BBz 13% 16,528 2,212
Loss Ei=ES 97% 6,746 6,531
371,841 12,764
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

Finance lease receivable (continued)

The measurement of ECL is a function of the PD, LGD
and the EAD. The assessment of the PD and LGD is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information related to the economic inputs and the
future macroeconomic conditions such as nonfarm
payroll and purchasing managers’ index.

The Group calculated PD by applying linear regression
by inputting credit default swap, purchasing managers’
index and certain other index with adjustment factors
such as industry and region. The LGD were based on
historical observed default rates over the expected life
and by referencing the external database on regional
recovery by creditors.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group provided
RMB6,042,000 (2019: RMB6,233,000) impairment
allowance based on the provision matrix. Impairment
allowance of RMB10,289,000 (2019: RMB6,531,000)
was made on credit-impaired finance lease receivable.

- R

(a)

iR e MR R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE—EFEFF+ /A =+—HIFE

% IR (4

SRR &)

B EEKSIE ()

FEHEABANGEARENH

ENEBHNBEREQR AR O

BRI - BUMEREBNEGIBRT

1R 35 48 5 A A 7 ) A B e R 2R
REQEIRE (FIUERETE

RRELIBAES 2ABEMEE

5B EE  FE S2 BUR M T4 o

FAEEDBEBAGRENK
- RB IR MR e T HMIEH
HTX BRHFRRETHE)
RARMELBAEEORER B
MBEBRDREELHRIVER
FHRENXURBEEASZERE
BRI EBRIREBIS H o

RIEZEF+-A=+—8>
AEBENRIRTEEFIR AR
6,042,00070 (ZE—HF: AR
#6,233,0007T) BEREE 5B
BEZHEAEBIKTRIEERA
K 10,289,0007t (ZE—NEF:
AR ®6,531,00070) = & (& &
o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEf _H=+—HIEE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(a) Credit risk (continued) (a)
Finance lease receivable (continued)
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL
that has been recognised for finance lease receivable

ERRE (&)

35. WFERABEIR »

HBEHEEWRKE (&
TRETREESHEAEHRE
HERWRIEED 2 MEHAE

under the simplified approach. BEXEE-
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
not credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
2HRHER 2HRBEREX
Bk (ARERAE) (ERAME) &t
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTRT ARETT ARETn ARETR ARBTR ARETR
At 1 January r-A-H 6,233 4,767 6,531 6,151 12,764 10,918
Changes due to finance lease receivable 13— F — B 2 BETR ER YR
recognised as at 1 January: BY7E9.
- Transfer to credit-impaired -BREEERAE (603) (131) 603 131 - -
- Impairment losses recognised -BRIHESE 1,323 - 3,691 2,381 5,014 2,381
- Impairment losses reversal ~REFEERD (4,651) (2,157) (793) (1,253) (5.444) (3,410)
- Disposal —-tE - - - (879) - (879)
Changes due to et addition of RERERUTIENLTE
finance lease receivable 3,740 3,754 257 - 3,997 3,754
At 31 December R+ZR=+-H 6,042 6,233 10,289 6,531 16,331 12,764
The movements in the gross carrying amounts of finance HEHERRTBHIREMAESE
lease receivable were as follows: ER I
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
not credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
2HRAER RHRMEREX
Bk (LEERAE) (fERHME) ELh
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTR ARETr ARETR ARETT AEETR ARETR
At 1 January R—B—H 365,095 371,099 6,746 8,582 37,84 379,681
Changes due to finance lease receivable 1’ —A —BER 2 BEREEK
recognised as at 1 January: TEEY 2
- Transfer to credit-impaired -BEZERAE (8,014) (1,592) 8,014 1,592 - -
- Settlement —# (245,834) (221,260) (3,957) (2,393) (249,791) (223,653)
- Disposal -t - - - (1,035) - (1,035)
Changes due to net addition of finance BEETRERENH BN L FE
lease receivable 185,889 216,848 260 - 186,149 216,848
At 31 December R+ZB=1+-H 297,136 365,095 11,063 6,746 308,199 371,841
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Currency risk

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk related
bank
balances, refundable rental deposits and lease liability
that are denominated in HK$ and US$. The Group

primarily to certain restricted bank deposits,

4 AH

AR B B RS AR AR MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE—EFEFF+ /A =+—HIFE

B RRERE =

(b) EMER
AEBEZIIMNERE EEHA LB T
METHEZS EEE%J%EﬁT
ATFIRITHSG AJRIEEE
EREEEERM- ZIK%IEHU

currently does not have a foreign currency hedging A 8 SN S R B ER ) BB
policy. However, management monitors foreign [& B 22 51 BB /R Bz ’EEEH—HE\ B2
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant FFE REAERINERARE
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currencies RREIAR > AEBMUIESE
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end vEBEERABREBENOT
of the reporting period are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE af
2020 2019 2020 2019
2%  “Z-AF CZBI%E CTZ-AE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
AEEFR AREFTR ARETR ARET:
HKS$ AT 2,35 1,614 1,044 2,07
us$ e 4 4 - -

The Group's exposures to foreign currencies on financial
assets and liabilities are mainly concentrated in the
fluctuation of foreign exchange rates, for which the
directors of the Company considered the effect is
immaterial.

FEBATNEMEERE BN
SN RIS E BRSNS EE
HE AADEERAHYEY

REKo
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEf _H=+—HIEE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Group
is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
restricted bank deposits, bank balances and variable-
rate bank borrowings. The Group takes on exposure
to the effects of fluctuation in the prevailing market
interest rates affecting the cash flow risks.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate bank borrowings, lease
liabilities, fixed-rate loan receivables, fixed-rate finance
lease receivable and deposits from finance lease
customers. The Group does not have a fair value interest
rate risk hedging policy.

Management monitors the related interest exposure
closely to ensure the interest rate risks are maintained
at an acceptable level. The level of mismatch of interest
rate repricing that may be undertaken is monitored
closely.

The Group’'s exposures to interest rates on financial
assets and liabilities are mainly concentrated in the
fluctuation of PBOC rate arising from restricted
bank deposits, bank balances and variable-rate bank
borrowings for which the directors of the Company
considered the effect is immaterial.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management
rests with the directors, and the entity has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework for
the directors’ short, medium and long-term funding
and liquidity management requirements. The Group
manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves
and banking facilities, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE—EFEFF+ /A =+—HIFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 35. WFERABEIR =

(d) Liquidity risk (continued) (d) #"EBEERAK #)
The following table details the remaining contractual TRANNERERAREEIFTT
maturities at each of the reporting dates of the Group's LT EMABENRGEOEHH-
non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based ZRBRETHEERESHEBEN
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including KR BERERNEFTHE
interest payment computed using contractual rates or, RKEENREHHERH KT E
if floating, based on current rates at the reporting date) FEHERAEHERERAER
and the earliest date the Group may be required to pay. MEFENIEZNR (WEF

#) BERWEHEFXAE -

Total
contractual Within
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or 1to Over
amount  cash flow on demand 2 years 2 years
BEHR

BRRE  1ERR
WREfE e BREX 1226 2FNE
RVMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTR ARETR ARBTR AREBTR

As at 31 December 2020 RZZZZE
‘|‘_H =+—H
Non-derivative financial liabilities ErEsmas
Other payables EMEAHE 6,551 6,551 6,551 - -
Deposits from finance lease customers BMEHREZFE S 5,679 6,109 5,821 288 -
Lease liabilities HE&E 11,220 12,615 4,145 3,064 5,406
Bank borrowings RITER 99,730 101,941 101,941 - -
123,180 127,216 118,458 3,352 5,406
As at 31 December 2019 RZIZ—NE
+-A=+—-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities FrEsmas
Other payables EMEN7E 1,422 1,422 1,422 - -
Deposits from finance lease customers BMERERE K 35,052 38,866 27,026 11,510 330
Lease liabilities HEER 14,888 17,133 4,855 4,080 8,198
Bank borrowings BT 56,180 57,921 57,921 - -
107,542 115,342 91,224 15,590 8,528
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_EEFEFF+ A =+—HIFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

36.

(e)

Fair values

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
is determined based on discounted cash flow analysis,
with the most significant inputs being the discount rate
that reflects the credit risk of counterparties.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate to their fair
values.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

- R

(e)

SR (&

AFE

SHEERSMEBZAFES

RELRBSRENNEE B
BrBARBERBRI Y F
FERRRZ EER

KRB ERRD WEBHMRAS

ANFEEHBRRRKZEMEER
THERZREEREAEAFEM
=,

6. BRI DHEMEER

LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY ETHEEHRE
The following table shows the carrying amount and fair value TRITEMEEREBENRAER
of financial assets and liabilities: N -
2020 2019
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
fREE AFE REE NTE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETRn ARETR AEETR
Financial assets EHEE
Non-current assets FERBEE
Financial assets measured at amortised cost: LU S At EN SR E E
- Finance lease receivable —mMERERNFA 84,380 84,380 119,027 119,027
- Loan receivables —EWRER 864 864 5,897 5,897
- Refundable rental deposits —RERERS 1,017 1,017 1,072 1,072
Current assets MEBEE
Financial assets measured at amortised cost: S At ENEHE &
- Finance lease receivable —REAERERFE 207,488 207,488 240,050 240,050
- Loan receivables —EWER 6,935 6,935 7,208 7,208
— Other receivables —E MR IE 5,479 5,479 4,110 4,10
— Restricted bank deposits —BREIETER - - 61 61
— Cash and bank balances —RTEGERRE 84,814 84,814 22,291 22,291
390,977 390,977 399,716 399,716
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37.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY (continued)

iR e MR R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_E_FFEAf_FH=+—HIEE

36. HBRHIBDHERMEER
ETREaEHNE @

2020 2019
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
IREME AFE REE NEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®FrT ARETn ARETR ARETR
Financial liabilities THEaRE
Current liabilities REBER
Financial liabilities measured at amortised MM A ENESHEE
cost;
— Other payables —HEfERFRIE 6,551 6,551 1,422 1,422
- Lease liabilities —HE&E 3,491 3,491 4,031 4,031
- Deposits from finance lease customers ~ —BEBHERF S 5,422 5,422 24,956 24,956
- Bank borrowings —RITER 99,730 99,730 56,180 56,180
Non-current liabilities FEREEE
Financial liabilities measured at amortised MM A ENEHEE
cost;
- Lease liabilities —-HE&E 7,729 7,729 10,857 10,857
- Deposits from finance lease customers ~ —BBHRERFHE 257 257 10,096 10,096
123,180 123,180 107,542 107,542

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to owners of the Company through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank
borrowings as set out in Note 25 and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and
reserves.

The directors of the Company reviews the capital structure
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors of
the Company consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with the share capital and borrowings. Based on
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through new share
issues and issue of new borrowings.

37. EXERER
AEEEREES UREAEEN
TEBSENSRCE FAREBE
LEBREZZTEH BERESAA
SHAAZER REE Y BIER
B EEER T

FERZERRBEUERTER (T
25) URAABHEE AELER (HE
BAITIRA R (R AERL) o

ARBDEFERERELTRE-FH
IEREZ -0 ARTNEEFEEE
R A R B IR A R e TR B Z LR e
BREARDEFZRHZ AEEKS
BRRMETREENERTHHEE
BREARRE
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38. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

AND EFFECT OF COVID-19

On 27 November 2020, the Group entered into the equity
transfer agreement with independent third parties to
purchase the entire equity interest in Guangzhou Sheng
Cheng Dunnan Enterprise Management Co., Limited (“Sheng
Cheng”), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC,
with the consideration of RMB31 million. Sheng Cheng and
its subsidiaries are engaged in the provision of postpartum
care services in the PRC. The equity was transferred in
February 2021. Because it was completed close to the date of
approval of these financial statements, it is not practicable to
disclose further details in relation to the acquisition as at the
date of the approval of these financial statements.

On 4 December 2020, the Group entered into the equity
transfer agreement with independent third parties to
purchase 54% of equity share of Wuhan Jiaenbei Health
Management Co. Ltd. (“Jiaenbei”), a limited liability
company incorporated in the PRC with consideration
of RMB3.24 million. Jiaenbei is engaged in provision
of postpartum care service in the PRC. The equity was
transferred in January 2021. Because it was completed close
to the date of approval of these financial statements, it is
not practicable to disclose further details in relation to the
acquisition as at the date of the approval of these financial
statements.

The World Health Organisation declared coronavirus and
Covid-19 a global health emergency on 30 January 2020.
The outbreak of Covid-19 and the subsequent quarantine
measures as well as the travel restrictions imposed by many
countries have had negative impacts to the global economy,
business environment and directly and indirectly affect the
operations of the Group. As such, the financial positions and
performance of the Group were affected in different aspects,
including reduction in revenue due to decrease in customers’
demand caused by temporary suspension of operation of
the customers in certain areas in the PRC, increase in ECL
provision due to worsening creditworthiness of certain
customers and rent concessions from a lessor.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
AND EFFECT OF COVID-19 (continued)

The directors of the Company are continuing to assess
the implications of Covid-19 pandemic to the business in
which the Group operates. Depending on the duration of
the Covid-19 pandemic and continued negative impact
on economic activity, the Group might experience further
negative results, and liquidity restraints and incur additional
impairments on its assets in 2021. However, the exact impact
in the remainder of 2021 and thereafter cannot be predicted.

FEMIBIRRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE—EFEFF+ /A =+—HIFE

38. MRS MR KM EEIRA

SREGEIEE
FABEEFREESTECovid-19K
RITHAEBRKEEXETHNREE - RIiE
Covid-19 K RITHIF B R BB &5 8
WREEETE FEEIETE_

T FERE—SHNEEERKM
IR WHHEEEEERINR
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

MEERHEE

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2020, 2019, 2018,
2017 and 2016, extracted from the audited financial statements in
the annual reports and the Prospectus of the Company dated 25
June 2018, is as follows:

KEEHE_ZZF - ZZ2—AF -T2
—NF-ZE—ttFERIZT-RE+A
=+ BHEFEZEHEXEURBEER
EERE BREFRAEARRHBAZE
—NERBI+RHZERERRZKSE
ZEFERE) WMT -

RESULTS: £l
Year ended 31 December
BE+_-_B=+—HLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
ZEBEIBE “Z-NE BE-N\E Z—tE ZT—XE
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFR ARETT ARETT ARBTT AREBTE
Revenue Wz 58,512 68,125 60,409 52,060 29,546
Profit before taxation BRI A A 15,155 26,453 22,958 15,942 7,536
Taxation i (2,270) (9,580) (6,013) (6,377) (2,319)
Profit for the year FANEF] 12,885 16,873 16,945 9,565 5,217
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES: BERAR:
As at 31 December
w+-ZB=+—H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
ZECEE “T-NE E-N\E Z—+tE T—RE
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBFRT ARBTRH ARETT ARBTR ARETR

426,572 403,389 351,908 285,171
(126,301) (119,991) (141,557) (177,911)

Total assets BEESA 439,611
Total liabilities BEBEE (136,299)
Total equity mE ] 303,312

300,271 283,398 210,351 107,260
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